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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

This version of our repart is a free translation of the onginal, which was prepared in Spanish All possibie care has been taken
to ensure that the transiation I1s an accurate representation of the onginal However, in all matters of interpretation of
mformation, views or opinion, the onginal language version of our report takes precedence over the translation

To the shareholders of Codere, S A

Report on the Consolidated Annual Accounts

We have audited the accompanying consolidated annual accounts of Codere, S A and its subsidianes,
which compnse the consolhidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2014, and the
consolidated income statement, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity, cash flow statement and related notes for the year then ended

Directors' Responsibiitty for the Consolidated Annual Accounts

The parent company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of these consohdated annual
accounts, so that they present fairly the consohdated equity, financial position and financal
performance of Codere, S A and 1its subsidiares, 1n accordance with International Finaneial Reporting
Standards, as adopted by the FEuropean Union, and other provisions of the financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group 1n Spamn and for such internal control as directors determine 1s
necessary to enable the preparation of consohdated annual accounts that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these consohdated annual accounts based on our audit
We conducted our audit 1 accordance with legislation governing the audit practice 1n Spain This
legislation requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtamn
reasonable assurance about whether the consohdated annual accounts are free from maternal
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclesures 1n
the consohidated annual accounts The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, meluding
the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the consolidated annual accounts, whether due
to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the parent company’s directors” preparation of the conschdated annual accounts i order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expiessing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the
appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting esimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the presentation of the consohdated annual accounts taken as a

whole

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion

Opimion

In our optnion, the accompanying consolidated annual accounts present fairly, in all materal respects,
the consolidated equity and financial position of Codere, SA and its subsidiaries as at December 31,
2014, and 1ts consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union,
and other provisions of the finanmal reporting framework apphcable 1 Spamn

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditeres, S L, Torre PwC, P? de la Castellana 259 B, 28046 Madrid, Espaiia
Tel +34 915684 400/ +34 902 021 111, Fax +34 913 083 566, www pux com/es 1

R M Madnc hoja 87 250-1 folio 75 tomo 9 267 libro 8 054 secadn 3*
Inscnia enel R O A C con el numere 50242 CIF B-79 031200
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 2 a 1 to the accompanying consohdated annual accounts, disclosing
the Group’s financial difficulties which have resulted in its defaulhing on 1its main financial
commitments 1 2014 and to the date of the preparation of the accompanying consohdated annual
accounts The process of negotiation with creditors which started 1n 2013 has given rise to certain
agreements which were made public 1n September 2014 and are explained in notes 3 f and 3 g to the
accompanying consolidated annual accounts As part of the terms of the agreements, the Group will
shortly be starting up a procedure named a “scheme of arrangement” before the High Court of Justice
of England and Wales 1n order to obtain favorable judicial authonsation for the implementation of the
planned finaneial restructuring The so-called Lock-up agreement, reached with a majonty of
bondholders and wath the majonty shareholders of Cadere, S A , and which the parties have until June
2015 to execute (with the possible extension of the period until August 2015), envisages the granting
of a new semor financing facility to the Group of approximately Eures 253 million, with matunty 1n
2020 Stmilarly, 1t provides for a new bond 1ssue amounting to Euros 675 mullion, maturing in 2020
Of these new bonds, Eures 200 million will be 1ssued 1n cash and Euros 475 million will be exchanged
for existing bonds Subsequently, the bondholders will acquire a stake 1n the company’s equity through
the capitahisation of the other existing bonds amounting to Euros 636 mulhon (adjustable amount at
the date of execution based on total accrued interest), obtaiming Codere shares representing 97 78% of
share capital Subsequently, and through the sale of shares by such bondhoiders to the company’s two
main executives, the bondholders’ stake would be reduced to 78 2% of the Group’s equity While the
Lock-up agreement 1s in effect and 1n accordance with the terms and conditions of the so-called
standstill agreement, both the bondholders and the creditors of the semior financing facility 1n effect
have undertaken not to exercise their nghts of enforcement deriving from default by the Group As
mndicated by the Directors in the aforementioned notes, at the date of preparation of the
accompanying consohdated annual accounts, the parties sigrming the agieement continue working on
defining the final documentation of the restructuring and meeting all the conditions to which they
have committed within the stipulated time period, although 1t 1s not possible to determine whether the
process will end successfully, tniggenng sigmficant uncertainty concerning the Group’s capacity to
contmue 1ts operations This matter does not medify our opinion

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The accompanying consolidated directors’ Report for 2014 contains the explanations which the parent
company’s directors consider appropriate regarding Codere, S A and its subsidiaries” situation, the
development of their business and other matters and does not form an integral part of the
consolidated annual accounts We have verified that the accounting information contained n the
directors’ Report 1s 1n agreement with that of the consolhidated annual accounts for 2014 Our work as
audcitors 15 hmted to checking the directors” Report i accordance with the scope mentioned in this
paragraph and does not include a review of information other than that obtained from ABC, S A and
its subsidianes” accounting records

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, SL

Antomo Vazquez
February 27, 2015
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Equity consolidated companies
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Non-current financial assets
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Thousand euro)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Goodwill

Equity method tnvestments

Non-current financial assets
Non-current loans
Investmenis held to matunty
Other financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Accountis recelvable
Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets
Sundry receivables
Tax recevables accrued
Financial assets
Short-term investment secunties
Other loans and investments
Prepayments and accrued income
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

At 31 December

Note 2014 2013() __ 2012(")
1,204,579 1,302,315 1,583,378

7 471,098 511,178 588,394
8 368,665 430,405 635,406
8 70,451 72,229 -
10 207,561 207,489 265,097
9 12,415 11,666 12,407
11 25716 22,600 37,063
18,091 17,213 18,533

6,184 5.387 6,001

1,441 - 12,439

12 48,673 46,748 45,011
334,730 349,590 351,626

14 10,441 11,800 12,399
15 181,526 178,303 182,289
30,585 24,394 21,967

4,964 9,824 8,856

34,140 40,811 45 468

111,837 103,274 105,978

16 35,988 41668 60,014
106 1,218 2,531

35,882 40,450 57,483

20,103 15,423 14,494

24 86,672 102,396 82,430
1,539,309 1,651,905 1,935,004

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

{"} Figures restated under IFRS 11 See Note 2 a} 2
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Thousand euro)

At 31 December

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 2014 2013(%) 2012(%)
Equity attributable to owners of the
parent 17 (449,130} (260,442) {14,769}
Share capital 11,007 11,007 11,007
Share premium 231,280 231,280 231,280
Legal reserve and retained earmings
(prior-year losses) (350,750) {173,318) (25,368)
Transition reserves 4,060 4,214 4,399
Translation differences (171,722) (160,011} (89,148)
Profit/(loss) for the year attnbutable to (173,005)
parent company's owners ! (173,616} (146,941)
Non-controlling interests 17,280 56,877 95,674
Total equity (431,850) {203,565) 80,905
Non-current liabilities 296,852 1,288,018 1,340,632
Deferred income 17 75 339
Non-current provisions 18 33,465 48,342 44,840
Mon-current payables 19 147,525 1,126,508 1,160,822
Bank borrowings 89,299 102,739 100,591
Bonds 1ssued - 966,624 971,881
Other payables 58,226 57,145 88,350
Deferred tax tabilities 12 115,845 113,093 134,631
Current hatilities 1,674,307 567,452 513,467
Prowisions and other 18 10,575 11,016 25,017
Bank borrowings 19 160,976 119,138 75,933
Bonds and other marketable secunties 18 1,141,915 41,453 10,441
Other non-trade payables 19 209,603 246,607 258,686
Trade payables 119,601 128,006 128,943
Liabilthes for current-year corporate
Income tax 19 31,637 21,232 14,447
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,539,309 1,651,905 1,935,004

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements

(*) Figures restated under IFRS 11 See Note 2a) 2
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOCLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(Thousand euro)

Year ended 31 December

Note 2014 2013(%) -
Operating Income 23 1,385,624 1,520,776 -
Revenue 1,377,175 1,513,355
Other income 8,449 7.421 —
Operating expenses 23 (1,361,500) {1,531,535) -
Consumables and other external expenses (45,742) (51,875) S
Employee benefit expense 23d (240,130) (300,108) ——
Deprecration and amortisation {125,514) (149,672} I
Change in trade provisions (1,993) (2,118) —
Other operating expenses 23¢c {936,255) {970,428} -
Asset impatrment charges 78,10, 13 (11,866) (57,338} —
Profit/loss on retirement or disposal of assets 8 (3,347) (6,489) e
CONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROFIT/{LOSS) 20,777 (17,248) S
Financial income 3,331 5,067 —
Financial expenses (148,174) (141,312} -
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) (45,899) {B,755)
CONSOLIDATED NET FINANCIAL INCOME/{EXPENSE) 23g (190,742) (145,000)
CONSOLIDATED LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX {169,965) (162,248) -
Corporate tncome tax 21 {40,885} (45,359) -
Profit/(loss) for the year of companies consolidated by the _
equity method 2,967 2,334 -
CONSOLIDATED LOSS FOR THE YEAR {207,883) {205,273) —_
Attnbutable to .
Non-controlling interests {34,878) (31,657) e
Owners of the parent (173,005) (173,616) ——
Basic and diluted earnings per share {(In euro) 23f (3 80) {3 74) -
Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing i
operations attributable to the owners of the parent company S
(in euro} (3 16} {316} —
23f -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
(") Figures restated under IFRS 11 See Note 2a) 2
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Thousand euro)

Year ended 31 December

Note 2014 2013(")
Loss for the year (207,883) (205,273)
Currency translation differences (9,441) (73,608)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (9,441) (73,608)
Total profit/(loss) for the year (217,324) (278,881)
Attributable to non-controlling interests (32,608) (34,400)
Attributable to owners of the parent company (184,716} (244,481)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
(*) Figures restated under IFRS 11 See Note 2 a) 2
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

{Thousand euro)

Profitloss)
Equity attributable Eguity
method ta the attnbutabie 10 Equity attnbutable
Share Share Reatained T parent the parant 1o non-controlling

capital premmiurn warnings reserves reserves differences company company ntereaty Total aquity
BALANCE at 31 Decamber
2012 11,007 231,230 (176 308] 2 982 4214 !160 ﬂ11l (173,616} {260, 442! 56 817 ‘203 SGE!
Cansoldalad loss for Iha year (173 005) {173 0D5) {34 B78) (207 B33
Othar consolidated
comprehensive income or 1ha
year (11,711) {11,711) 2270 {9451}
Tolal consobdated
COMPrBhensiva NCoOMo {1171y {173 005) {184 716) (32 668) (217 324}
Translef Lo transibon reservas 154 {354) -
Change in consolkialion scopa
ano business combmnation (Note
4 (38233) (3833 {1841) (5674}
Rasarves for lraasury sharas
{Note &) 28 a6 a5
Provisian for optians {13 {113 {113)
Gaird(loss) on treasury sharas 112) (112) (12
Drvidends () 2023 {2.023) {5 148) (5 148)
Translar 1o retaned samings
(pror yeat losses) {175,350} 234 1731616
Total changes n equily [177,745) 31 {154) 173616 (3,872) {6 989) (10,861)
BALANCE at 31 Decambar
2014 11,007 231 280 (354,053} 3303 4,060 (171 722) (173 005) {449,130) 17 280 1431 850)

{ ) Corresponds lo the distnbution of dvidends to the holders of non-controlling interests in the Group s Spanish subsidianes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these censolidated financial statements
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES -
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY —
{Thousand auro) -
Legal -
ragarve and Equity —
ratained Equity Profit{loss) attributable to Equity ———
aarnings mathod sitributable to parent attributable to .
Sharm Shars {prior year pany Tr tha parent COMmpany’s non-controlling Total
capital premium losses) reserves reserves differances company owners. equity -
BALANGE 21 3% Decamber 2612 11 007 231 280 (25 368) 4,399 {29,146} (146 941) 114 765} 5 674 80 905
—— —
Apphcation {FRS 11 (2 091! 2 091 —rrm—
r—
HALANCE at 3 January 2013 1 607 231 280 {27 £59) 0M 4309 (a9 146) {146 941) {14 769) 5 674 B0 905 .
Consoldatad loss for the year {173 618) (173616} {31 657) {205 273) Senm—
Othar comprehensive incoma for —n—
the year (T0 855} {70 3635) (2743 (73 808)
Total comprehensive mcame {70 865 {173616) {244 a81) (34 409) [278 AR4) -
Transter to Iransitkn reserves 185 (185) ——
Changes in conscbdanon §Cope r—
and busingss combinationy - 1944 1944 ———
[
Reserves lor treasury shares 2 - 232 32
————
Provis.on for aplang {1236) - (1236) i1.236) e
Gain/{loss) on lreasury shares {188} - {188) {188) —
D )
Diwidands { } 1630 (1630 - (6341) {6 341)
Transfer lo retaned eamings —
(poor yasr 105595) {143 472) 2501 16 841 )
Total changes in squity {148 849) 01 (185) 148 941 (1182) 4 397} (5 589)
BALANCE at 31 Decomber 2013 11 00T 231280 (176 308) 2992 4214 {160 011) {173 616} {260 442} 56 877 $203 565)

{ ] Corresponds 1o the disinbution of dwvidends te the holders of non-controlling interests in the Group s Spanish subsidianes

( ) Figures restated under IFRS 11 See Note 2a) 2

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consoldated financial siatements
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Thousand euro)

Consolidated profit/{loss) before iIncome lax
Net financial income/(expense)
Operating profit/{loss}
Expenses that do not represent cash cutlays
Depreciation and amorlisation
Asset impaiment
Other operating expenses

Income that does not represent an inflow of cash

Changes in working capital
Inventones
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable

Other
Income tax paid
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets

Paymenis on non-current loans

Repayments receved on non-current loans

Amounts paid on investments

Payments on other financial assets

Effect of divestments

Collection of dividends

Proceeds from other financial assels

Callection of interest

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Bond issues
Drawings on Codere senior debt
Met change in borrowings
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Net change in bank borrowings
Dividends paid
Payments on other financial habilities
Repayments of other financial habiliies
Net change 1n other financial habihittes

Other cash flows due to impact of exchange rates on receipts and payments

Acquisibion of own equity instruments

Disposal of own equity instruments
Net investment in treasury shares
Payment of interest

NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Reconciiation

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Net vanatien In cash position

Year ended

Note 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
(169,965) {162,247)

190 742 145 000

20777 (17,247)

146,985 223,100

586 125 514 149,672
8 11 866 57 336
24 9,605 16 092
24 (2,392) {1.121)
(39 669) (6,257)

1,033 867

(2.010) {8,020)

(39,591) {9,014)

899 10,210

(32 278) {39 009)

93,423 159,466

(83.641) {112 614)

6,679 207

(21,155) {23,057)

21,011 24,336

(2 252) (2,822)

(9,559) -

(332) -

2,024 1,630

- 24 634

1,441 1,930

{85,784) (B5,756)

35,000 76,561

35,000 76,561

1,051 21,183

(11,989) (41,644)

(10,938) (20,461}

{4,656) (5,877}

2,626 (10,622}

. 8 509

2,626 {2,113)

{10,599) {9,751}

{108) (539)

102 413

{6) {126)

(31,197) {83,640)

{19,770) {45,407)

{12,431) 28,303

102,396 82,430

(3 593) (8 337)

86,672 102,396

{12,131) 28,303

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

(*) Figures restated under IFRS 11 See Note 2 a) 2
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
{Thousand euro)

1 General information

Codere S A (hereinafter the “Company” or the “Parent”) was incorporated in Spain on 20 July 1998
as a public hmited company lis registered address and main offices are at Avenida de Bruselas
26, Alcobendas {Madnd, Spain)

The corporate purpose of Codere S A 1s described in article 2 of its bylaws and consists of
investment and reinvestment activities in real estate, hospitality services, amusement and slot
machmnes, casinos, bingo halls and other lawful gaming activities, the use of its funds to acquire
ownership interests 1in Spanish and foreign corporations with the same or a similar corporate
purpose, and coordinating the provision of legal, tax and financial advisory services

Codere, S A and its subsidianes (herenafter “Codere Group” or the “Group™) are mainly engaged
in business activites in the private gaming industry, consistng prnimarly of the operation of
amusement and slot machines, sports betting, bingo halls, casinos and racetracks in Spain, ltaly
and Latin Amenca (Argentina, Brazil, Colombia, Mexico, Panama and Uruguay) The companies
forming the Group are detailed in Appendix 1

These consoldated annual financial statements were authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors
on 26
February 2015

2 Accounting pelicies

The pnncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below These policies have been consistently appled to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated

a) Basis of presentation

The consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the accounting
records of Codere S A and its consohdated subsidiaries and are presented in thousands of euro In
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union
(IFRS-EU) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histonical cost
convention, except for availlable-for-sale financial assets and dernvatives, which were measured at
far value, and land and bwldings, which were recognised at ther far values upon first-ime
application of IFRS-EU

The preparation of consohdated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain cntical accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies The areas inveolving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptons and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4

a1) Going concern

The present consclidated financial statements have been drawn up on a going concern basis,
assuming that the activity of the Company and its Group will continue without himitation

The Company's directors have included below a list of the factors that have generated, and also
mitigated, uncertainty as to the Company's capacity to remain in business as a going concern
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Factors generating uncerainty

As a result of its current financial situation Codere has been unable to meet payment
commitments for half-yearly coupons due on bonds 1ssued in EUR and USD duning 2014 or the
repayment commitment on the senior credit facility at the date of its matunity in February 2014
These fallures to make payment constitute default events which entitle the bondholders to
accelerate redemption of all bonds 1ssued by the Group

At 31 December 2014, the Group presented equity attnbutable to the owners of the parent
company of a negative 449,130 thousand euros, a reduction of 188,688 thousand euros with
respect to the figure recognised at 31 December 2013 This reduction 1s mainly attnbutable to
the loss recognised in 2014 attnibutable to the owners of the parent company of 173,005
thousand euros and an increase of 11,711 thousand eurcs in negative translation differences
At 31 December 2014, the Group had negative working capital in the amount of 1,339,577
thousand eurcs {2013 217,862 thousand euros) The increase 1s due to the reclassification of
Bonds to short-term

Since 2012, there have been de facto restrictions on the repatnation of part of the funds from
Argentina Argentina remains one of the main generators of cash for the Group See Note 3 ¢)
1

Factors mitigating uncertainty

Durning the first quarter of 2014, Codere, S A and some of its subsidiaries filed the notification
provided for in Article 5 bis of the Spanish Insolvency Act with the Madnd Mercantile Court, in
view of its difficulties in meeting therr payment commitments In all cases, when the four-month
term provided for by law ended, no insolvency petition was filed by any of the companies
involved or by creditors The parties agreed to successive extensions of the deadline in order
to avoid the enforcement of hability derived from the non-payment of the bond interest and
negotiations were conducted which eventually made it possible to sign the agreement
descnbed below

On 23 September 2014 a Lock-up agreement was concluded between Codere, S A, Codere
Finance Luxembourg, S A and certan Codere Group companies with the holders of
approximately 80 2% of EUR Bonds and 88 9% of USD Bonds This agreement 1s explained
in in detail n Note 3f and contains the essential terms for the restructunng of the Codere
Group's capital and debt At the time of preparation of these annual accounts, the Lock-up
Agreement has been signed by 96 45% of EUR Bond holders and 97 47% of USD Bond
Holders

The senior credit facthty agreement which expired in February 2014 s under a "standstill
agreement linked to the Lock-up Agreement mentioned above (Note 3 g)

Even though the Group's consolidated balance sheet in 2014 was affected by the matunty of
financial habilities that had not been settled, negative working camtal 1s @ common situation in
the business area in which the Group operates, and within its financial structure The average
coliection penod in the gaming sector 1s very short, while the average suppher payment period
1s longer, enabling businesses to generate sufficient operating cash flow to cover working
capital payment requirements

The Group generates postive cash flow from operating activibtes Gross operating income
(EBITDA, defined as operating profit plus depreciation and amortisation, plus changes in trade
provisions, plus asset impairment testing, less receipts from fixed-asset disposals) for 2014
was above Codere Group management's forecast at the beginning of the year

During 2014 the group has renewed the financing faciity in Mexico
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NQTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Thousand euro)

Due to the circumstances descrnibed above, the directors consider that there 1s significant
uncertainty as to the Group's capacity to continue Iin business if the milestones laid down in the
above-mentioned agreements are not met in the terms and deadlines agreed by the parties

a2} New standards, amendments and interpretations issued

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that took effect in 2014

Standards, amendments
and interpretations

{FRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IAS 27 (Revised)
IAS 28 (Revised)
IAS 32 {Revised)
IFRS 10 (Revised)
IFRS 11 (Rewvised)
IFRS 12 (Revised)
IFRS 10 (Revised)
IFRS 12 (Revised)
1AS 27 (Revised)

IAS 36 {Revised)

IAS 39 (Revised)

Description

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other entiies
Separate financial statements

Investments In associates and joint ventures

Offsetting financial assets and financial hlabilities

Consolidated financial statements, joint arrangements
and disclosure of interests in other entities

Investment entities

Disclosure of the recoverable amount of non-financial
assels

Novation of dervatives and continuation of hedge
accounting

Applicable for annual
periods beginning on
or after

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014
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CODERE, § A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Thousand euro)

The standards, amendments and interpretations i1ssued by the IASB and IFRS Interpretations
Commuttee duning 2014 which had not entered into force by the end of 2014 are the following

Standards, amendments

and interpretations
IFRIC 21
IAS 19 (Revised)

2010-2012 improvement

project

IFRS 2
IFRS 3
IFRS 8
IFRS 13
IAS 16
IAS 24

Improvement project
2011-2013 cycle
IFRS 1

IFRS 3

IFRS 13

IAS 40

Improvement project
2012-2014 cycle

Standards, amendments

and interpretations
IFRS 14 (")

IFRS 11 {*} (Revised)
IAS 16 (") (Revised) and
IAS (*) 38 (Revised)
IFRS 15 (*)

IFRS 9 ()

IAS (") 27 (Revised)

IFRS 10 {*) (Revised) and

IAS (*) 28 (Revised)
IAS (*) 1 (Revised}
IFRS 10 {*) (Revised)

IFRS 12 (*) (Revised) and

IAS (*) 28 (Revised)

Description
Levies
Defined benefit plans Employee Contributions

Description

Share-based payments
Business combinations
Operating segments

Fair value measurement
Property, plant and equipment
Related party disclosures

Description

First-time adoption of IFRS
Business combinations
Farr value measurement
Investment properiies

Description

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

Financial instruments disclosures

Employee benefils

Interim financial reporting

Description

Deferred regulatory accounts

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint ventures
Clanfication of acceptable depreciation and
amortisation methods

Revenue from contracts with customers

Financial instruments

Equity method in separate financial statements

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture

Presentation of financial statements

Investment entities Applying the exception to
consolidation

Applicable for annual
periods beginning on
or after
1 January 2015
1 February 2015

Applicable for annual
periods beginning on
or after

1 February 2015

1 February 2015

1 February 2015

1 February 2015

1 February 2015

1 February 2015

Applicable for annual
periods beginmng on
or after

1 January 2015

1 January 2015

1 January 2015

1 January 2015

Apphcable for annual
periods beginning on
or after

1 July 2016
1 July 2016
1 July 2016
1 July 2016

Applicable for annual
periods beginning on
or after

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
1 January 2017
1 January 2018
1 January 2016

1 January 2016
1 January 2016

1 January 2016
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

(*) Standards and amendments pending adoption by the European Union

The Directors consider that the adoption of these new standards in 2014 has not had any matenal
impact on the Group's financial position, net asset value, income statement or duties of disclosure,
with the exception of the effects of IFRS 11 which are explained below and the disclosures required
under IFRS 12

IFRS 11 addresses the accounting treatment of joint arrangements based on the nghts and
obligations arising from the agreement rather than the legal status The types of joint arrangements
are reduced to two joint operations and joint ventures Under a joint operation a member has direct
nghts over the assets and labilites ansing from the arrangement and therefore reflects its
proportional interest in the assets, labiities, mcome and expenses of the entty m which it
participates A joint venture 1s when a member s entitled to the profits or net assets of the entity in
which it participates and therefore uses the equity method to account for its interest in the
business These agreements are to be accounted for by the equity method

in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 8 "Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors” the above standards and amendments have been applied retroactively,
restating the comparative information presented for 2013 n the preparation of which said
requirements had not yet been applied, to make it comparable to the infermation at 31 December
2014

In addition, In compliance with IAS 1 when an accounting policy 1s applied with retroactive effect, a
comparative balance sheet s presented at 1 January 2013

As a result of IFRS 11, the Group companies Hipica Rioplatense Uruguay, S A and New Joker,
S r |1, which were consolidated by the proportionate method in previous years are now regarded as
joint ventures
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Thousand euro)

The main impacts of the deconsoldation of HRU and New Joker are shown below

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed assels

Goodwill

Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Non-current habllities
Current liahilities
Current habilties

Bonds and other marketable secunties

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Qperating Incoma
Cperating expenses

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
FINANCIAL RESULTS

Corporate income tax
PROFITHLOSS) FOR THE YEAR

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Total HRU Total HRU and
HRU NEW.J and NEWJ HRU NEW.J NEWJ
25134 1,046 26,180 24,574 1,181 25,755
21768 g78 22,746 19,691 1,175 20 866
- 60 60 -
131 2 133 137 2 139
3,235 6 3,241 4,746 4 4,750
6,508 124 6,632 7.001 157 7,158
6,358 a2 6,400 4,705 36 4741
150 82 232 2,296 121 2417
31,642 1,170 32,812 31,575 1,338 32913
11,476 35 11,511 13,825 {19) 13,805
8,888 748 9,636 5794 206 6,700
7,267 748 8015 4,094 906 5,000
1,621 - 16219 1.700 1700
20,364 783 21,147 19,619 887 20,505
31 December 2013
Total HRU and
HRU NEWJ NEW.J

24 663 1245 25,908

(19662) {1 586) {21,249)

5,001 (341) 4,660

(2,104) {50) {2,154)

{168) {4} {172)

2,729 {395) 2,334
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

a 3) Comparabiiity

Various reclassifications have been included in order to iImprove comprehension and comparability
with current year figures among the headings of intangible assets and plant, property and
equipment

b) Accounting policies
b 1) Consclidation
. Subsidiaries and business combinations

Subsidianes are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control The
Group controls an entity when 1t 15 exposed or entitled to obtain vanable income due to its interest
n the investee and has the capacity to influence such income through the power exercised over
the investee

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group They are
de-consclidated from the date that control ceases

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary 1s the far values of the assets transferred, the
habiites mcurred to the former owners of the acguiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group The consideration transferred includes the farr value of any asset or hability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement Identifiable assets acquired and habilities and contingent
labilities assumed 1n a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets

Acquistion-related costs are expensed as incurred

If the business combination (s achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree 18 remeasured to far value at the
acquisition date, any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recogmsed in profit or
loss

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group 15 recogmised at far value at the
acquisttion date Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that s
deemed to be an asset or hability 1s recogrised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive income Contingent consideration that 1s classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement 1s accounted for within equity

Optional transactions with non-controlling interests that form part of business combinations are
included within the consideration transferred {increasing or decreasing such consideration as
warranted)} such that the transactions de not have an impact on the calculation of non-controlling
interests, as these options correspond to nghts and obligations that affect Codere Group only

Goodwill 1s initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the farr value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acqured and liabilities
assumed If this consideration i1s lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference 1s recognised in profit or loss
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between Group
companes are ehminated Profits and losses resulting from intercompany transactions that are
recognised In assets are also elminated Accounting policies of subsidianes have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

« Changes in ownership interests in subsidraries without loss of controlf

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that 1s, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners The
difference between far value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary s recorded 1n equity Gains or losses on the disposal
of non-controting interests are also recorded in equity

. Joint ventures

IFRS 11 1s applied to all joint arrangements Investments in joint arrangements under IFRS 11 are
classified as jomnt operations or joint ventures depending on each investor's rnights and obligations
The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and has concluded that they are joint
ventures Joint ventures are recognised using the equity method

Under the equity method, interests in Jjoint ventures are intially recognised at cost and are adjusted
thereafter to reflect the Group's interest In gains and losses subsequent to the acquisition and
movements In other comprehensive iIncome When the Group's share of a joint venture's losses
equals or exceeds its interests In joint ventures (including any long-term interest which, In
substance, forms part cf the Group's net investment in joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise any additional losses unless it has assumed obhgations or made payments on behalf of
the joint ventures

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the joint ventures Unrealised losses are also eliminated, unless
the transachon provides ewidence of an imparment loss due to the imparment of the asset
transferred The accounting policies applied by the joint ventures have been modified when
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

. Investments in associates

Companies in which Codere, S A holds a direct or indirect interest of less than 50% and more than
20%, and over which it does not hold a majornty of voting rnights or exercise effective control but
over which it does have a significant influence, would be consolidated by the equity method

lnvestments in associated companies would be recorded in the consohidated balance sheet at cost
plus any changes in the shareholding subsequent to the intial acquisition, depending on the
Group's share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairrment required The consolidated
tncome statement would reflect the percentage share in the associate's profits When a change
occurred recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group would account for its share of
these changes in its equity and, when so required, would disclose this matter in the statement of
changes in consolidated equity

At 31 December 2014, there were no investments in associates

e Disposals of subsidiaries
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{(Thousand euro)

When the Group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity 1s remeasured to its fair
value at the date when control 1s lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss The farr value 1s the imitial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that enbty are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or habiittes This may mean that amounts
previously recogmised under other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

The year-end date for subsidiaries and equity-method companies s 31 December
b 2) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker The chief operating decision-making authority, which is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board of Directors, which makes strategic decisions

b 3) Foreign currency translation
b 3 1) Functional currency and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entiltes are measured using the
currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional
currency’) The consolidated financial statemenis are presented 1in euro, which 1s the Group’s
presentation currency

b 3 2) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevalling at the dates of the transactions or measurement, where items are remeasured

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of these transactions and the
translation of monetary assets and lhabilities denommated in foreign currency are recognised in the
income statement

The monetary items of each Group company that are denomnated in a currency other than the
functional currency are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date All
realised and unrealised exchange gains or losses are taken to the income statement for the year,
with the exception of exchange gains or losses on intra-group monetary transactions considered
part of an investment in a foreign operation, which are included under "Translation differences” in
consolidated equity

Non-manetary items denominated in foreign currency and carred at historical cost are translated
using the exchange rate prevailng on the transaction date, while currency-denominated non-
monetary items measured at far value are translated into the functional currency using the rate of
exchange on the date the farr value was determined

b 3 3) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NQTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Assets and frabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the clesing rate at
the date of that balance sheet,

Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates,
All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and habities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in equity

b 4)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment loss

Expenses incurred In relation to intangible assets are only captalised when thay increase the
future economic benefits expected to be generated by the assets in question All other costs are
expensed when incurred

Gaming licences include the amount paid to the granting autherities They are amortised
over the term of the associated concession

Exclusive nghts compnse amounts paid to the owners of food and drink establishments to
install gaming machines in therr premises They are amortised over the term of the contracts
Installation nghts compnse amocunts pad to authorttes for permits to install gaming
machines They are amortised over the authorisation period

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and brning to use the specific software These costs are amortised over therr
estimated useful hves

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at acquisitton cost Trademarks are deemed to
have an indefinite useful life

Rights to use brands, trademarks, customer portfolios and licenses acquired in business
combinations are recognised at ther acqusition-date fair values With the exception of
trademarks and non-amortisable installation nghts, which are deemed to have an indefinite
useful fe, they are amortised dunng the term of the related nght, concession or the best
estimate of the term of the contractual customer relationship, calculated on the basis of
financial models and the Group's prnior experience with customers in each of its operating

markets

Intangible assets with a finite useful Iife are amortised on a straight-ine basis over therr estimated
useful lives from when they become available for use The amortisation rates applied are as

follows

Annual depreciation rate
Gaming licences 25%-11%
Exclusive rnights 15%-25%
Installabon nghts 10% - 33%
Customer portfolios 4 5%-10%
Compuler software 20%- 25%

These rates are regularly reviewed to ensure their accuracy
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

b 5) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost Nevertheless, on first-time apphcation
of IFRS-EU, the Group decided to revalue its land and buildings, using ther fair value at the
transition date as deemed cost

This revaluation was recognised dreclly with a charge to equity Decreases are charged to the
iIncome statement When revalued assets are subsequently sold or withdrawn from use, the excess
In the transition reserve for first apphcation of EU-IFRS I1s transferred to retained earnings

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount only when 1t 1s probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group All other costs are expensed
when incurred

Fixtures and fittings in bingo halls are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the
depreciation period used for this asset category

Depreciation 1s charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of each component of property, plant and equipment ltems of property, plant
and equipment are depreciated from when they are ready for therr intended use Land 1s not
depreciated
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

The depreciation rates apphed are as follows

Annual depreciation rate

Leisure, gaming and sports betting machines 10% - 30%
Furniture, fithngs and equipment 7% - 30%
Computer hardware 10% - 30%
Vehicles 10% - 30%
Structures and builldings 2% - 3%

Work done to leased premises 10% - 30%
Plant and machinery 7% - 30%

These rates are reguiarly reviewed to ensure their accuracy

Borrowing costs associated with loans which are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of items of property, plant and equipment are added to the cost of the asset, In
accordance with IAS 23

b 5 1) Investment properties

These are assets (builldings, land) earmarked for the obtention of rental Income These assets are
not intended for sale or for administrative use The Group recognises real-estate iInvestments using
the cost model, applying the same policies as those mentioned for tangible fixed assets, depending
on the category of asset concerned

b6) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the acquisitton-date fair values of the 1dentifiable assets acquired and the habilities
assumed and any non-controlling interest 1n the acquiree The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisttion basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets

Goodwill 1s carred at the amount recognised on the acquisition dale less any accumulated
mparment losses Goodwill 15 not amortised but 1s allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units which coincide, In
general, with the Group's operating segments, whtch In turn correspond to geographical areas, as
the cash-generating units comprising business lines (gaming machines, bingo halls, betting and
casinos) do not provide sufficiently detalled information to allow individual analysis, given that a
range of different types of operations usually take place in the same locaton, with gaming and
betting machines frequently being installed in bingo halls and casinos (note 6)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently If events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment The carrying amount of goodwill 1s compared to the
recoverable amount, which 1s the higher of value in use and far value less costs to sell Any
impairment loss 1s recogrused immediately as an expense and 1s not subsequently reversed
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

b 7) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets with indefinite useful lives, such as goodwill, are not subject to depreciation/famortisation
and are tested annually for impairment Assets subject to amortisation/depreciation are tested for
impairment provided that an event or change in circumstances indicates that their carrying amount
might not be recoverable An impairment loss I1s recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the hugher of the
asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identiiable cash flows (cash-
generating units) Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

b 8) Financial assets

Financial investments classified as held for trading are recognised at fair value, changes in farr
value are recognised n the consolidated income statement Fair value 1s the market price at the
balance sheet date

Loans, receivables and financial investments which the Group has the positive intent and ability to
hold to matunty are carried at amortised cost iess any impairment losses

Other financial investments held by the Group are classified as avallable-for-sale and are carried at
far value with any resulting gains or losses recognised directly in other comprehensive income
When these investments are sold, the accumulated farr value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the iIncome statement

Where there 1s no benchmark price in an active market for an avallable-for-sale investment and
there 15 no alternative method for determining its fair value, the investment s carrned at cost less
any impairment losses

Loans and receivables maturing within 12 months from the balance sheet date are classified in the
consoldated balance sheet as current assets and those maturing after twelve months, as non-
current The Group recognises provisions for the impairment of loans and receivables when there
Is sufficient evidence to reasonably classify these assets as doubtful debts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date — the date on
which the Group commuts to purchase or sell the asset
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

b 9} Inventories

Inventones correspond mainly to bingo cards and hospitality stocks They are carried at the lower
of acquisition cost or net realisable value

Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling costs and other sales expenses

The Group assesses the net realizable value of inventories at the end of the year, and records any
value adjustment required when they are overstated against income When the circumstances that
previously caused the value adjustment cease {0 exist, or when there i1s clear evidence of an
increase In net realizable value because of changed economic circumstances, the adjustment 1s
reversed

b 10) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting penod whether there 1s objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets 15 imparred A financial asset or a group of financial
assets 1s impaired and imparment losses are incurred only If there 15 objective ewvidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a 'loss event'}) and that loss event {(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estmated

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors 1s experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency In interest or principal payments, the probabiiity
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there 1s a measurable decrease In the estimated future cash flows, such as changes In
payment terms or economic conditions that correlate with defaults

For the lpans and receivables category, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's
onginal effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced and the amount of the
loss 1s recognised in the consolidated income statement If a loan or held-to-matunty investment
has a varable interest rate, the discount rate for measunng any impairment loss 1s the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract As a practical option, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument's fair value using an observable market price

If, iIn a subsequent pernod, the amount of the iImpairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurnng after the imparment was recognised {such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss 1s recognised in the consolidated income statement
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

b 11) Dernivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group regularly enters into contracts to hedge its exposure to exchange rate nsk The nisk
identified relates to the impact of exchange rate fluctuations on its operatons in Argentina and
Mexico, which represent a significant percentage of the Group's total sales

The purpose of these hedge arrangements was to cover a significant portion of the Group's
consolidated sales These hedging arrangements were designed to miigate the impact of changes
In the afcrementioned exchange rates with a view to mimimising vanability in the Group's
conscolidated revenue reported in euro There are no hedges cutstanding at 31 December 2014 cor
2013

b 12) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business Receivables due for collection within one year are classified as
current assets If not, they are presented as non-current assets

Trade receivables are recognised mitially at farr value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impawrment

b 13) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly hquid investments with onginal maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts

Bank overdrafts are recogmsed on the consolidated balance sheet as financial habilities on
amounts owed to financial institutions

b 14) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s shares (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attnbutable incremental costs (net of income taxes), 1s deducted from
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders untll the shares are cancelled, reissued or sold
When these shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attnbutable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, 1s included in equity
attnbutable to the Company's equity holders

b 15) Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers Accounis payable are classified as current habihities If payment

is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer) If not, they
are presented as non-current habilities
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Trade payables are recognised imtially at fairr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method

b 16) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised imtially at far value, net of transaction costs incurred They are
subsequently carrned at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value 1s recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method

Fees paid on the establishment of toan faclities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
when it 1s probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down In this case, the fee 1s
deferred until the draw-down occurs If it is not probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee 15 capitalised as a pre-payment for iquidity services and amortised over the penod of
the facility to which it relates

b 17) Current and deferred income tax

Tax expense for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recogrised in other comprehensive income
or directly In equity In this case, the tax i1s alsc recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively

The current iIncome tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable iIncome Management penocdically evaluates the positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation 1s subject to interpretation, recognising
provisions where appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred income tax 1s recognised, using the kability method, on temporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and liabiliies and their carrying amounts n the consoldated
financial statements However, deferred income tax 1s not accounted for If it anses from initial
recognttion of an asset or lability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
tme of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred income tax 1s
deterrmmned using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset I1s
realised or the deferred income tax hability 1s settled

Deferred iIncome tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes
and associates, except for deferred income tax hability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference 1s controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse In the foreseeable future
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Deferred income {ax assets and liabihties are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabihities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and habities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis

b 18) Employee benefits
. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment i1s terminated by the Group before the normal
retrement age, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits The Group recognises these benefits on the earliest of the following dates (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of such indemnities, or (b)when the entity recognises the
costs of a restructuning under IAS 37 and this entalls payment of severance indemnities

When an offer 1s made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the severance indemnities paid are
valued on the basis of the number of employees expected to take up the offer Benefits not falling
due within 12 months of the balance sheet date are discounted to present value

. Bonuses

The Group recognises a llabibty and an expense for bonuses where contractually obliged or where
there I1s a past practice that has created a constructive cbligation

. Retirement bonuses

Retirement bonuses are recognised at the amount accrued at the balance sheet date by those
companies obliged to make such paymenis under applicable collective bargaining agreements

. Share-based payments

The Group has considered compensation with share-based payments by virtue of the Lock-up
agreement whereby the Company receives services from employees and external advisors as
consideration In exchange for Group equity instruments after the financial restructunng The far
value of the employee received from employees and external adwvisors In exchange for these
oplions 1s recognised as an expense The total expense is determined by reference to the fair value
of the shares granted, bearing in mind, ameng other questions, the accrual period, vesting date,
and probability of compliance with the vesting conditions See Note 4 f)

b 19) Provisions and contingent habihities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it 1s probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the cbligation,

and the amount has been reliably estimated Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Provisions are measured at the present vaiue of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation The increase in the provision due to passage of ime
1s recognised as interest expense

Contingent habiites, meanwhile, are possible obligations that anse from past events whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the consolidated companies Caontingent habilities are
not recognised in the financial statements but are detailled in the notes to financial statements (note
22)

Amounts recognised in respect of tax provisions are included 1n the income statement as a function
of the nature of the related tax

b 20) Revenue recognition

Revenue I1s recognised on an accrual basis, 1 e , when earned, regardless of when actual collection
occurs

The Group recognises revenue as follows

- Gaming machines the net amount collected including associated gaming taxes

- Bingo halls the total face value of the cards sold less winnings paid out, which are recorded
as a deduction from revenue

- Casinos the net takings coliected by the operator

- Racetracks the total amount of the bets placed, less winnings paid out

- Betting the net takings collected by the operator

Interest income 15 recognised using the effective interest method When a loan and recewvable i1s
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the onginal effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income Interest income on impaired loans and recevables 1s
recogrused using the onginal effective interest rate

Dividend income 15 recognised when the nght to receive payment is established
b 21) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retammed by the
lessor are classified as operating leases Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-lne basis
over the period of the lease

The Group leases certain items of property, plant and equipment Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially all the rnisks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases Finance leases are capitahsed at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the
fair value of the leased property and the present value of the mintmum lease payments

Each lease payment 15 allocated between the hability and finance charges The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables The interest
element of the finance cost 1s charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant pernodic rate of interest on the remamning balance of the hability for each pericd
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases 1s depreciated over the shorter of
the useful ife of the asset and the lease term

b 22) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share ts calculated by dividing the profit attnbutable to the owners of the Parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year, excluding any
treasury shares held by the Group

3 Financial nsk management targets and policies
a) Sources of funding and gearing policy

The Group's main financing instruments cempnse credit ines, bank loans, bond 1ssues and finance
and operating leases

The Group generally obtains third-party financing for the following purposes

- To finance the operating needs of the Group companies
- To finance investments under the Group's business plan

With regard to its capital structure, the Group’s borrowings can be classified into two tiers of
seniority

- Firstly, senior debt, with a range of maturities, contracted with Spanish and international
investment funds

- Secondly, bonds, the payment of which 1s, in some cases, subordinate to payment of the
senior debt, these bonds mature in 2015 and 2019 and are held by international financial
investors Under the expected terms of the new debt included in the Lock-up Agreement and
described in Note 3 f), the new bonds to be issued by the Group will mature n five years and
three months from the date of 1Issue

The Group's general leverage policy 1s to maintain leverage within certain multiples of its EBITDA,
consoldated cash flows and debt servicing commitments In view of the current nonfulfillment of
financial commitments (Note 2 a 1)), this policy will be affected by the final outcome of the
agreements described in Notes 3 f)and 3 g)

b} Group's main nisk factors

The Group's main nsk factors include those related to the gaming sector in which it operates
(regulatory risk, the gaming sector being a highly regulated sector, risks associated with public
perceptions of the gaming sector and the nsk of increased competition) and nsk factors that are
specific to the Group The latter include political, economic and monetary risks associated with
international operations, litigation nsks, nsks dernving from the Group's indebtedness, nsks
associated with relying on third parties where the Group does not hold the gaming licences which it
operates, risks denving from its growth strategy, concentration nsk in the supply of gaming
machines in Spain, the nsk of being unable to cffer secure gaming products or ensure the integrity
and security of business lines, and the nsks associated with operating in alhances with third parties
in some of our operations
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

c) Financial nisk factors

The Group's activities expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk {including currency nisk,
farr value interest rate nsk and prnce nsk), credit nsk and hquidity nsk The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictabibty of financial markets and seeks to
minmise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance At 31 December 2014
and 2013, the Group does not use any hedging instruments

Risk management 1s overseen by the Group's Central Treasury Department in accordance with the
policies approved by the Board of Directors This Department identifies, evaluates and hedges
financial nsks 1n close cooperation with the Group's operating units The Board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange
nsk, interest rate nsk, hquidity nsk, use of denvative financial instruments and non-denvative
financial instruments, and investment of excess hguidity

c 1) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group has significant investments 1n countries whose currency 1s not the euro, exposure to the
Argentine and Mexican pesos slands out The Group companies transact pnmarily m ther
respective functional currencies

The Group's general policy 1s to minimise asset and hability currency mismatches so that currency
devaluations would not have a significant impact on the Group's financial situation

Duning 2014 no hedging instruments have been arranged

For the purposes of IFRS 7, market nisk disclosures must include sensitivity analyses showing the
effects of hypothetical changes in relevant nsk vanables on profit or loss and equity Currency nsks
within the meaning of IFRS 7 arnse from monetary financial assets and habilities denominated In a
currency other than the functional currency of a given company Exchange differences arising on
the translation of financial statements into the Group's presentation currency are not taken into
account in subsequent sensitivity analysis
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

The impact on profit or loss and equity of changes in the Group’s most relevant exchange rates
with respect to the year-end rates are shown in the following table (thousand euro)

Thousand euro

Euro loses 10% Euro appreciation 10%

Exchange rate at Impact on profit or Impact on profit or
Currency 31122014 loss Impact on equity loss Impact on equity
ARS/EUR 10 4074 (2.463) - 2,463 -
BRL/EUR 32249 - 1,744 - (1,744)
COP/EUR 2904 44 23 - (23) -
USD/EUR 12141 275 - (275) -
UYU/EUR 29 6864 (443) - 443 -
MXN/EUR 17 8895 581 968 {561) (968)
CLP/EUR 00014 - - - -
Thousand euro
US Dollar loses 10% US Dollar appreciation 10%

Exchange rate at Impact on profit or Impact on profit or
Currency 31122014 loss lmpact on equity loss Impact on equity
ARSMUSD 8 5510 3,772 (477) (3,772) ar7
BRL/USD 2 6562 36 2,729 (36) {2,729)
COP/USD 2392 46 (197) - 197 -
MXN/USD 14 7348 4,267 34,615 (4,267) (34,615)
UYu/uso 24 3690 4,179 - (4.179) -
EUR/USD 08237 (9,075) (36,974) 9,075 36,974
Thousand euro
Euro loses 10% Euro appreciation 10%

Exchange rate at Impact on profit or Impact on profit or
Currency 31122013 loss Impact on equity loss Impact on equity
ARS/EUR 90114 (803) - 803 -
BRU/EUR 32307 - 1,609 - {1,608}
COP/EUR 2657 29 {16) - 10 -
USD/EUR 1379 1 - {1) -
UYU/EUR 29 5500 {556) - 556 -
MXN/EUR 18 0200 1,223 - (1,223) -
Thousand euro
US Dellar loses 10% US Dollar appreciation 10%

Exchange rate at !mpact on profit or Impact on profit or
Currency 31122013 loss Impact on equity loss Impact on equity
ARS/USD 65210 (2,081) (333) 2,081 333
BRL/USD 23426 281 2,226 {281} (2,226)
COPMSD 1926 83 25 - (25) -
MXN/USD 13 0652 13,083 36,233 (13,093) (36,233)
Uyu/usD 21 4200 1,944 - (1,944) -
EUR /USD 07251 953 {32,077) {953) 32,077

Price nisk
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

As a gaming operator, and as it does not hold investment securities classified as available for sale
or at far value through prefit or loss, the Group is not exposed to this type of risk except in certain
one-off cases such as the Icela purchase option subject to a change in the underlying values, for
which a specific appraisal 1s carred out, and which matured in 2014

Interest rate risk

The Group has i1ssued fixed-coupon bonds in international markets with face values of 760 million
euros and 300 million US dollars The rest of the Group's financial debt which totalled
approximately 250 million euros at 31 December 2014, 1s mostly benchmarked 1o vanable interest
rates (Eunbor/Libor/the Mexican Interbank Equiibnum Interest Rate)

Given this capital structure, and as bonds 1ssued at fixed rates represent almost 82% of the
Group's current worldwide indebtedness, the Group's exposure to this type of nsk at the balance
sheet was moderate, as 1s its potential impact on profit or loss Notes 3 f) and 3 g) gives details of
the interest rates that the Group expects to be appled as from 2015 for bonds and senior credit
facihes

Sensitivities to interest rate movements are detailled below

Thousand euro

Increase (+) /
decrease (-} In
interest rates (basis

Item points) 2014 2013

Effect on profit or loss after tax

effect +50 {970) (807)
-50 970 807

Effect on equity +50 (970) (807)
-50 970 807

Distribution of unallocated income

On the basis of amendments to the Corporate Income Tax Law in Argentina of 23 September 2013
concerning the treatment of transactions involving the purchase and sale of shares, stocks, bonds
and other secunties and the payment of dividends in cash or in kind, a 10% tax was estabiished on
dividends paid by local comparies (irrespective of therr corporate structure)

This withholding 1s in addition to the 35% withholding as a single and definitive payment stipulated
by the (numberless) article included after Article 69 in the Corporate Income Tax Law and which
would be applied to payments of dimdends by local companies only when the dividend in question
1s higher than the taxable income accumulated at the end of the fiscal year immediately preceding
the date of payment, in which case the 35% withholding would be applied on the surplus
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

In this respect, since 2014 the Group has followed a policy of repatnating dividends of the
subsidiaries In Argentina, considering as distnbutable those reserves which would be subject to the
10% charge and assuming that the repatnation of dividends out of reserves that exceeded the
above-mentioned limit 15 remote due o the costit would involve

¢ 2) Creditrisk

The Group's main financial assets which are exposed to credit nsk are

. Investments in financial assels included in cash and cash equivalents (notes 16 and 24)
. Non-current financial assets (note 11)
. Batances with customers and other receivables (note 15)

The Group's overall exposure to credit nsk 1s made up of the balance of the above items

The Group has established internal rules to minimise the nsks associated with investments in
financial products and the use of financial derivatives The counterparties must be credit entities
with high credit ratings awarded by recogrised international ratngs agencies The Group's
management also establishes investment and contracting ceillings which are regularly reviewed

In the case of transactions 1n countries whose economic and socio-political situation preclude high
credit ratings, the Group generally uses the branches and subsidianes of foreign entities who meet
or come close to meeting the required cnritena, or larger local entities

Maximum exposure

The Group's exposure to credit nsk, mitigated by its own revenues, 15 mainly attributable to trade
receivables on ordinary operations, principally advances paid to the owners of food and dnnk
establishments against their share of the proceeds from the gaming machines located in their
premises and balances receivable from the CIE Group companies The amounts recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet, net of provisions for bad debts, were 74,793 thousand euros and
70,286 thousand euros at 31 December 2014 and 2013, respechvely

Provisions for bad debts are determined based on the best avallable information at the time the
consohdated annual accounts are drawn up and are re-estmated at the year end on an
individualised basis, according to the following critena

. The age of the debt
. The existence of insolvency proceedings
. An analysis of the customer's ability to repay the amount owed

The provisions for receivables imparrment at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are disclosed in note

15 These provisions represent the Group's best estimate of the losses incurred in respect of its
receivable balances
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

The Group's maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 December 2014 and 2013, broken down by

type of financial instrument, 1s as follows

Thousand euro

2014 2013

Trade receivables 63,240 70,238
Cash and cash equivalents 86,672 102,396
Other financial assets 29,640 36,362
179,552 208,996

¢ 3) Liquidity nisk

Liquidity nsk 1s defined as the nisk of the Group bemng unable to satisfy its obhgations on time

and/or at a fair price

The Group's Finance Department manages and handles liquidity and financing Liquidity and

financing nsks related to processes and policies are also overseen by this department

In general, the Group manages its hquidity nsk on a consolidated basis, taking into account the
needs of its companies, taxes payable, capital requirements and multiple regulatory considerations,
using a wide range of sources of financing to maintain flexibility The Finance Department uses
rolling forecasts of the Group's cash flows to control its net iquidity position The Group deposits its

cash and cash equivalents with the leading regulated entities
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES —

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS ——
————
(Thousand euro) R
The table below shows how the Finance Department manages net lquidity, based on the —
contractual cash flows and the remaining perniod to the contractual maturity date of the Group's e
financial assets and liabilities, excluding trade receivables and payables, at 31 December 2014 and —
2013 e
r——
Thousand euro
EBetwaan Batwesn Between —
0110472015 0t/01/2015 010172015 Between
Balance at and and and 01/01/2015 and
3111272014 31/0312015 31/1212015 31/12/2016 3111272020
Currant assets
Short term investment secunties 106 106 106 108 108 —
Cash and cash equivalents 86 672 86 672 86 672 B6 672 86 672 —rm——
Total current assets 86,778 86778 86,778 86,778 86,778 ——-
Non-current habilities T—
Bonds debentures and other marketabla secuntes -
Non-current bank barrowings B9 299 30,400 89 299
Total non-current hiabillties 89 299 - - 30,400 89,299 ]
Current habilities r—
e
Short term dabentures and bonds 1141815 1141915 1141915 1141915 1141815 -
Current bank borrowings 160 976 139,718 160 976 160 97§ 160 976 q
Total current habilities 1302891 1281,633 1,302,891 1,302,891 1,302,891 ___:J
[
Net liquidity (1,305,412) {1,154,855) {1,216,113) (1,246,513 {1,305,412) e e——
m—t——
Thousand auro ‘___,
JE——
Betwoon Batwaen Between Batween P
Ealance at 0110172014 and 0140172014 and 01/01/2014 and 01/01/2014 and PR
Izl 310312014 311272014 INM2I2045 311212019
R
Current assets -
Short term investment sacuntas 1218 1218 1278 1218 1218 |
Cash and cash equvalants 102 386 102 396 102 396 102 356 102 396 ——
Total current assats 103 614 103 614 103 614 103 614 103 614 ‘—""J
Non current habihties —rmma
Bonds debentures and other marketable securiies 966 624 - 760 000 971 881 -
Non-current bank borrowings 102739 - 70635 102739 .
Total non-current habilities 4 059 363 830 635 1074 620 :
Current habiities
Short-term debentures and bonds 41453 41 453 41 453 41 4583 41453
Bank barrowings 119138 110 199 119138 119138 119138
Total current habilities 160 591 151 652 160 591 160 591 160 591
Net higuidity {1 126.294! {47,993) (56 932) {887 567) {1131 552)

The tables above do not include cash flows from the Group’s operating activities or the repayment
of debt or contractual payment of interest in the periods indicated The interest due and payable for
FY 2014 on bonds i1ssued by Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A amount to approximately 133
milkon euros {including 5 milkon euros for default interest) These bonds account for almost 82% of
the Group's current financial debt
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Notes 3 1) and 3 g) descnbe in detaill the Lock-up and Standstill agreements whereby the debt
restructuring will presumably be arranged

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue to manage its
recurring business activities and to continue to grow through new projects, by optimising the capital
structure in order to create value for shareholders

In general, the Group finances its development based on three main pillars
- Internally-generated cash flows from the Group's recurring businesses

- Tapping the opportunities for growth through investments in new projects funded largely by
project finance, thereby feeding the Group’s growth capacity in its recurring activities

- An asset turnover policy focused on the sale of mature projects in order to continue financing
investments in new projects

At 31 December 2014, the Group presented equdy attnibutable to the owners of the parent
company of a negative 449,130 thousand euros, a reduction of 188,688 thousand euros with
respect to the figure recognised at 31 December 2013 This reduction 1S mainly attnbutable to the
173,005 thousand euro loss recognised in 2014 and the negative vanation in currency translation
differences of 11,711 thousand euros The loss for the year was mainly the result of the following
factors

- Decrease in income n the Group's main markets manly tnggered by the depreciation of the
Argentinian peso and the worsening of market conditions in Mexico

- Impairment of assets in Carrasco and Mexico for a joint amount of 11,866 thousand euros
(Note 13)

- Ruling by the Court of Auditors in ltalia

- Expenses ansing from financial and legal advice associated with the debt renegotiation
process

- Increase in financial expenses due to non-payments

- Increase in negative differences on exchange resulting from the US dollar appreciation during
2014

The combination of negative equity and the Lquidity difficuities explained 1in Note 2 a 1 mean that
the Group's capital management policy 1s senously affected by the situation of uncertainty The
return to normal conditions will only be possible if the agreements described in Note 3f) are
enforced In a satisfactory manner

e) Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carned at far valus, by valuation method The
different levels have been defined as follows
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habihities (Level 1)

o Inputs other than guoted prices included within leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or
abihty, either directly (1 € , as prices) or indirectly (1 e , denved from prices) (Level 2)

o Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on aobservable market data (e,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

Thousand euro

Assets /{Llabilities) (Level 2) 2014 2013
Reserve for options (4,454) (5,158)
Other financial assets - 5,327

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market 1s determined by
using valuation techniques These valuation techniques maximise the use of avallable observable
data inputs and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates If all the significant inputs
required to calculate an instrument’s fair value are observable, the instrument s inciuded in level 2

Specific valuation techmiques used to value financial instruments carned at far value are the
following

- The fair value of the option on the sale of shares to vanous Codere directors 1s calculated taking
into account the volatiity of the secunty, the redemption value of the loans and other factors

- The fair value of the option to purchase 15 2% of Icela was calculated on the basis of the volatility
of Codere's share price and comparables, taking into account multiples at the valuation date
During the year, as the purchase option was not exercised on the vesting date in June 2014, it was
written off agamst net financial income (Note 19)

Fair value of financial assets and habiities at amortised cost

The information availlable in financial sources on the market value of the bonds i1ssued by the
Group at 31 December 2014 amounts to 640,285 thousand euros (551,523 thousand eurcs at 31
December 2013) However, the Group considers that the figure indicated by the financial news
agencies {such as Reuters or Bloomberg) as market value i1s not representative of the fair value of
said instruments as indicated in the reports by our financial advisors, Perella Weinberg Partners,
and the advisors of the bond holders themselves, Houllhan Lokey (financial advisors of the ad-hoc
Bondholder Committee) There are various reasons for which they cannot be regarded as such
Firstly, the bond market 1s an over the counter market In an over the counter market prices are
negotiated privately and confidentially by the parties based on their own criteria and interests, with
no obligation to report the results or the conditions of the transactions Accordingly, there i1s no
official quoted bond price and the prices reported by the vanous sources might not reflect the
actual prices at which the transactions have been performed, nor represent the transactions carried
out as a whole Secondly, the bond market shows a mumimum liquidity following the conclusion of
the Lock-Up Agreement because, although that information 1s not public, the changes in ownership
of the bonds covered by the Lock-Up must be reported to the designated agent in order to ensure
that the obhgations undertaken when signing the Lock-Up Agreement by the former holders are
fulfilled
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

The implementation of the restructuring descrnbed in the Lock-Up Agreement will entail the
capitalisation of part of the debt the remaining debt will be 42 7% of existing debt The shares, as
reflected in the valuation reports by Duiff & Phelps and Deloitte (as mentioned in the Relevant Fact
descnibing the restructuring agreement) would not contribute any additional economic value

For the senior debt instrument, we consider that its fair value agrees with the nominal value of the
debt due to the considerations of the intercreditor agreement between the bondholders and the
senior debt holders (which establishes the prevalence of repayment of the debt to the latter) and to
the terms of the restructuring agreement, which ensures full repayment of said instrument

Likewise, for the remaiming financial liabilities, setting aside the effect that the debt renegotiation
being carried out by the Group might have, their value at amortised cost, subject to vanable market
conditions and to the lack of nsk indications in the subsidianes that hold these liabilities, does not
differ from ther fair value

Once the refinancing process 1s completed, management will reappraise its best estimate of the far
value of these financial iabilities

Fair value of investment properties

In the case of Centro Banamex, its far value amounted to 93 milhon euros according to the
valuation performed by a recogmised independent expert in 2012 This valuation was made in the
context of the acquisition of lcela However, it has been considered that an ad-hoc valuation for
said property that applied objective and comparable property market criteria, would not be in line
with the best indicator of the property's far value as the property 1s subject to a 50-year
government concession (expinng in 2048), with certain conditions for its exploitation as a private
service which mean that it 1s not comparable The Group has restated the far value of sad
property on the basis of estimated future flows according to the iease contract described in Note 8,
where both flows and investment commitments are defined under the assumption that the contract
will remain in force (with growth and considenng a discount rate of 10 59% in ine with that used In
the asset impairment analysis for the Mexican CGU The growth rate used to calculate each unit's
terminal value 1s the long-term consumer price index forecast for each country taken from
macroeconomi¢ forecasts, which in Mexico's case 1s 3% Based on said analysis, the fair value at
31 December 2014 15 79 8 million euros

All the vaniables used to develop the fair value method are Level 3
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f} Lock-Up Agreement

On 23 September 2014 a Lock Up Agreement (“LUA"} was signed between Codere, S A, Codere
Finance Luxembourg, S A and other Codere Group companies with the holders of approximately
96 45%% of the EUR Bonds and 97 47%% of the USD Bonds ("Consenting Notehciders"), the
holders of bonds that will insure a new loan agreement and a new bond i1ssue ("“Backstop Notes
Parties™} and the so-calleg Orniginal Shareholder Parties (Jose Antonio Martinez Sampedro,
Encarnacion Martinez Sampedro, Javier Martinez Sampedro, Carmen Martinez Sampedro and
Masampe Holding, B V)

At the meeting of the Company's Board of Directors held on 23 September 2014, the Board
members Jose Antonio Martinez Sampedro, Encarnacion Martinez Sampedro and Javier Martinez
Sampedro stated that they were In a situation of conflict of interest with the Company in relation to
the second item on the agenda concerning the conclusion of the Lock-Up Agreement and
accordingly they abstained from taking part in the discussion and vote on the decision concerning
the proposed restructuring and the signing of said agreement

The LUA contains the essential terms of the envisaged restructuring of the Codere Group's capital
and debt and lays down a term of nine months for the formahsation and notansation of all the
documents required for its implementation, providing for a possible extension of up to a maximum
of 11 months If agreed by the parties

The main features of the agreement, as reported as a Relevant Fact to the CNMV on 23
September 2014, are the following

(a) the Consenting Noteholders agree not to take enforcement acticn in respect of the
existing and anticipated defaults that might take place during the implementation
process,

(b) the Codere Group will not undertake specified materal corporate actions without the
prior consent of two or more Consenting Noteholders holding in aggregate more than
50% of the Existing Notes by nominal value held by the Consenting Noteholders,

(c) there are termination provistons under which the Lock-Up Agreement may termmnate
(or become capable of termination by the parties) If certain specified events occur

The termination events included in the agreement are the usual ones in agreements of this kind
and relate to the fallure to comply with schedules not attnbutable to third parties unrelated to the
agreement, the implementation of certain significant actions by the Company without the consent of
certain bondholder majonties, nsolvency events no envisaged n the agreement itself etc
Management have evaluated these events and concluded that at the date of the present annual
accounts none of them have occurred and there 1s no evidence that they will anse duning the term
of the Lock-Up Agreement

For its part, Codere has decided to instigate proceedings before the High Court of Justice of
England and Wales known as a scheme of arrangement under the UK Companies Act 2006 (the
"Scheme”) to obtain necessary judicial authonsation to implement the Restructuring and which
includes (amongst other things) the following

{a) granting of a 253 milhon euro first hen term loan facility (the "New SFA") which,

together with the proceeds of the New Cash Notes Subscription, will replace the
existing senior faciities agreement and provide financing for future working capital
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and projects The faciity will have a matunty of five years and will bear interest at the
EURIBOR (subject to 1 00% floor) + 7 00% per annum payable in cash

(b} New bond 1ssue through a newly incorporated company for 675 millon euros (350
millicn second lien and 325 mullion third lien) Of the totai, 200 million will be ssued
in cash and 475 millien will be exchanged for existing bonds (150 millkon second lien
and 325 million third lien) These bonds mature in 5 years and 3 months The
second lien bonds will bear interest at 5 5% per annum 1n cash plus 3 5% PIK and
the third fien bonds will bear interest at 9% per annum PIK (payment in kind)

(c) Bond capitalisation existing bondholders will convert part of the remaiming claims of
the Existing Noteholders for principal and interest in respect of the Existing Notes (in
aggregate amounting to circa 636 milion euros) into 97 78% of the ordinary 1ssued
share capital of Codere, leaving existing shareholders with 2 22% Since it 1s a listed
company, Codere will be required to file a prospectus for this capital increase with
the CNMV for its approval

Fallowing the capitalisation the Existing Noteholders will re-allocate the shares received such that
at completion of the Restructuring the ordinary share capital of Codere will be distributed as follows
(stated as a percentage of the total ordinary share capital in 1ssue of Codere), collectively referred
to as the "Investors Shareholders"

(1} 61 20% for Existing Noteholders participating in the New Cash Notes Subscrption,

() 10% for the Backstop Notes Parties (who shall also be entitled to receive a cash
backstop fee amounting to 5% of the total amount of the New Cash Notes
Subscniption),

(me) 1% for the Backstop SFA Parties (who shall alsc be entitted to recewe a cash
backstop fee amounting to 2% of the total amount of the New SFA),
(iv) 4% for the holders of second hen Notes, and

(v) 2% for the holders of third hen Notes

In addition, to preserve the value of the New Notes and maximise future value creation in the equity
of Codere, the Existing Noteholders believe 1t 1s of critical importance that Jose Antonio Martinez
Sampedro and Javier Martinez Sampedro (the “Key Executives”) invest sn restrnicted shares of the
restructured Codere 1n order to align their economic interests on a permanent basis and thus
preserve the Key Executives' continuity of ownership in hight of the institutional and governmental
relationships considered necessary to the successful continuation of the Group's licensed
businesses Accordingly, as a condition to the Restructuring, each Existing Noteholder will agree to
sell and the Key Executives shall agree to purchase 19 58% of the ordinary 1ssued share capital of
Codere pro rata to its share of the equity ansing from the capitalisation for a far market post-
restructunng value (and, in any event, not less than 05 mithon euros) and such shares once
purchased shall be subject to certain transferability imitattons The purchase price payable to the
Existing Noteholders will be fully financed by them pursuant to & purchase note to be issued to
them with a 5 year term and subject to other terms and conditions to be agreed, bearing in mind
prevailing market conditions

The percentage shareholdings described above will be further diluted by (a) the subsequent
issuance of 2% of the fully diluted equity of Codere to a global coordinator (Silver Pcint Finance
LLC) by way of a fee for its role and (b) the exercise of warrants to be 1ssued to management
pursuant to a management incentive package (the "Management Warrants")
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If exercised, the Management Warrants would result in a further issuance of shares in Codere
resulting n a further

(1) 5% ownership interest 1ssued to the Key Executives struck at an exercise price which
provides for an \mplied recovery on the Existing Notes of 100% of all outstanding
principal plus all accrued and outstanding interest immediately prior to completion of the
Restructunng (the "First Tranche Warrants”), and

(1) 5% ownership interest 1ssued to other members of the executive management team
(other than the Key Executives) struck at the same price as the First Tranche Warrants

The First Tranche Warrants shall expire 18 months after completion of the Restructuring

The agreed Restructuning also envisages the formation of a new subsidiary 100% owned by
Codere, S A to which the parent company would have to transfer all its equity, in accordance with
Article 72 of Law 3/2009 on Structural Changes n Business Corporations This transaction
responds to the change in the scheme of guarantees required by the bondholders to carry out the
Restructuring and must be approved by the shareholders of Codere, S A at an extraordinary
general meeting

Once the Restructurning 1s completed the compesition of the Company's Board of Directors will be
altered together with certain aspects of the corporate governance scheme Among other measures,
the Key Executives will have the option to launch a sale process in respect of ther shares in
Codere or buy process of the shares held by the Investor Shareholders in certain circumstances
{being termination of the executive role of Jose Antomio Martinez Sampedro or Javier Martinez
Sampedro (other than for cause)} or rejection of material proposals put forward to the board on
matenal corporate actions relating to certain regulatory or licensing aspects of the group's
business, a "Trigger Event”) within 3C months from completion of the Restructuring In that
scenario, within the 6 months iImmediately after a Tngger Event, the Key Executives may propose
an option price (the "Opticn Price") and Codere or, if not possible for Codere, the members of the
Core Equity Group or any other Existing Noteholder that held over 5% of the equity in Codere at
completion of the Restructunng and which continues to hold at least that amount of equity at the
date the Offer s made, may purchase the shares of the Key Executives If such option i1s not
exercised, the Investor Shareholders must sell ther shares in Codere to the Key Executives at the
Option Price and the Key Executives shall be obliged to purchase those shares at the Option Price

Once the process 1s completed, Codere shall procure its de-listing through launching a de-hsting
public offer (OPA de exclusién) (a "Take Pnvate Offer") José Antonio Martinez Sampedro, Javier
Martinez Sampedro and certain other members of the Martinez Sampedro family have agreed not
to tender their holdings of shares of Codere in any such Take Private Offer Those shares acquired
by Codere as a result of the Take Private Offer sha!l! be reallocated to the participants in the New
Cash Notes

At the date of the present consolidated annual accounts the parties to the agreement are working
to define the final documentation for the restructuring operation and comply with all the conditions
agreed within the stipulated deadlines, it 1s not possible to determine whether the process will come
to a successful conclusion
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g} Stand-Still Agreement

At the same time as the Lock-Up Agreement, Codere and some of its subsidiaries have agreed the
terms of a separate standstill and cooperation agreement with the lenders under its senior facilities
agreement dated 1¢ October 2007 (as amended from time to time) which 15 now unconditional and
effective upon the effectiveness of the Lock-Up Agreement

Under this agreement, the lenders agree not take enforcement action in the contractually stipulated
events of default which already existed when the stand-stll agreement was signed or which might
anse dunng the Restructuring For its part, Codere undertakes pay monthly in advance the default
Interest and fees accrued by the senior facility

The agreement also provides for changes in ratio comphance requirements, which are altered as
follows

+ Aggregate earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) of the
Backstop Notes Parties (Note 19 b), calculated on an unconsolidated basis and excluding
inter-group items, must represent not less than 85% of the Group's consolidated EBITDA,
and

* Aggregate revenue of the Backstop Notes Parties (Note 19 b}, calculated on an
unconsolidated basis and excluding inter-group items, must represent not less than 75% of
the Group's revenue

At the end of 2014, the Codere Group complied with both these ratios
4 Accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expernence and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are beleved to be reasonable under the
circumstances

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and judgements
that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
habilities within the next financial year are addressed below

a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2 The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units (CGUs) have

been determined based on value-in-use calculations These calculations require the use of
estimates (note 13)
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To test for impawment, the Group estimates the future cash flows for each cash-generating unit
using forecasting models based on applicable operating, financial and macroeconomic indicators
The projections cover a five-year perniod From year 5, a terminal value 1s estimated assuming a
constant rate of growth in perpetuity The first year of the projection pernod is based on detalled
budgets approved by each unit for the next financial year, incorporating any changes arnsing as a
result of significant events occurnng after their approval The projections for the remaining years
are based on the performance that can reasonably be expected in accordance with the strategies
and plans defined by the Group for each of the markets in which it operates in accordance with
therr specific charactenstics and competitive landscapes

b) Corporate income tax

The Group 1s subject to iIncome tax in many tax junsdictions Significant judgement 1s required In
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 1s uncertain

The Group recognises habilities for anticipated tax audit 1ssues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these matters 1s different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the penod in which such determination 1s made

The Group recognises tax assets in respect of tax credits when there 1s convincing evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available for ther utiisation The Group tests these assets for
impawrment annually

In addition, in line with the dividend repatnation policy described in Note 3 ¢ 1), the Group
recognises a deferred tax hability associated with the temporary differences for investments in
subsidianes, branches or associates on the basis of its best estimate concerning the expected date
of reversal

c) Fair value of denvatives and other financial assets
The far value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market 1s determined by
using valuation techrniques The Group uses its judgement to select a vanety of methods and make
assumptions that are maimnly based on the market conditions prevailing at the end of each reporting
period

d) Provisions for hitigation and other contingencies
The Greup has made judgements and estimates in respect of the Iikelihcod of certain risks

materialising and the amount thereof, recognising a provision when the risk 1s considered hkely and
estimating the resulting cost
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e) Lawsuits in Italy, Mexico and Columbia

(1) Court of Auditors {Corte der Conti} and AAMS

On 10 May 2007 Lazio's Regional Court of Auditors (Corte dei Conti) requested the management
of the ltalan gaming authonty (herenafter, the “AAMS") and all gaming license holders, including
Codere Network S p A | to present evidence concerning the following matters

(a) Failure to mplement the IT network in the timeframe set This failure was onginally quantified
at 480 thousand euros

{b) Failure to activate the network in the timeframe set This fallure was onginally quantified at
1,200 thousand euros

(c} Failure to complete the connection of the network in the timeframe set This faillure was
onginally quantified at 1,778 thousand euros

(d} Falure to meet mimimum service level requirements This fallure was onginally quantified at
3,043,288 thousand euros

In 2013 and 2014, the key points with regard to these non-comphances and claims by the Court of
Audttors and the AAMS are

Claims presented by the AAMS

Following a series of legal proceedings, on 12 Janvary 2010 the Lazio Regional Administrative
Court (TAR Lazio) ruled against the various appeals lodged by the concessionaires including
Codere Network, S p A and upheld the fines imposed by the AAMS with regard to points (a), (b)
and {c) above, albeit reducing the total amount to 675 thousand euros Codere Network, Sp A
contested these new rulings before the State Council, which on 20 May 2011 1ssued a ruling in
which the three penalties imposed by the AAMS mentioned above were annulled In July 2011
Soger SpA (public corporation of the Ministry of Economy) filed an appeal as an affected third party
which had been held hable for the delay in the activation of the networks On 27 January 2014 the
ruling of the Council of State dismissing the appea! lodged by Sogelr was published, thereby
consolidating defimtively the decision of the appellate judge who declared the absence of an
evidence of legality in the concessionaires' conduct and annulled the first three penalties

With respect to the administrative proceedings concerning the non-compliance detailed in pont (d)
above, in February 2012 the AAMS deemed the proceedings to be concluded and notfied
concessionaires of the penalties, with the fine applicable to Codere Network, S p A totaling 2,730
thousand euros Following the appeal lodged by Codere Network on 17 June 2013, the Lazio
Regional Administrative Court 1ssued a ruling accepting Codere's appeal and annulling the fourth
penalty for non-compliance with section (d} On 28 January 2014 the AAMS appealed against the
ruling that annulled the penalty imposed referred to in section (d) The appeal hearing has been set
for 26 May 2015

On the basis of reports by its legal counsel, the Group's directors consider that there are sold
arguments for continuing with the appeals

34

N nnmm

[

1

I

by i

Al

T




CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{(Thousand euro)

Claims presented by the Court of Audifors

Concerning these same penaltes and the Court of Audiors, following a senes of legal
proceedings, on 11 Cctober 2010 1t 1Issued a ruling ordering the company Digit S p A (a non-profit
pubhc body) to carry out a technical study into the problems encountered by the concessionares
regarding activating the IT network (lack of telephone lines, the actions of the managers, elc ) and
the technical deficiencies of AAMS's central system in terms of the service that should be provided
by the concessionaires

The ruhng, which gave Digit S p A six moenths to carry out the study, contained the following man
points

- The Court rejected the tax authority's assessment of the non-compliance at 3,043,288
thousand euros

- It rejected the bid by the concessicnaires (including Codere Network S p A) to have the claim
declared void

On 10 October 2011, Digit S p A presented its expert report to the Court of Auditors indicating that
the concessionaires should not be held hable to pay the amount claimed by the tax authonty, and
stated that AAMS held the greatest llability for the absence of connection of the machines to the
concessionaires’ networks within the deadline set for the concession

However, on 17 February 2012 the Regional Office of the Council of State 1ssued a ruling ordering
the 10 concessionaires to pay a fine of 2,500 million euros, of which 115 million euros plus interest
pettained to Codere Network The concessicnates appealed agamst this ruling and at present the
enforcement of the judgement has been suspended

In addition, the tax authonty requested fines for Codere Network equivalent to 1% of the fine In
respect of breach of comphliance with point {d) above (30 million eures) and 50% of the amount of
the fine handed down in the ruling (57 5 million euros)

In October 2013, the Court of Auditors offered all the concessionares the option provided for in
italian law of terrminating the entire process through the payment of 30% of the amount of the
penalty (34 5 milhon euros in the case of Codere Network) Six of the ten concessionares tock
advantage of this possibility and paid 30% of ther penalties In the hearing in January 2014, two of
the remaining concessionaires requested the termination of the proceedings through the payment
of 10% One of them filed additional appeals within the proceedings The Court of Auditors decided
to offer the first of them a conciliation at 30% {payable in March 2014) The second concessionaire
1s awaiting the outcome of the new appeals For the other two concessionaires (including Codere
Network) a new hearning was set for 9 July, which was later deferred to 15 October 2014

Finally, in October 2014, Codere Network, Sp A filed the payment request with the Court of
Auditors and proceeded to pay 36,406 thousand euros, of which 34,500 thousand euros relates to
30% of the penalty and 1,906 thousand euros to the interest accruing since the date of the
judgement in first instance This payment has had an impact of 24,542 thousand euros on the 20114
income statement (11,864 thousand euros had been provided for})
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(n) Tax ittgation in Mexico
The main tax contingencies affecting Codere Mexico and its subsidiaries are as follows

. Codere Mexico and one of its subsidianies are currently undergoing an inspection for years
2008 and 2009 by the Mexican Tax Administratton Service, which is expected to conclude in
2015 In addition, in December 2014 a notification was received of the rejection of an appeal
filed by Codere Mexico in relation to the inspection assessment 1ssued in 2012 which
resulted from the disallowance of the deduction of certain losses due to exchange rate
fluctuations in 2008 To instigate nullity proceedings against the assessment, guarantees will
need to be presented to the Mexican Tax Administratton Service

. Clatm by the Mexican Tax Administration concerning an import of machines by Codere n
2009 and 2010 in which penalties are demanded due to the nonfulfilment of official Mexican
regulations on machinery imports

. Claim by the Mexican Tax Adrmunistration concerning the failure to pay gaming tax (IEPS) on
certain bank deposits

. Claim by the Finance Secretanat of the Federal District of Mexico n relation to the non-
payment of local tax on prizes paid and the incerrect reduction of the prizes in the calculation
of the tax base

The claims associated with these proceedings amount to a maximum of 57 5 million euros On the
basis of reports from its legal advisers, the Group's directors consider that the provisions made to
cover the nisks associated with the Mexican operations are sufficient and adequate (Note 18 1)

() Gaming taxes in Columbta

In the second half of 2009 the Codere Group agreed with the Colombian authorities to terminate a
dispute over gaming taxes in arcades operated by Codere and owned by third parties durning
financia!l years1995 tc 1997 Codere Colombia paid 1,700 milion Colombian pesos (0 6 milhon
euros) to the Colombian authornties under the agreement referred to in Article 77 of Law
1328/2009, whereby the Colombian tax authonties considered the case 1o be terminated,
confirming that Codere Colombia had complied with the applicable regulations

In May 2010, the Constitutional Court of Colombia ruled that article 77 of Law 1328 was
unconstitutional

In September 2013, the Counclil of State of Colombia reopened the proceedings On 19 December
2013, Codere Colombia filed an extraordmary appeal for review before the Council of State
requesting the annulment of the judgment against Codere Colombia Based on the opinion of the
Company's legal advisers, a provision was recorded at the end of 2013 to cover this nisk in the
amount of 4,300 millon Columbian pesos {(equivatent to 1 5 million euros at 31 December 2014)
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On 8 October 2014 Codere Colombia received notification of the admission of the extraordinary
appeal for review In the opinion of the Company's legal advisers, the admission of the appeal
improves the possibilites of a favourable ruling for the Company

f) Impacts of the Lock-Up Agreement in 2014

As a result of the Lock-Up Agreement described in Note 3 f), certain obligattons have ansen the
recognition of which at 31 December 2014 requires certain estimates, which are descnbed below

- Global Coordination Fee The LUA provides for a “coordination fee” payable wvia the
issuance of 2% of post-restructuring capital, also recognising that this fee covers services
rendered since May 2013

- First tranche of Warrants to Key Executives consisting of 5% of new shares whose 1ssue
price will be calculated based on a valuation by the Company which assumes the impheit
recovery of all the amounts owed to the existing bondholders before the restructuring 1s
completed

In both cases, and as the fair value of the services received cannot be reliably estimated, the best
reference 1s the fair value of the equity instruments granted

Concerning the Global Coordination Fee, the Group bases its best estimate on two valuation
reports by independent experts which conclude that the share price of the shares 1s not a vald
reference value For this reason, on the basis of these valuations, the Group has established a
range of equity values following the restructunng that vary from a negative figure of 111 milhion
eurcs to a positive figure of 64 million euros Various probabilittes have been allocated this range
until the recorded figure of 51 thousand euros has been arnved at as the expense accrued with
respect to this remuneration to 31 December 2014

In addition, referrning to the first tranche of warrants, the remote possibility of occurrence 1s taken
into account as a key vanable when determining their zero value

Finally, with reference to the second tranche of warrants described in Note 3 f, as the terms and
definitions relating to the parties that will be the beneficiaries of such remuneration have not been
defined, they have not been valued (although their exercise price will be similar to that of the first
tranche)

g) Significant non-controliing shareholdings

Due to the entry into force of IFRS 12, the Codere Group has defined as relatively significant non-
controlling shareholdings all those non-controlling shareholdings whose assets (assets being
understood as the percentage munonty interest in the aggregate assets of the sub-group in which
they hold an interest) represent more than 5% of the consolidated Group's total assets

In addition, other specific qualtative 1ssues will be taken into account such as the sensitvity of a
minonty interest to a specific shareholding, significant non-recurring impacts, etc , when defining a
material non-controlling interest These circumstances are reappraised by Management on an

annual basis
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Thousand euro

Condensed financial information on non- Icela SAPl de Grupo Caliente
controlling shareholdings at 31 December 2014 cv SAPlde CV

Intangible assets 182,136 97,839
Property, plant and equipment 158,471 38,527
Investment properties 70,451 -
Deferred tax assets 4,052 10,968
Other non-current assets 1 1,218
Cash and cash equivalents 12,542 1,998
Profit/{loss) for the year 11,247 (75,119)

5 Segment information

Operating segments are determined on the basis of the reports used by the Board of Directors to
make strategic decisions The Group segments its businesses by geographical region as well as by
activity Qperating businesses are organised and managed separately in each geographical area
where the Group operates, each country being a strategic unit of activity involved in a range of
activities and serving various markets

The Group manages its operations by business line and separately monitors the operating results
from gaming machines, bingo hails, betting establishments, casinos and head office expenses
Nevertheless, on occasions different types of operation converge within the same business line, as
gaming machines are alsc installed in bingo halls and casinos For this reason, the management
information used for taking operational decisions I1s based on consolidated profits in each segment,
as broken down In a} below

As 1t 1s not possible to separate the costs of these activities, the Group treats each geographical
area in which it operates as an operating segment

The main operating segments and their trading activities are

+ Span gaming machines, bingo halls, betting establishments and self-service terminals in food
and drink estabhshments

+ ltaly Gaming machines, gaming machine network operators and bingo halls

e Mexico bingo hall operations, including electronic bingo terminals and gaming machines In

Mexico, the Group also operates betting agencies, the Las Américas racetrack and the Centro

Banamex conference buillding

Argentina bingo halls with gaming machines

Colombia gaming machines, bingo halls and casinos

Uruguay Transactions of Casino Hotel Carrasco and holding in HRU

Panama racetracks, gaming machines, casinos and bething agencies

Brazil betung agencies

Head offices management and operational support services

* = & & & O
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a)Operating segments

Hepd Interpal
Income at 31 December 2043 Spain Maxica Argantina Colombla Itaty Uruguay Brazi Panama offices  pperations { } Tetal
Oparaling incoma
Révgrmg Irom gx06mal Gustomens 149 843 341 885 489 041 am 263 777 18 208 2789 BA 584 24 1385624
Inira-segment revanues 34,188 (34 108}
149 883 341888 483041 318 %3117 16,208 FEL] B8 504 M (M 1a8) 1385624
Qparaling axpenses
Depreciation and amortisaton {17 432) (58 368) (13 438) {4 238) (16 156; {2 735) {461 {11 401} {1208) (125 514)
Change n businass 0péraLcns. (1290) (1] 235 nn (40s) e (1 963)
Other oparabing axpanses 1128,953) 1788 184} (378,752} 23,373 257 498 (25550) {3225) (70.772) {80,876) 11,233,093)
(147 673) (323.558) (%2.107) [FEEIT] [FECE ) (78 700) {2.028) @) [ {1281 500}
Proliloss on reliremanl or disposal of
assots (2692) 62 L] {1 160) 1 3] [e] @Ban
Intra-sagment expanses. [3.34E) (8515) {16833 {1,102} {1,380} {83) 2,856, 34,198
OPERATING PROFITALOSS) 2.030) s.A% o8 1773 (11533) (10 554 (a7 3787 47 759) 20717
Enternal financial vneoma 151 ad 1" € 804 10 k] ks 683 am
Inira segment financial iIncome A7 356 (47 358)
Extarnal financial szpanses (32249 (8041 14 o38) (260) (rn 12 855) (4] (@58) (113447} (132 680)
inler segment finance costs (73) {37 041) (1.558) 53 {3953} 464y {3 207 613 AT 358
Change s 1ivesiment (Wovisons 15 235) (10058} {15484}
Net gainsiflosses) on exchanga (8720 (B 788) 27 T {163) 6% 17,566) (45 BES)
NET FINANCIAL INCOME/{(EXFENSE) {3 148) (63 434) 15.340) " 14.228) 74370 13847y 235 (92783 (190 742)
PRCFIT/(LOSS) 8EFORE INCOME TAX 8976) (33 954 o 1858 [1ER] (10381) {7y 35M {140 £24) (189 36%)
Corporate meome tax 1922) (11 762) (33078) (8751 5088 (L) {524) 1020 207 140 88%)
Ecquity mathod 1) (1333 3108 2041
PROFIT/LGSS) FOR THE YEAR {7 oo8) (88 324 11522 L1 (10 784) {15 330) {3208 454 {140,322) (207 &3
CONSOLUIDATED PROFIT / {LOSS)
Alinbutabls to
External shareholders aso (28 870) 680 10 1668 © 057 a1 134 878)
Parent campany sharehcklers {aT48) (35,8511 30 8d2 974 {12882} 16,273} 5 268) 4,103 4140322y {173,005
CCONSCLICATED PROFITHLOSS) {T.080) (88 321} ELESH . {10734} (15 330) (5 260) e {140 372) (207 83Y)

{ }intaenal lransactons are camed out at marked prices and congspond mardy 10 axpensas meutred Dy paren! companas on behalf of (he other Group companas
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

{Thousand suro}

ncorme staternent at 31 December 201

Operaling meoma
Revanue trom gxiemal cusiomers.
inira segmant revenues

Operabng axpenses
Depracialion and amartsation
Change m business operabons
Other gparating axpansas

Profitloss on retiremant or disposal of assets

Inira-segment expanses

OPERATING PROFIT/LQOSS)

External inancial income

intra segmanl financial ncome

Extarnal financial expenses.

Inler Begman hinanca costs

Change in investmant provisions

Nal gains/{iosses) on axchange

NET FINARCIAL INCOME/{EXPENSE)
PROFITKLOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

Corporata income tax.
Equily mathod

PROFITALOSS) FOR THE YEAR
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT / (LOSS)
Atnbulatie to

External sharehokiers

Paranl company sharghoiders

CONSOLIDATED PROFITALOSS)

Head interna)
$pain Maxica Argentina Caolombia haly Yruguay Brazit Panama oHices  gperations{] Total
151 602 182 365 584 602 34001 258 810 16407 2892 90 280 27 1520778
e — [P — ). I 38 J—
151 802 382 %S 584692 001 258510 15 407 2592 B0 280 29 689 {30 662} 1510 778
(@3 778) (68 786) (17 008) (4 T43) {17 654 (2 518} N [13380) 1.320) (149572}
(ozn 143 (883) 163) (285) 1 {2116)
131 408 {321,629) 1450 816) 29, 220) (251 244) (38.772) 3,589 (12678) 77,820) 1379 147
(158.214) (390 42%) (470 524) (23 820} 1209 750 (41 353) {4 188) (6 374) (78 033) (1531 53%)
(1129 [I834) (489) (733} {542) {0y (58 {138} (6 468}
16,774} 15,456) (20326) (1,243} [ik41) (165) {2,981} 38662
1z (18 350) [TE T 4 795) (43 499) 28 120) 11294 920 (39 388) (17248}
a7 1340 513 E] 1818 &7 B 228 5067
45434 (45 434
(2 884} (12 735) (17 201) (496} (600) (2018} 1 {1 262) (102 a1t} (140 488)
18 (34 569) [1484) az (2 963} nen {3852) (743) 4543
el (re) 2183 (2 909} (826)
{b76) (10470 (168 (3,305) (189} EL.ES 5,683 (8,755)
nwnn {50,033 (28,a88) [Cu] (1749 (5447 (3850 REY 153 5389 (145 000)
(14 288} {6u 383 87320 12382y (13 244) {30 568) (5 t44) 1528) (92 047) (162 248)
{209) (19917} (18 781) (436} 2052 2130y (5151 (15001 {158} {45 359)
1398) 27130 234
14 474) 188385 48,537 (2873 117 s34} (29 pea} (5,859) L4l (93 106) {205.273)
493 (18 843) 678 45 835 {16151} 907y {31850)
{14 963 {21,722) A7 ps0 [e2120] {18 525) {13,808) {5 858) {808) 3,106) 1173816}
{14 424 [LTRTEY a5y (20283 (17 894) (29 948y {5.459) (1718} {93 106) 1205.273}

( ) Intemal transactans are camad out al markel pnces and comespond mainly 1 @xpangas incurrad by parent companias an behall of the clher Group companias

reg i
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CODERE, 8§ A AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Thousand euro)

lance a embel 4 Spain Mexico Argentina Colombia Maty Uruguay Brazil Panama Head offices Total

Intangible assets 36921 279 975 84 11 11 45 320 150 128 21510 27N 471 098
Property plant ang equipment 49 512 197 000 40 900 12 430 19 886 2757 6518 14 815 747 368 B65
Googwill 21478 B3 078 23248 50 820 - - 28939 - 207 561
Investment properties 70 453 - - - - - - 70 451
Equity method investmeant (a) - - {64} 12 ag7 - - 12415
Non-current financial assels 483 1228 4272 27 6293 - - 5372 3692 25716
Deferrad 1ax assets g108 15018 3963 521 11 882 - - 813 7 567 486713
Olher non-current assets - - - - - - -
Curmrent assets 20 641 149 578 9025 4 §84 88 327 10 487 769 17 422 36 807 334 730
TOTAL ASSETS 142 434 796 319 195 417 17,673 189 464 55 881 1 806 B8 671 51 584 1539 309
Deferred Incomea - - - - 17 17
Pravisions 815 16 290 5189 1564 8369 1438 - 33 465
Long temm payables 41344 149 773 12023 1329 19 799 29121 $978 3 263 370
Current habiries 53240 183 487 54 945 5022 40727 19 561 3222 23025 1291 078 1674207

QTAL LIABILITIES 95 19% 349 550 72157 7915 68 895 48,682 3,222 34 441 1291098 1971 159
QTHER INFORMATION
Investments in property plant and 14775 21,664 G 688 1,890 5,765 1,544 157 2 509 259 55 251
equipmant
Intangible assets 5007 - 35 - 1783 8 B - 226 7 065
Property planl Bnd equ:pment 9768 21664 6653 1890 3982 135336 149 2509 k] 48 186
Expenses that do not represent cash 5098 1 1720 1117 1458 1 g9 9 604
outflows

(*) Internal transactions are carried out at market prices and correspond mainly to expenses incurred by parent comganies on behalf of the other Group

companies
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CODERE, § A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

{Thousand euro)

(] Balance at 31 December 2013

Intangible assets

Property plant and equipment
Goodwill

Investment properiies

Equity method investment
Nen-gurrent financial assels
Deferred tax assets

Other nen-current assets
Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Deferred income
Provisions

Leng term payables
Current habilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OTHER INFORMATION
(nvesiments in property plant and
aquipment

Intangible assets

Propery plant and equpment
Expenses that do nol represent cash
outflows

( ) Intarnal transactions are camed out at market prces and corespand mainly 1o expenses mourmed by parent campames on bahalf of the olher Group eompangs

{_JFiqures restaled under IFRS 11

42

Spain Mexico Argenting Colombia Italy Uruguay Hrazll Panama Head offices Total
38385 291 893 102 227 - 50712 290 849 23501 3621 511178
53 185 224 692 51662 18 084 24 989 38853 732 17 152 1056 430 405
21 865 82479 26 847 - So821 - 25477 207 489

- 72229 - - - 72229

- - - [ 11570 - 11 666

5443 1439 3145 30 §530 - - 3665 2348 22 600
9257 17 1861 3546 682 6345 - 793 2664 46 148
25 890 142 258 47709 5745 53848 11529 664 16274 45 675 349 530
154 025 B32 149 235 136 24 541 193,341 62,242 2045 86,862 61 564 1,651,905
30 - - - - - 45 5

608 17 652 5558 1674 20837 - - 2215 - 48 342

42 714 160 314 3890 2146 23228 35 552 - 144 967 235 1239601
58 048 191 845 81755 6676 45792 8187 2784 21005 150 560 567 451
192 400 359 611 91 301 10 496 BO 658 43 739 2734 37 641 1,117 840 1 855 470
13 205 T472 24 630 111 12,220 16,777 50 816 401 76 702
4328 12142 11 5808 268 15 - 382 24 074
8877 7472 12488 - 6412 16 509 35 816 19 52,628
2758 3648 28509 740 507 101 16 138 10 527
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NQOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

b) Lines of business

The Group does not have available a breakdown of crdinary income from non-Group customers for
each product and service

6 Business combinations and changes in the scope of consolidation
a) Business combinations

al) FY 2014

During 2014 no business combinations have been carrned out

a2) FY2013

During 2013 there were no business combinations except for the purchase of Royal Jackpot for150
thousand euros

The contingent payment associated with the business combination of DP Services, Sri_in
December 2013 was paid in the amount of 2,488 thousand euros The 879 thousand euro
difference with respect to the imitial figure recognised was accounted for under Other operating
expenses

b) Changes in the scope of consohdation

b1) 2014

The main changes to the scope of consolidation in 2012 are as foliows

- In January 2014 Carrasco Nobile, S A increased its capital by 1,427 thousand euros The
increase was subscnbed by both shareholders

- Codere Apuestas Cuenta, S L was incorporated on 21 January 20114
- Codere Apuestas Catalufia, S L was incorporated on 15 April 2014
- Codere Puerto Rico was hiquidated on 16 Apnl 2014

- In Apnl 2014 1ICELA SAPI de CV reduced capital by an amount equivalent to 4,630
thousand euros and reimbursed funds to its shareholders

- Codere Sagunto, S L was incorporated on 21 May 2014

- On 9 June 2014, the Group sold its holding in Resur Cadiz, SL, generating a loss of 960
thousand euros

- InJuly 20114 Openbenca, S A absorbed Codere Madnd, S A, Codere Barcelona, S A, Codere
Valencia, S A, Recreativos Mae, S L and Recreativos Populares, 5 L

- On 8 July 2014, the Group reduced its holding in Codere Interattiva ltalia, SRL from 100% to
34% The company changed its name to HippoBingo Firenze, SRL

- On 11 July 2014 the Mexican compantes Calle Icela Sapi de CV and Hotel Icela Sapi de CV
were incorporated, in which Codere México, SA de CV holds a 49% interest These
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CODERE, 5.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

companies engage in the construction and operation of hotels, restaurants, exhibition centres
and conference centres They are consolidated by the equity method

- Codere Apuestas La Rigja, S L was incorporated on 22 July 2014
- Codere Apuestas Extremadura, S L was incorporated on 12 September 2014

- On 7 November 2014 Recreativos Ruan, S L and Gistra, S L de QOperibernca were demerged
and contributed to Codere Sagunto SL U

- 0On 12 November 2014 Codere Finance {UK) Limited was incorporated as part of the scheme
of arrangement provided for 1n Enghsh company law the purpose of which 1s to obtain judicial
authonsation to implement the restructunng (Note 3 f)

- Codere Apuestas Castilla Leon, S L was incorporated on 20 November 2014

- The percentage Interest in King Bingo, Srl and King Slot, Srl was increased from 75% to
85% on 18 December 2014 The acquisition price of the 10% holding was 1,500 thousand in
each company

- On 26 December 2014 the percentage interest in Juegamax de las Amernicas S A de CV and
Impulsora Recreativa de Entretemimiento was increased from 43 25% to 84,8%% The

operation amounted to 3,948 thousand euros

- On 26 December 2014 the percentage interest was decreased from 84 8% to 49% in Centro de
Convenciones las Amérnicas S A de CV and Hotel Entretenimiento de Las Américas S A de CV,
following which these companies will be consohdated by the equity method

in January 2015, Codere subscribed a capital increase by Carrasco Nobile, S A which increased
its percentage interest in this company (Note 28)

b2) 2013

Changes in the scope of consolidation in 2013 were as follows

- On 1 January 2013 Operbingo ltaha, S P A absorbed Bingos Oasis, SR L, Bingo Re, SRL,
immobilgest, SRL, Maxibinge, SRL, Opergames, SRL, Opennvestments, SRL,
Operslots Italia, SR L and Winner Bet, SR L

- On 1 January 2013 Codere Italia, S P A absorbed Codestrada, SR L, Gaming New, SR L
and Opergiochi italia, SR L

- On 1 January 2013 Gaming Re, S R L absorbed Gaming Service, SRL
- Codere Alicante, S L was incorporated on 25 February 2013

- On 15 March 2013, the Group acquwred 51% of the shares of Royal Jackpot SrlL for 150
thousand euros

- On 27 May 2013 Codere Interactiva S|. ceased to hold an interest of 49% in Codere
Interattiva Italia S RL which was acquired by Operbingo ltalia S P A, increasing its interest
from 51% to 100%

44

Wi

|

[]]

A

s

A o

i
H

|

A

iHH“H“i




—n

L

CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

N

- On 23 July 2013 Codere Gandia S A, which held shares in the Group companies Rospay
SLU and Pnmer Continente SL U, was sold The sale generated a loss of 137 thousand
euros

- On 30 July 2013, the Group sold its holding in Codere Navarra S L, generating a loss of 635
thousand euros

- Codere Apuestas Castilla la Mancha, S A was incorporated on 13 November 2013

i

- Codere Servicios Compartidos S A was incorporated on 22 November 2013

- Codere Servicios, S L was incorporated on 17 December 2013

In January and June 2013 the shareholders of Carrasco Nobile increased capital by 871 thousand
euros and 1,112 thousand euros, respectively Each shareholder contributed the corresponding
percentage, thus being 49% n the case of minonty shareholders

"
‘-1;

7 Intangible assets

]

The breakdown and movements on the "Intangible assets" accounts were as follows —
FY 2014 Thousand eure JE——
Balance at Disposa Transfers/Reclassi Translation Balance at [
Costs 31/12/2012 Additions Is fications differences 31122014 sttt
R |
Licenses 369 386 16 (277) 223 (13,183) 356,165 I
Trademarks 35734 4 - - 248 35,986 ——
Rights 193,672 5,996 {10 909) {75) 6083 184,747 -
Computer software 37,845 2,359 (1,856) (60) {95) 38,193 s
Other intangible assets 22,483 615 {818) (88) 73 22,165 r————
659,120 8,990 (13,960} - (6,894) 647,256 r—
— 08/.&a0 e
—
m————
Accumulated Balance at Disposa Transfers/Reclass] Translation Balance at
amortisation 31/12/2013 Additions Is fications differences 31/12/2014 P
e
Licenses (26 500) {11412) 11 (123) 1,083 (36941) [
Rights (87 142) (21,147} 10,889 1,583 {2,896) (98 703) [
Computer scftware (23,851) (3 852) 529 (1,470) (333) (28 977)
Other intangible assets {4 286) {2,047} 193 - {1} (6,141)
{141,779) {38,458) 11,622 - (2,147) (170,762)
Provisions (6,163) - 767 - - (5,396)
Net carrylng amount 511,178 {29,468) {1,5T1) - (9,041) 471,098

Additions under Computer software mainly relate to the acquisitions in ltaly, Panama and Spain

The disposals under Rights mainly reflect the derecognition of rnights in Spain as a result of the
reduction in the number of machines in operation in the course of 2014
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

FY 2013 Thousand euro

Balance at Translation Balance at
Costs 31/12/2012 Additions Disposals differences 31/12/2013
Licenses 411884 10,086 - (62 584) 369 386
Trademarks 37,501 4 - (1.771) 35724
Rights 204,579 18,205 (24,442) {4,670) 193,672
Computer saftware 36,135 2767 (103) {954) 37,845
Cther intangible assets 23,211 321 {368) {681) 22,483
Total 713,310 31,383 (24,913) (60,660) 659,120

Balance at Translation Balance at
Accumulated amortisation 21/12/2012 Additions Disposals differences 31/12/2013
Licenses. (20,832) (9,993) - 4,325 {26,500}
Rights (78 763) (25 081) 13,757 2,945 (87 142)
Computer software (20 378) (4 508) 35 1000 (23 851)
Cther intangible assets {2 354) (2.094) 36 126 {4 286)
Total (122,327) {41,676) 13,828 8,396 {141,773)
Provisions {2,568) {3,598) 23 - (6,163)
Net carrying amount 588,395 {13.891) (11,062) (52,264) 511,178

The additions under "Licences” correspond primanly to the extension of five bingo operating
licences Iin Buenos Aires province, the concessions for which will expire between 2016 and 2021

The addiions under "Rights" are mainly due to the acqusition of new VLTs machine licenses
granted in Italy in 2013, which extend to 2022

The disposals under “Rights” mainly reflect the derecognition of rights in Spain as a result of the
reduction in the number of machines in operation in the course of 2013

The provision relates to the impairment of Internet Spamn, as detalled in Note 13

7 a) Other information

The only intangible assets held by the Group with an indefimte usefut ife are non-amortisable
installation nghts and brands, in the amounts of 50,603 thousand euros at 31 December 2014 and
50,401 thousand euros at 31 December 2013

The Group considers that brands and non-amortisable installation rights have an indefinite useful

life as these assets have no legal or any other type of imit They are tested for imparment at least
annually and whenever there 1s any indication that they may be have become imparred
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

The brands and non-amortisable installahon rights are broken down below by cash-generating unit

2014 2013

Non-amortisable Non-amortisable

Trademarks instailation rights Trademarks installation rights

Spain 1,328 14,518 1,325 14,667
Mexico 34,657 - 34,409 -
35,985 14,618 35,734 14,667

The intangible assets that are individually stgnificant to the financial statements are descnbed
below, along with their carrying amounts and remaining amortisation periods

Remaining amortisation

Asset type Carrying amount period
Gaming room licences, Argentina 83,779 Between 5 and 15 years
Casinos licences, Panama 20,507 Between 8 and 9 years
Gaming room licences, Mexico 219,984 Between 18 and 32 years
Gaming machine concession licences, ltaly 17,707 Between 8 and 10 years

At 31 December 2014, the Group had no material commitment to acquire or sell intangible assets
8 Property, plant and equipment and investment properties

The breakdown and movements on the "Property, plant and equipment” accounts were as follows

A

SN

FY 2014 Thousand euro i
Balance at Dispos Transfers/iRecl Translation Balance at -
Cost 31H2/2013 Additions als assifications. differences 31/12/2014 —
Leisure machines 229 364 26 671 {23 818) - {5 368) 226 821 =
Gaming and sports betting machines 21,979 2804 (953) - (29) 23 801 -
Furmilure fithngs and equpment 86 481 3614 (3 380) {38) {1044) 85633 —
Computer hardware 35457 1889 (3,344) 1 254 34,257 -
Prepayments and PFE under —
construction 1564 7 760 (1135} (2 398) 9 5782 o
Vehicles 5301 305 (1024) - (52) 4530 -
Land 13922 81 {27) - (415) 13 561 -
Structures and builldings 210 256 19 (4 038) 241 {622) 2035 656 -
Work dene to leased premises 220,989 5178 (1275) 2194 {1421) 225665 ————
Plant and machinery 86 725 2 365 {4 782) - (473) 63 835 e
Total 892,038 50,686 (43,774) - {9,409) 889541 —
_— —— oy
Balance at Dispos Transfers/Recl Translation Balance at ——-’
Accumulated amortisation 311212013 Additions als assifications differences 3111242014 T——
Leisure machines (156 909) (34 752} 22 475 3180 1439 (164 567)
Gaming and sports betbng machines (12 202) (2 591) 867 {1633) 19 (15 540) =
Furriture filtings and equipment (46 244) (8 801) 3,054 (4 249) 506 (55 734) -
Cemputer hardware (35,428) [393n) 3058 - (422) (36,728) -
Vehicles 3771) (559) 699 m 30 (3 602) —_
Structures and bulldings (50 651) (9 203) 2,145 - 403 (57 306) —
Work done to leased premises (79 144) (19 645} 1,065 96 (251) (97 879) T —
Plant and machinery (49 480) (5 006} 1614 2607 54 (50 214) ——
Total (433.829) (84,494) 34,974 - 1,778 (481,571} —
Provisions (27,804) {12 006) 505 - - (39 305) I
Net carrying amount 430,405 368 665
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

Additions under Leisure machines mamnly include machine acquisiions in Icela, Argentina, and
Spamn as a result of upgrading the stock of machines

The decreases under Leisure machines mainly reflect the rotation of machines in operation in
Mexico and Columbia in the course of 2014

Additions under Provisions in 2014 relate to the impairment of assets corresponding to the halls
closed in Mexico The re-opening of these halls at the date of these consolidated financial
statements is regarded as remote {Note 28)

FY 2013 Thousand euro
Transters/Re
Cost Balance at Dispos classificatio Translation Balance at
3111242012 Additions als ns differences 311 2/2013
Leisure machines 269,167 17,891 (26 227) 43 {31 510) 229 384
Gaming and sports beting machines 20852 2003 (875) - (1) 21,979
Furniture fithings and equipment 90 398 4428 {1,108) (3607) {3629) 86 481
Computer hardware 35039 4101 (663) {(670) {3 350) 35 457
Prepayments and PPE under construction 55 461 2061 - {52 371) {3 587) 1564
Vehicles 65431 33z (902) (165) (385) 5301
Land 14 991 400 (325) - {1,144) 13 922
Structures and buddings 312 958 2046 (6 113) {88 886) {9 749) 210 256
Work done to leased premises 187 366 11,891 (1,802) 41218 (17 684} 220 989
Plant and machinery 75239 2,265 (2 260) (732) (7 787) 66 725
Total 1,068 502 47,418 (40,2786) {105,170) {78,826) B892 038
Transfars/Re
Accumulated amortisation Balance at Dispos classificatio Translation Balance at
31/12/2012 Additions als ns differences 31/12/2013
Leisure machines (148 942} {48 632) 22,498 - 18,167 {156,009)
Gaming and speris beiling machines {10517) (2 098) 413 - {12 202)
Furniture fithings and equipmeni {40973} {11 581) 859 3009 2442 (46 244)
Computer hardware {35 130) (4 833) 723 1317 2485 {35 428)
Vehicles (4 451) (593) 740 82 451 (3771)
Structures and buildings {62 628) {10 ¢10) 1,672 17 931 2,384 (50,651)
Work done to leased premises {66 908) {22 453) a55 3228 6034 (79 144)
Plant and machinery {49 669) (6 064) 1573 (67} 4,747 (4% 480)
Total (419,218) (106,264) 29,433 25,500 36,720 {433,829)
Prowisions (14 278) (13,431) {95) {27,804)
Nat carrying amount 635 406 430,405

At 31 December 2013heading "Provisions” mainly reflects, in the amount of 12,972 thousand
euros, the decline in value of tangible fixed assets recorded in Colombia at the end of 2009, in
addition to the impairment of the Hotel-Casine Carrasce in Uruguay, amounting to 13,400 thousand
euras

Transfers under "Prepayments and PPE under construction” in 2013 relate mainly to ongoing
works completed in the Hotel Casino-Carrasco in Uruguay which was opened in March 2013
Additionally, transfers reflect the reclassification of the Banamex Centre from Property, plant and
equipment to Investment property

Additions under Leisure machines mamly include machine acquisitions in Argentina, ltaly and
Spain as a result of upgrading the stock of machines

Disposals of Leisure machines relate mainly to Spain, Columbia, Panama and Italy
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

At 31 December 2014 and 2013 the value of assets acquired under finance leases was as follows

{(in thousand euro}
Thousand euro

2014 2013

Accumulated Net carrying Accumulated Net carrying

Cost depreciation amount Cost depreciation amount

Leisure machines 18,985 (B,645) 10,340 63,269 (34,708) 28,561
Plant and machinery 10,637 (9,941} 6496 10,534 (9,218) 1,316
Computer hardware 1,510 (842) 668 1,346 (497) 849
Vehicles 260 {233) 28 178 (146) 32
Total 31,392 {19,661) 11,732 75,327 (44,569} 30,758

The muinimum payments under the finance leases and the calculation of the present value of the
future mimimum payments are detalled in note 19 a 3)

The Group leases certain assets under operating leases These leases correspond mainly to
premises rented or operated under concessions in each of the Group's operating markets,
including head offices, the premises where it operates gaming activities, car parks, etc In most
cases, the cost of these leases increases In line with inflation These lease arrangements do not
impose any restrnictions on the Group The lease expenditure charged to the income statement
during 2014 and 2013 corresponding to operating leases totals 109,530 thousand euros and
118,502 thousand euros, respectively (Note 23} Lease contracts mature in three to 10 years

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases on
business premises, administration offices and vehicles at year-end 2013 are as follows

Thousand euro

Total future

Within 1 year Between 1 and § years More than 5 years payments

Total non-cancellable ohligations 17,980 37 669 - 55,650

In 2014 the Group did not capitalise any borrowing costs (252 thousand euros in 2013} under PPE
under construction in connection with construction of the Carrasco casino hotel

Lease on the Banamex Conference Centre

The Group signed an agreement with CIE whereby the latter group will operate the Convention
Centre owned by ICELA for a penod of six years commencing on 1 June 2013 As a result of this
agreement, the amounts relating to the Banamex Centre were reclassified from Property, plant and
equipment to tnvesiment property in 2013 This reclassification was recorded in the "Transfers”
column of the movement in PPE

This agreement entatls an annual fee of 113 million pesos (6 3 million euros) payable monthly, plus

25% of the positive difference between the actual income each year and the contractually
stipulated hmit, which stands at 340 milion pesocs for the first year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS r——

(Thousand euro) S

———

R

B

\

The estimated future mimmum lease payments under this contract are as follows ‘

- 1 year 9 million euros —

-2to 5 years 41 milhon euros ——

- From 6 years 11 milhon euros ——

Furthermore, the Group 1s committed to making annual minmum mvestments of 15 millon ————

Mexican pesos (approximately 1 millon euros) at the Banamex centre —

Movements in Investment property 1s as follows N

FY 2014 Balance at Translation Balance at _—:

Cost 31/12/12013 Additions Disposals differences 311212014 remeratper]
Leisure machines 1 - - {n -

Furniture fitings and equipment 3,937 145 - 28 4110 D —

Computer hardware 1037 71 - 7 1,115 :

Vehicles 155 - {85) 1 7 [

Structures and bulldings 86,610 - - 624 87 234 T—

[

Work dene to leased premises 4,674 689 - 34 4777 .|

Plant and machinery 903 61 - 8 971 ———

e

Tota! 97,317 346 (83) 700 98,278 vt

J———

N

Balance at Translation Balance at e

|

Accumulated depreciation 3111272013 Additions Disposals differences 3111212014 =
Fumiture fitungs and equipment (2,969) (197) - (22) (3 188)

Computer hardware (598) (203) - {3) {804) .

Vehiclas (96) (20} 59 ()] (58) J—

Structures and bulldings {19 563) (1,950} - (198) (21,711) T

Work done to leased premises {1,192) {135) - (8) (1335) R

Plant and machinery {670} (57) - (5} (731) ———

Total (25,088) (2.562) 59 {236) {27,827) R

Net carrylng amount 72,229 70,451 —

R

e rr—t————

——

——

—

————

———

——re—

e

R ———)

Jo———
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

{Thousand euro)

Cost

Leisure machines

Furniture, fittngs and equipment
Computer hardware

Vehicles

Structures and bulldings

Work done to leased premises
Plant and machinery

Accumulated depreciation
Furniture fitings and equipment
Computer hardware

Vehicles

Structures and buildings

Work done to leased premises
Plant and machinery

Net carrying amount

9 Investments in equity-method companies

Cost Transfers Trans Cosi
311212 Additions differences 311272013
- 1 - - 1
4,266 2 (331} 3,937
1,123 1 {87) 1,037
168 - (13) 155
93,901 {7.,291) 86,610
4,902 158 (386} 4,674
- 809 162 {68) 903
- 105,170 323 {8,176} 97,317
Accumulated Accumulated
depreciation Transfers Trans depreciation
311212012 Additions differences 31/12/2013
- (3,070) (143} 244 {2,969)
- (513) (127} 44 (598)
- (83) (20} 7 (96)
(19,847) (1,213} 1,587 (19,563)
- (1,212} (77) 97 {1,192)
- (673) (51) 54 (670)
(25,500) {1,631} 2,043 (25,088)
- 72,229

Entities with which joint ventures are maintained are listed in Appendix | At 31 December 2014, the
Group companies with which joint ventures have been arranged are Hipica Rioplatense Uruguay,
S A, New Joker, Sl (these two companies as a result of the application of IFRS 11), Hotel Icela
Sapi de CV, Calle Icela Sapi de CV, Centro de Convenciones Las Americas S A de CV and Hotel
Entreterimiento Las Amencas S A de CV At 31 December 2013, joint ventures were in operation

with Hipica Rioplatense Uruguay S A and New Joker, S|

FY 2014
Equity method investmenis

EFY 2013

Equity method investments

i

T

T

T

!

!

A

Balance at Translation Balance at "—:
31/12/2013 Additions Disposals differences 31/12/2014 —
11 666 1184 - (435} 12,415 —_
11,666 1,184 - (435) 12,415 —
Balance at Translation Balance at Tm—
31/12/2012 Additions Disposals differences 31/12/2013 .
12 407 602 - (1,343) 11,666 -
12,407 602 - (1,343) 11,666 r——
P

—m———
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e

PR———
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Summarised financial information on significant joint ventures 1s as follows

Joint ventures

Hipica Rioplatense

2014 Uruguay, S A New Joker, SRL Total
Non-current assets 51,284 3,184 54,468
Fixed assets and intangibles 44,303 3,155 47,458
l.ong-term investments 98 8 106
Deferred taxes 6,883 21 6,904
Current assets 8,589 661 9,250
Current assets 8,108 336 8,444
Cash and cash equivalents 481 325 806
TOTAL ASSETS 59,873 3,845 63,718
Non-current habilities (21,562) (2,878) {24,440)
Deferred taxes (100) (104) (204)
MNon-current payables {21,462) (2,774) (24,236)
Non-current financial assets - - -
\ Current habilities (13,260} (1,195) {14,455)
Short-term payables (8,843) {1,195) (10,038)
Current financiai habihties (4.417) - (4417
TOTAL LIABILITIES (34,822) (4,073} {38,895}
‘ Operating ncome 47,847 4,389 52,236
‘ Operating expenses (38,345) (4,809) (43,154)
‘ Operating profit/{loss) 9,502 (420) 6,082
‘ Financial income - - -
Other interest and similar expenses {2,072) - (2,072)
‘ Financial expenses (1,563) - {1,563)
Net financial income/{expense) {3,635) - {3,635)
| Corporate income tax 344 21) 323
Profit/(loss) for the year 6,211 (441) 5770

company, whose main activity consists of horse racing through the operation, holding and use of
the Marofias National Race Course and the las Piedras Race Course en Uruguay, and the
operation of horse-racing agencies, as well as the operation of gaming arcades HRU follows a
policy of dividend distnbuticn which 1s subordinate to s financial debt payment commitments,
which 1s mainly structured in issues of bonds totalling 25,879 thousand euros, of which 4,417
thousand euros 1s short term

\
‘ The investment in Hipica Rioplatense Uruguay, S A (HRU) relates to a 50% holding in this
|
i

I

The investment in New Joker, s r| consists of a 30% shareholding 1n that company, which mamnly
engages in the management and operation of a bingo hall in Rome There are no restrictions on
the distnbution of dividends by the Company

H ]

The breakdown of goodwill by cash-generating umt (CGU) at year-end 2014 and 2013 and the

|
|
\
‘ 10 Goodwill
|
‘ movements on this account during the years then ended (thousand euro) are as follows
\
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

{Thousand euro)

FY 2014

Spain
Argentina
ltaly
Panama {*)
Mexico

Total

Thousand euro

Balance at Translation Balance at
31/12/2013 Addihons Disposals Impairment differences 31/12/2014
21,864 (387} - 21,477
26,845 - (3,601) 23,244
50,819 . - 50,819
25,478 - 3460 28938
82,483 - - 600 83083
207,489 (387) 459 207,561

Disposals 1in 2014 relate to the demerger of Ruan,S L between Openbenca,S AU and Codere
Sagunto,S L U (Note 6 b) and the sale of Resur Cadiz,S L

FY 2013

Spain
Argentina
kaly
Panama (*)
Mexico

Total

Thousand euro

Figures restated under IFRS 11

Batance at Translation Balance at
322012 Additions _ Disposals Impalrment differences 31/12/2013
23,513 - {1 649) - 29 864
37,197 - - - (10 352) 26 845
66,563 256 (16,000) - 50 819
26,630 - - {1,152) 25,478

151 194 (24,330) (4,381) 82 483
265,097 256 (1,648) (40,330} {15,885) 207,489

Additions in 2013 relate to the acquisition of the Itallan company Royal Jack Pot, S r |

Disposals in 2013 mainly relate to goodwill of Codere Gandia and Codere Navarra {(Note 6 b)

In 2013 an impairment loss of 40,330 thousand euros was recognised for the Mexico and ltaly

cGu

Goodwill at cost and the accumulated amortisation thereon at 31 December 2014 and 2013 1s
broken down by cash generating unit as follows

FY 2014

Spain
Argentina
ltaly
Panama
Mexico

Thousand euro

Impairment losses

Cost 2012 and prior years 2013 2014 Net
carrying

amount

100,805 (79,327) - - 21478
23,246 - - - 23,246
112,013 (45,193) {16,000) - 50,820
28,939 - - - 28,939
107,408 - (24,330} - 83,078
372,411 (124,520) (40,330) 207,561
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Thousand euro)

Theousand euro

Impairment losses

Cost 2011 and prior years 2012 2013 Net

carrying

FY 2013 amount
Spain 101,192 (4,115} (75,212) - 21,865
Argentina 26,847 - - - 26,847
ltaly 112,014 (45,193) - (16,000) 50,821
Panama 25,479 - - - 25,477
Mexico 106,809 - - (24,330) 82,479
372,339 (49,308) (75,212) (40,330) 207,489

11 Non-current financial assets

The halances under this heading at 31 December 2014 and 2013 and the movements in the years

then ended break down as follows

FY 2014 Thousand eurco
Balance
at
Jnzzm Transiation Balance at
Item 3 Additions  Disposals __ Transfers differences 3112/2014
Loans and recewvables 17,213 35650 (2,867) - 195 18,001
Investments held to
maturity 5,387 1,288 (1,027) - 536 6,184
Other financial assets - 1,391 - - 50 1.441
22,600 6,229 (3,894) - 781 25,716

At 31 December 2014 the most significant individual movement in Investment held to matunty
occurred in Codere S A, in relation to the investment in Uruguayan Bonds

FY 2013 Thousand euro
Balance
at
3112201 Disposal Translation Balance at
Item 2 Additions s  Transfers differences 31/12/2013
Loans and recewvables 18,533 3,608 {3,681) - (1,247} 17,213
Investments held to
matunty 6 091 2,170 (2,864) - (10} 5 387
Other financial assets 12,439 - - {12,533) 94 -
37,063 5,778 (6,545) {12,533) {1,163) 22,600

Transfers 1n 2013 included the reclassification to short term of the purchase option on 15 2% of
Icela's stock which expired June 2014 without the Company having exercised the option
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

{Thousand euro)

The present value of the cash flows embodied by the Group's non-current financial assets at 31
December 2014 and 2013 discounted at market interest rates 1s considered to approximate their
carrying amounts The difference between their carrying amounts and fair values 1s therefore not

material

The carrying amounts of the items under this heading are denomnated in the following currencies

|

Thousand euro

Emimm

Currency 2014 2013
Euro 14,818 14,189
US dollar 5,468 3,872
Argentine pesos 4177 3,070
Mexican peso 1,226 1,439 o
Colombian peso 27 30 —
25,716 22,600 -
a) Loans and receivables D
Thousand euro -
Iltern Qwner 2014 2013 T
Non-current loans Hipica de Panama, S A 2,834 1,818 ::.:
Non-current loans Alta Cordillera, S A 271 282 =
Non-current loans Grupo Operbingo ltalia, S p A 2,643 2,457 —v—
Nan-current loans Codere Madnd, S A - 839 —
Non-current loans Openbénca, S A 1,128 558 i
Non-current loans Codere S A 2,807 2,366 s
Non-current loans Codere Mexico, S A 1,227 1,439 —aine
Other minor loans to third parties 7,181 7.454 Te——
R ]
Total 18,091 17,213 —
Hipica de Panama, S A manly reflects the balance receivable from horse owners
Grupo Operbingo Italia, S p A matnly includes bank guarantees associated with the Bingo licence —
Codere, S A mainly reflects a 1 5 million euro loan granted to the ltallan company SEV A, SrL f—
which owns 15% of King Slot, SrL .
-
e
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

{Thousand euro)

The amortised cost of the main loans broken down by matunty date 1s as follows

l
»
‘.

|

Thousand euro

2014

2013
Figures restated under IFRS 11

Year
2015 - 7.053
2016 9,937 540
2017 1,478 203
2018 995 1,056
2019 354 -
Subsequent years 5,327 8,361
Total 18,091 17,213

b) Investments held to matunty

Type of Investment

Payout reserve containers (hoppers)
Long-term fixed-rate investments
Deposit agreements

Other

12 Deferred taxes

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabities 1s as follows (figures in thousand

euro)

Intangible assets

Property, ptant and equipmeant
Financtal investiments
Exchange differences

Tax credits

Other

Deferred tax assets/{hiabilities) to be
recovered after more than 12 months
Deferred tax assets/{iabilities) to be
recovered within 12 months

T

Thousand euro

|

2014 S—
2013 —
Fligures restated under IFRS 11
2,642 2,686
2,509 2,413
34 39
999 249
6,184 5,387

T

2014 2013

Figures restated under IFRS

11

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

3,371 (98,137) 3,408 (104,433)

11,844 (56) 15 586 (102}

303 (629) 226 (684)

- (163) - (163)

23,988 - 19,056 -

9,167 {16,860) 8,472 (7,711}

48,673 {115,845) 46,748 {113,093}

17,197 (90,819) 17,117 {77,704)

31,476 {25,026) 23 631 {35,389)
48,673 (115,845) 46,748 {113,093}
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

The recovery of these credits 1s subject to the regular review of the business plans for the recovery
of the fiscal consoldated tax bases, taking the following into account in said plan

- Operational performance of the business units in accordance with the projections assumed
in the asset impairment tests, assuming a ime frame of five years

- Estimation principally of tax adjustments for non-deductible expenses, differences bhetween
amortisation for tax and accounting purposes and differences in the treatment of accounts
recelvable impairment provisions

- Estimation of future operational flows cobtained from the companies in the tax consolidation
group denved from operations by the rest of the business units {outside the consolidated
group, both Spanish and foreign)} These flows are dernved from

. Provision of corperate services
. Interest on loans granted

. Dividends receivable

The amount of these positive flows will enable the above-mentioned tax credits for loss carry
forwards to be offset, generating sufficient profit for the Group to carry out the offset within the
deadline stipulated by tax legislation

The other deferred tax assets have been recorded based on the business plans In each
geographical area and the tax legislation in force in each junsdiction In those jurisdictions, the
business plan envisages the generation of future taxable income to offset the deductible temporary
differences

The relevant deferred tax habilities are also taken into account in each geographical area

The breakdown of the deferred tax assets and labihbes recogrmised by the Group and the
movement in these headings during the year 1s as follows
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

{Thousand euro)

FY 2014

Assels

Tax credils

Financial nvestments
Intangible assets
Property, plant and
equipment

Other

Liabilihes
Revaluation of
property, plant and
equipment

Financial investments
Exchange differences
Intangible assets
Other

Net deferred tax
assets (habilities)

Thousand euro

Balance at Charged to Translation Balance at
31/12/2013 profit or loss Reclassification differences 31/12/2014
19,056 4,980 - (48) 23,988
226 77 - - 303

3,408 (40) - 1 3,371
15,586 {3,957} - 215 11,844
8,472 640 - 55 8,167
46,748 1,701 - 223 48,673
(102) 46 - - (56)
(684) 55 - - (629)
(163) - - - (163)
(104,433) 7,805 - (1,509} (98,137)
(7.711) {8,816) - (333) (16,860)
(113,093) (909) - {1,842) (115,845)
(66,345) (67.172)

The Deferred taxes for Spanish companies are recognised at the rate at which reversal 1s
expected 28% in 2015 and 25% for 2016 and subsequent years

The increase in tax credits mainly includes the tax effect of the payment to the ltahan Court of
Auditors which brought to an end the legal proceedings involving Codere Network, S p A (Note
4 e), partly offset by the decrease n tax credits In Spain due to the reduction in the tax rate from

20158
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Thousand euro

Balance at Charged to Translation  Balance at
FY 2013 3111272012 profit or loss  Reclassification differences 31/12/2013
Assets
Tax credits 21,565 (2,.275) - {234) 19,056
Financial
investments (2,019) 516 1,085 634 226
Intangible assets 3,279 80 56 2] 3,408
Property, plant and
equipment 15,937 (405) - 54 15,586
Other 6,249 3,074 1,787 {2,638} 8,472
45,011 990 2,938 (2,191) 46,748
Liabities (3,103) 2,728 273 (102)
Revaluation of
property, plant and
equipment (718) 27 - 8 {684)
Financial
investments (163) - - - {163)
Exchange
differences {122,945) 5,623 8,256 4,633 (104,433)
Intangtble assets (7,701) (1) - (9) (7.711)
Other -
(134,631) 8,377 8,256 4,905 (113,093)

Net deferred tax

assets (llabilities) (89,620) !66,345!

In the “Reclassification” column, opening balances relating to Mexican entities are adjusted, as
they corresponded to current tax balances but were reported at the end of 2012 under Deferred
tax

13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Following impairment tests carred out at the end of 2014, the Group recognised an imparrment to
its assets in the Carrasce Nobile umt The imparment totalled 4,922 thousand eurcs This
impairment 1s basically due to a pocrer business performance than was initially expected, mainly
resulting from a delay in the development plan for the major player market, which is the man
cataiyst for a business model which, unlike the others, does not target the local population The
poorer macroeconomic outlook used In the calculaton of future flows has also had a negative
impact, though to a lesser extent

Additionally, due to the judicial decision mentioned in Note 28, assets at the Mexico unit have been
impaired in an amount of 6,944 thousand euros (Note 8) The closure of gaming halls that gave nse
to this impairment was already contemplated in the projected fiows as from the balance sheet date
Method used to deterrmine the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and key assumptions
The Group bases s calculations of the recoverable amount of s cash-generating units on thew

value in use This i1s egquivalent to the net present value of future effective cash flows generated by
the operating assets of each identified umit
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Cash flow projections

The Group estimates the future cash flows for each cash-generating unit using forecasting models
based on the operating, financial and macroeconomic indicators apphcable in each case The
projections cover a five-year penod Beyond the five-year penod, a terminal value 15 estimated
based on a constant rate of growth in perpetuity The cash flows in year one of the projection
penod are based on detalled budgets approved in each unit for the first six months of 2015,
adjusted as necessary for the estimated mmpact of significant changes in the regulatory
environment, the competitive landscape, the business model or the performance of each umit
When calculating the second half of the year said results have been annualised taking into account
significant non-recurring mmpacts The only exception to this method has been the projectien for
Carrasco Nobile as this business 1s currently undergoing growth and therefore said system would
have spoiled the result of the impairment test For this reason, with respect to the calculation of the
explicit result for the second half of the year, management has projected sawd flows based on the
best estmates of operational management

The projections for the remaining years are based on the performance that can reasonably be
expected in accordance with the strategies and plans defined by the Group for each of the markets
in which 1t operates in accordance with their specific charactenistics and competitive landscapes
With respect to capital investments, the forecasts include those necessary to maintan the
businesses in their current condiion {maintenance capex) The only growth investments factored in
are those that have been specifically approved in the 2015 budgets or those required to enable the
natural development of businesses that are still in the ramp-up phase

The rate used to discount the cash flows i1s the weighted average cost of capital in the local
currency of each unit The weighted average cost of capital takes into account the Group's own
cost of capital as well as that of third parties, weighted In accordance with a defined target capital
structure The internal cost of capital varies for each unit in accordance with the market nsk
premium applicable and the specific country nsk for the country where it operates, including
exchange rate nsk For reasons of practical expediency, after-tax discount rates are used The
cash flows discounted are similarly after-tax projectons The growth rate used to calculate each
unit's terminal value I1s the long-term consumer price index forecast for each country taken from
macroeconomic forecasts, 1 e the terminal value does not factor in any growth in real terms For
those cash-generating units whose functional currency 13 not the euro, cash flows are projected in
loca! currency and the net present value of these cash flows 1s then translated into euro at the
exchange rate prevailing at 31 December 2014

Key assumptions

The key assumptions in respect of gaming operations relate in general to gaming capacity installed
(number of gaming halls, casinos, race tracks, betting agencies, gaming machines installed, bingo
hall seating capacity, gaming tables, etc ) and the average dally proceeds from each machine,
seat, table or gaming hall attendee Revenue during the projection period varies in accordance with
the forecast trend in these vanables Profitabiity and operational geanng levels, as reflected n
EBITDA margins, are also significant The carrying amounts of the net operating assets of each
cash-generating unit at 31 December 2014 are detalled below, together with the key assumptions
used to calculate therr value in use and any impairment losses recognised Key assumphons
include the after-tax discount rate, the growth rate used to estimate terminal value, the compound
average annual growth rate for revenue n local currency for the projection period, and the
estmated percentage point change in the EBITDA margin between the 12 menths ended 31
December 2014 and the final 12 months of the projection penod
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Thousand euro)

Carrying amotnt of net
operating assets'” at

Asset impairment at

31122014 3112 2014
Cash-generating unit (€'000) {€'000) After-tax discount rate
Argentina 120,750 - 220%
Mexico 518,400 10 6%
Banamex 70,451 - 10 6%
Span® 95,573 - 76%
Italy®™ 106 959 - 7 9%
Panama 60 452 - 10 4%
Colombia 11,269 - 10 6%
Carrasco 35,888 {4,922} 14 6%
Parent compames and
other {8,386} -
Total 1,011,396 {4,922} N/A

Cash-generating unit

Organic growth rate for
caleulating terminal value

CAGR of revenue in
local currency'”

Change in EBITDA margin
{percentage points)”

Argentina
Mexico
Banamex

Span'®
italy®
Panama
Colombia®®
Carrasco

Total

50% 13 8% 0 4pp
3 0% 2 0% 1 9pp
30% 20% 1 9pp
13% 54% 0 9pp
15% 21% 81pp
25% 28% (1 9pp)
30% 40% (T1pp)
50% 18 3% N/A

NIA N/A NiA

{1) Includes the carmynng amount of goodwill iIntangible assets and properly plant and equipment and certain operating items in working capital before impatrment

ipssas in the penod

{2) Obtaned by comparning the figures for the last year of the projecion penod with those of the 12 manths to 31 Decembar 2014 (as reportecd quarterty and translaled
Into lacal curency at avarage axchange rataes)
{3} Inctudes all business ines in Spain which have bean organisabonally unified from 2011 {AWP machines sports batung and tradibonal tunga) Deployment of sports
betung operations in Madnd Basque Country Mavarra Valencia Aragdn Muraa Galca Casbilla la Mancha L Rigja Casifla Ledn Cataloma and Extremadura

{4} Includes all business ines in ltaly {indirect operatons with AWP machines tradiional binge wideo foltenas and connection network) Inctudas non+ecurnng charges

of 23 1 million euros (¢f which 24 § relates to the effact of the line by tha Court of Auditors and +1 4 million euros for other items)

(5) The vanaton in Columbia EBITDA ts negative mawnly due to the impact of the tax increase whuch will come into forca in May 2015

At 31 December 2014 a fixed asset mparment provision of 6,944 thousand euros {Note 8) has
been recorded due to the closure of halls In Mexico, as mentioned 1n Note 28 The recoverable
value of these assets I1s zero

The recoverable value of the Carrasco CGU 1s 6,424 thousand euros
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Sensitivity to key assumptions

The table below shows, for each cash generating unit for which no impairment loss was recognised
during the financial year, the discount rate after taxes and, separately, the natural growth rate used
to calculate the terminal value which, had they been applied, would have resulted in the value In
use equalling the carrying amount of its net operating assets

Variable required to equate
value 1n use to carrying
amount

Organic growth
After-tax rate for calculatin

Cash-generating unit discount rate terminal value ¢

Argentina 64 3% N/A
Mexico 11 2% 22%
Banamex 11 6% 16%
Span 10 6% N/A
Italy 8 8% N/A
Panama 15 5% NIA
Colombia 14 7% N/A
Carrasco N/A N/A

{1} The "N/A" for some cash generating units 1s explained because those growths will be negative Therefore, beanng in miad the defimtion of
terminal value It makes no aconomic sense to use negative growth in perpetuity

According to this sensitivity analysis, the Mexico cash-generating unmit has Iittle room to
accommodate a potential Impairment to its assets This 1s largely due to the fact that some or all of
the assets at this cash-generating unit were carned recently at market value as a result of the
outcome of impairment testing in prior years (2013)

14 Inventories

Thousand euro

2014 2013

Gaming machines 37 384
Spare parts for machines 3,629 4,266
Food and dnink 2,159 2,409
Bingo cards 1,250 1,010
Other items 3,366 3,731
10,441 11,800

The cost of Inventornes recognised as an expense in 2014 and 2013 amount to 37,403 thousand
euros in 2014 and 43,889 thousand euros In 2013
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

15  Accounts receivable

a) Trade receivables

At 31 December 2014, "Trade and other receivables" included 3,544 thousand euros for caterng
and management services supplied to food and drink establishments 1n Spain (3,920 thousand
euros at 31 December 2013)

There are no provistons for impairment of receivables

b) Sundry recelvables

Thousand euro

2014 2013

Sundry receiwvables 65,946 71,127
Receivable from employees 485 800
Provisions (32,291) (31,116)
34,140 40,811

At 31 December 2014, "Sundry recevables" includes approximately 25,658 thousand euros of
advances paid to the owners of food and drink establishments against their share of the takings
from the gaming machines located in therr premises (26,545 thousand euros at 31 December
2013) These advances will be recovered against the takings collected

“Sundry receivables” also includes at year-end 2014 10,718 thousand due from CIE Group
companies, mainly Make Pro, SA de CV, for advertising and sponsorship services (10,795
thousand euros at year-end 2013)

This heading also includes 11,972 thousand euros receivable by Codere Network Sp A from
gaming machine operators in Italy (11,912 thousand euros at 31 December 2013) The remaining
amount comprises a significant number of receivables of lower value

The amounts recognised under Provision correspond principally to amounts set aside to cover
advances against takings in Spain and to cover receivables from gaming machine operators in
Italy

The movements on the provision are as follows

Thousand euro

Balance at 31/12/2013 531,116!

Provision for receivables impairment (4,021)
Unused amounts reversed 218
Amounts derecognised 2,641
Translation differences (13)
Balance at 31/12/2014 (32,291)
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Thousand euro

Balance at 31/12/2012 {36,371)
Provision for receivables impairment (3,423)
Unused amounts reversed 5,262
Amounts derecognised 3,408
Translation differences 8

Balance at 31/12/2013 !31,1162

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets

¢) Tax recevables accrued

At 31 December 2014, “Tax recewvables accrued” amount to 111,837 thousand euros (103,273
thousand euros at year-end 2013} This balance includes 86,128 thousand euros in VAT
refundable from the Mexican tax authonties (71,081 thousand euros in 2013} tn Mexico this class
of indirect tax 1s recovered when the cash flows associated with the transactions giving rise to the
VAT occur

The remaining 25,709 thousand euros corresponds to taxes due from the tax authornties 1n the
Group's other operating markets

The carrying amounts of accounis receivable are denominated in the following currencies

Thousand euro

Currency 2014 2013
Euro 23,749 34,964
US dollar 69,754 61,684
Argentine pesos 16,851 16,564
Mexican peso 68,884 62,482
Uruguayan peso 85 -
Colombian peso 1,589 2,141
Brazilian real 614 468

181,526 178,303

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of gach class of
recewvables mentioned above The Group does not hold any collateral as security
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

16 Other current financial assets

The movements on “Other current financial assets" in at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as
follows (figures In thousand euro)

Balance at Translation Balance at

EY 2014 31/12/2013 Additions Transfers Disposals differences 3M12/2014
Short-term  investment

secunties 1,218 B - (1,058) (56) 106
Other loans and

Investments 40,450 7,666 - (12,155} (79) 35,882

41,668 7,666 - {13,211) {135) 35,988

Other loans and investments mainly reftects the derecognition of the Icela purchase option which
fell due in June 2014 in the amount of 5327 thousand euros and the derecognition of the
guarantee on the repaid loan in Codere Mexico, S A de CV , amounting to 1,021 thousand euros

Balance at Translation Balance at
FY 2013 31/12/2012 Additions Transfers Disposals differences 3111212013

Figures restated under IFRS 11

Short-term investment

securities 2,531 (13) - {1,167) {133} 1,218

Other loans and

nvestments 57,483 10,560 12,633 (38,996) (1,130} 40,450
60,014 10,547 12,533 (40,163) (1,263) 41,668

The transfer relates to the Icela purchase option which fell due in June 2014
The items recognised under "Other loans and investments" break down as follows

Thousand euro

Figures restated under IFRS
1

Short-term loans 18,139 20,919
Deposits and guarantees 17,343 18,071
Short-term deposits 400 1,460

35,882 40,450

"Short-term loans" includes amounts recevable from directors and semor managers for loans
granted to buy shares in Codere S A as detailled in Note 25 These loans are guaranteed against
said shares (Note 18)

Deposits and guarantees includes deposits held by Codere Network, S p A due to the Concession

Agreesment of Codere Network, S p A under which this company operates, amounting to 10,740
thousand euros
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

The carrying amounts of the items under this heading are denominated in the following currencies

Thousand euro

2014 2013

Currency Figures restated under IFRS 11
Euro 17,324 23,881
US dollar 11,186 4,715
Argentine pesos 603 961
Mexican peso 6,532 11,865
Uruguayan peso 340 222
Colecmbian peso 3 24
35,988 41,668

17 Equity

aj) Share capital

At 31 December 2014 and 2013 the share capital of Codere S A totalled 11,007,924 euros and
consisted of 55,036,470 fully subscnbed and paid in bearer shares with a par value of 0 20 euros
each The Parent's shares have been listed on the Madnd Stock Exchange since 19 October 2007

Al 31 December 2014 and 2013 the Parent Company's shareholder structure was as follows

Shareholding

Yo %

Shareholder 2014 2013
Masampe Hoiding, BV 51 35% 51 35%
Mr Jose A Martinez Sampedro 12 42% 12 42%
Other sharehclders 36 23% 36 23%
100% 100%

This table individuzlly lists significant shareholders who, in accordance with secunties market
legislation, have acquired shares giving them voting nights n a listed company and who must,
therefore, notify the Spanish secunties market regulator (the CNMV for ts acronym in Spanish} and
Codere S A when their interests in the Parent’'s voting rights rises above or falls below 3%

At 31 December 2014, 55,036,470 shares were admitted to trading, of which 69 13% (69 13% at
year-end 2013) were directly or indirectly held by members of the Board of Directors
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

No Company shares were sold by seruor managers on the market in 2014 or 2013 Nor did serior
management purchase any shares in 2014 or 2013

b) Share premium

The share premium derives from equity 1ssues approved at the Annual General Meetings held on
20 December 1999 (52 61 million euros), 27 January 2006 (38 9 milhon euros} and 18 October
2007 (139 77 milhion euros) This reserve is freely distnbutable

c) Treasury shares

At the Annual General Meeting of 27 June 2013, the shareholders authorised Codere SA to
acquire at any time and on as many occasions as It deems necessary, directly or through any of its
subsidiaries, fully paid up own shares, for cash or for any valuable consideration The minimum
price or consideration will be the nominal value of the treasury shares acquired and the maximum
the market value plus 20% at the acquisition date This authonsation was granted for a term of five
years and 15 expressly subject to the condition that the shares acquired, together with those
already held by Codere S A and its subsidiaries, may not exceed at any time the mit laid down in
prevailing law The Board of Directors i1s empowered to execute this power

Liguidity agreement

On 28 January 2009, Codere, S A signed a hquidity agreement with Credit Agricole Cheuvreux,
S A designed to improve its iguidity position and stabilise its share price This agreement came
into force on 18 February 2009 and was terminated on 20 October 2014 On 28 October 2014 a
new hguidity agreement was entered into with Interdin Sociedad de Valores, S A, which came into
force en 1 November 2014

The key features of this agreement, in ine with current regulations, are

- Financial intermediary Interdin Sociedad de Valores, S A

- Secuntes covered by the agreement Ordinary shares in Codere S A traded on the official
stock market

- Term of the agreement 12 months, extendable by explicit consent of the parties

- Funds transferred to the cash account 83 5 thousand euros and 203 5 thousand shares

- The voting and dividend nghts attached to the shares deposited in the secunities account are
suspended

On 30 January 2015, due to the spht-off of a line of business of Interdin Bolsa, SV, S A to Banco
Madnd S AU, this latter entity will be subrogated to the oblhgation to provide said service to
Codere under the same conditions as those already agreed with the demerged company

At 31 December 2014, the Company held 387,733 treasury shares (250,345 n 2013) of which
222,733 (191,345 1n 2013) had been acquired by Interdin Scciedad de Valores, S A, representing
less than 10% of the total share capital of Codere S A (the legal mit) with a value in equity of 69
thousand euros (319 thousand euros at 31 December 2013) The average acquisition price was
0 82 euros per share These shares are fully paid up
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

d) Legal reserve

In accordance with the Spanish Companies Act 2010, 10% of profit for the year must be allocated
to the legal reserve untl the balance of the reserve reaches at least 20% of capital At both 31
December 2014 and 2013 the legal reserve totalled 2,201 thousand euros

Untl the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share capital, it can only be used to offset losses, provided
that sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose

e) Transition reserves

On first-time application of IFRS-EU, the Group decided to revalue its land and buildings, using
therr farr value at the transition date as ther acquisition cost This restatement was recognised
directly against equity under the Transition Reserve heading

The Transition Reserve wilt be transferred to Retained earnings when the capital gain 1s realsed
The capital gain realised 1s deemed to be the difference between the depreciation calculated on the
restated value of the asset and the depreciation calculated according to its orniginal value

f) Cther information

As the parent guarantor on the bonds i1ssued by Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A, there are
hmits on Codere S A ''s ability to approve and pay dividends until the bonds are repaid

There are no restnctions on any Group company operating in Latin Amencan or European
countries distnbuting dividends to shareholders in Spain

In Argentina, the Group may only distnbute dividends once all unused tax losses have been offset

In addition to any legal requirements or bylaw stipulations and the aforementioned restrictions,
dividends may only be distributed from profit for the year or from unrestricted reserves, provided
equity 1S5 not or would not be as a consequence of the distnbution less than share capital If prior-
year losses reduce the Company's equity to below share capital, profits must be allocated to offset
the losses Gains recognised directly in equity may not be directly or indirectly distnibuted to this
end

g) Information by company

Appendix Il provides an itemised breakdown of the equity of the Group companies at 31 December
2014
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

18 Provisions
18 1 Non-current provisions

Thousand euro

Balance at Translation Balance at

FY 2014 3112/2013 Additions Disposals differences 311272014
Provision for taxes 16,373 130 {1,335) {135) 15,033
Retirement bonuses 7713 980 {2,420) (69) 6,204
Other provisions 24,256 1,493 (13,159) (362) 12,228
48,342 2,603 (16,914) (566) 33,465

Thousand euro

Balance at Translation Balance at

FY 2013 31/12/2012 Additions Disposals differences 3112712013
Provision for taxes 14,338 10,192 (6,821) (1.336) 16,373
Retirement bonuses 7,349 1,367 {817) (186) 7,713
Other provisions 23,153 2,787 - (1,684) 24,256
44,840 14,346 {7,638) (3,206) 48,342

a) Provision for taxes

Provisions for taxes include balances associated with the fiscal and labour-related risks of the
Group’s companes in Mexico at 31 December 2014 and 2013 of approximately 12,883 thousand
euros and 13,712 thousand eurocs, respectively

b) Retirement bonuses

This heading includes amounts payable by various Group companies to its employees under
collective bargaining agreements The decrease mainly relates to Mexican and Itahan companies,
due to staff reductions

c} Other provisions

The decrease in 2014 manly includes the reversal of the provision following the proceedings
involving Codere Network,S p A and the Court of Auditors (Note 4 e)

At 31 December 2014, this heading includes 1,417 thousand euros corresponding to a provision
made in connection with an inspection by the Argentine Central Bank ("BCRA") of certain foreign
currency transachons concluded between 2002 and 2004 (1,282 thousand euros at year-end
2013)

It also includes 475 thousand euros corresponding to a contingent payment recognised in 2010
following the acquisition of Codere Apuestas Espaia, SL U by Codere, S A
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

Additions in 2013 mainly related to prowvisions for future itigation 1n ltaly and Argentina

This heading also includes Group commitments to staff under the employment laws in foerce in each
country, and provisions made in each year for labour-related contingencies

18 2 Current provisions and other

Thousand euro

2014 2013
Reserve for options 4,454 5,158
Other 6,121 5,858
Total provisions and other 10,575 11,016

The heading "Other" mainly includes 2,675 thousand euros in advance income in the lcela Group
and the provision for potential prizes in ltaly, Panama and Argentina

This heading includes a proviston for the market value of the share sale option offered to a number
of senior managers of Codere S A One million ordinary shares, formerly held as treasury shares,
were sold to senicr managers at a price of 7 88 euros per share, the price at which a number of
transactions with third parties had been concluded These share purchases were financed by
Codere S A via loans to these senior managers totalling 7,880 thousand euros, which accrued
interest at an annual rate of 2 5% 1n 2014 and 2013 The interest accrued, amounting to 1,103
thousand euros, has been provided for in full under Financial expenses

In turn, the Company granted these executives the nght, on matunty of the loan, to settle the
outstanding balance of the loan (principal plus interest) by delivering the shares acquired using
Company funding This clause 1s treated as a put optton granted to the managers and was valued
as such Changes in the value of this option are recognised directly in equity

Under this option, the senior managers were entitled to repay the loan to Codere S A after 18
months from the acquisition date This term was since extended to December 2014 Codere holds
rights to pre-emptively acquire the shares from each executive, exercisable in the event that the
executive declares his or her intention to sell the shares to a non-shareholding third party

FY 2014 Thousand euro
Balance at Balance at
31112/2013 Additions Disposals 311212014
Provision for put option granted to executives 5,158 234 (938) 4,454
70

il bl

zl““

e

W

M



CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

FY 2013 Thousand euro
Balance at Balance at
3111212042 Additions Dispesals 311212013

Provision for put option granted to executives 4,102 1,605 {549} 5,158

In February 2014 the Board of Directors agreed to extend the duration of the loans granted to
directors However, the decision has been taken to provide in full for the interest accruing cn the
loans as the Company's management regards it as unlikely that they will be collected

Interest accrued at 31 December 2014 totalled 44 thousand euros In addition, for directors still with
the Company, the provision for the treasury stock purchase option includes the restatement of the
market value of the put option at the year end for all locans granted to directors which had not
matured and for the valuation between the closing price for Codere shares and the repurchase
price, set at 7 88 euros for loans expired at 31 December

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the market value of the option corresponded exclusively to the
loans which had not yet been repaid The value of the option was calculated using market prices
taking mto account the volatility of the secunty, the redemption value of the loans and other factors

The inputs used in the valuation model are

2014 2013
Strike price 10 597 10 597
Expected volatility 89 112% 66 638%
Annual rate 0162% 0413%
Implicit rate 3 1550% 6 8280%
Total price 10 28 678

19 Financial habilities

a) Non-current payables

Thousand euro
Figures rastated under IFRS 11 11

2014 2013

Bonds 1ssued by Codere Finance {Luxembourg), S A - 966,624
Bank borrowings 89,299 102,739
Other payables 56,267 50,068
Finance lease habilittes 1,959 7.077
147,525 1,126,508

a 1) Non-current bank borrowings
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

Average effective Thousand euro

interest rate Maturity 2014 2013

Group In Spain 303% 2016 - 2026 1,202 1,051
Group In italy 322% 2016 - 2017 611 1,451
Group in Mexico TIE + 3 25% 2019 53,436 55,365
Group in Panama 3M Libor + 3 50% (Floor 6 75%) 2016 3,554 7,281
Group in Colombia DTF TA + 5 05% 2017 1,376 2,068
Uruguay (C Nobile) 6 84% 2016 - 2019 29,120 35,523
89,299 102,739

The tems recognised under this heading correspond principally to debt contracted locally to
finance the expansion of the Group's activities in these countnies The most significant i1s the debt
held by ICELA Group to finance investments in the Banamex Centre, the Hipodromo and the Sala
Royal The main decrease relates to Panama and Uruguay due to the reclassification of the debt to
short term

Concerning the Uruguay debt, the reclassification to short term results from the nanfulfilment of
coverage and borrowings ratios defined in the agreements with Respide Sociedad de Bolsa S A,
Urraburo & Hyos Corredor de Bolsa, S R L and Compariia de Valores Perez Marexiano S B S A,
as explained in Note 28

On 26 November 2014 the debt facility held by lcela with Inbursa was renewed for 1,200 million
Mexican pesaos, for a term of five years

The loans extended to the Group companies in ltaly are guaranteed by Codere ltaha, Sp A
a 2) Other non-current payables

The amounts recogrnised under "Other payables” within “Other non-current payables” at 31
December 2014 and 2013, totaling 56,267 thousand euros and 50,068 thousand euros,
respectively, correspond principally to long-term payables recognised by Spamish companies for
acquisitions and to payments outstanding on exclusivity rights in amounts of approximately 5 345
thousand and 5,790 thousand euros at year-end 2014 and 2013, respectively

It also includes 24,775 thousand euros and 24,739 thousand euros at 31 December 2014 and
2013, respectively, corresponding to long-term debt in respect of deferred gaming taxes as
approved for a certain number of gaming machines in the Spanish autonomous regions of Madrid,
Cantabria, Valencia and Catalonia The current balances are recorded under the heading "Other
non-trade payables” These debts bear interest at the legal rate in Spain

This heading also includes borrowings from third parties for the acquisiticn of licenses by Codere
Network, S p A to fund the installation and operaton of a new type of gaming machine in Italy
(VLTs) at 31 December 2014 and 2013 in the amount of 11,313 thousand euros and 12,896
thousand euros, respectively
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Thousand euro)

a 3) Fmance lease liabilities

The breakdown of the mimimum payments due on finance leases at 31 December 2014 and 2013

1s as follows

Thousand euro

Gross habilities

Present value

No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

Less

Future finance charges on finance lease labilities

Recognised as
Non-current finance lease habilities

Current finance lease liabilities

2014 2013 2014 2013
4,044 17,696 3,892 17,371
2,009 8,751 1,959 7,077
6,053 26,447 5,851 24,448
(201) (2000}
1,959 7,077
3,892 17,371

Finance leases relate prnincipally to leased gaming machines The current habihties are recorded

under "Other non-trade payables”

The carrying amounts of "Other non-current payables" do not differ materially from their fair values

at 31 December 2014 and 2013

The carrying amounts of “Non-current payables” are denominated in the following currencies

Currency

Euro

US dollar
Argentine pesos
Mexican peso
Uruguayan peso
Colombian peso

Thousand euro

2014 2013
Figures rastated under [FRS 11

46,830 804,902
23,621 242,872
1.258 1,596
64,736 58,809
9,751 16,203
1,329 2,126
147,525 1,126,508
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand eurg)

The breakdown of non-current payables by type and matunty i1s as follows

Thousand euro
2014 2013

Figures restated under IFRS 11

Other non- Other non-

Bank current Bank current
Year borrowings payables Total horrowings payables Total
2015 60,498 22,244 837 485
2016 16,041 30,765 46,806 38,525 13,410 52,935
2017 3,960 9,374 13,334 572 1,352 1,924
2018 2,928 2.307 5,235 8 3,272 3,280
2019 56,222 2,209 58,431 - - -
Other 10,148 13,571 23,719 2,136 16,867 230,864
89,299 58,226 147,525 102,739 57,145 1,126,508

b) Current liabilities
b 1) Bonds

On 24 June 2005, Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A issued 335 million euros of 8 25% honds
due 15 June 2015 On 19 Apnl 2006 this same Group company issued an additional 165 nmillion
euros of bonds and on 7 November 2006 another 160 millon euros The bonds i1ssued in Apnl
2006, at a premium of 106 25%, and the bonds issued in November 2006, at a premium of
107 25%, were fungible and were accordingly grouped into a single 1ssue along with the bonds
1ssued in 2005

On 22 July 2010, Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A issued an additional 100 million euros of
bonds at an 1ssue price of 94% This 1ssue, with a coupon of 8 25%, I1s guaranteed by Codere S A
and several of its subsidiaries The new bonds were 1ssugd under the same terms as the earlier
issues and mature in 2015

On 8 February 2012, Codere Finance (Luxembourg}, S A issued 300 million US dollars of 9 25%
bonds due 2019
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES

i

1]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS —
{Thousand euro) ]
The breakdown of the Group's total bond 1ssues 1s as follows —_
Thousand euro -—-:
Effective e
Face Bond interest Contract —
valua currency rate maturity date 2014 2013 .
Bonds 1ssued by Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S.A 335 000 Eurg 876% 15/06/2015 335 000 332 536 __'_
Bonds 1ssued by Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A 165 000 Eurg 8 23% 15/06/2015 165,000 165 048 —y
Bonds 1ssued by Codere Finance {(Luxembourg) S A 160,000 Euro 7 98% 15/06/2015 160,000 160 636 [
e —a]
Bonds 1ssued by Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A 100 000 Euro 10 71% 15/06/2015 100,000 96523 .
Bonds 1ssued by Codare Finance (Luxembourg), S.A 300 000 US dollar 10 20% 15022019 247,096 211 881 -
1,007,096 966,624 -
This heading includes unpaid accrued interest which at 31 December 2014 and 2013 amounted to —
133,630 and 41,452 thousand euros, respectively The increase results from Codere's failure to —
meet payment commitments in 2014 ——-
——n

The bonds 1ssued by Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A are guaranteed by the parent guarantor
(Codere, S A ) and the subsidiary guarantors listed below ;
Codere Finance {Luxembourg}, S A and the guarantors are party to the indenture together with -
Deutsche Trustee Company Limited as trustee and Deutsche Bank AG (London branch) as .
principal paying agent Among other things, this indenture imits the ability of the issuer or the e
guarantors to ——
—eretmian s
. Make certain restricted payments and investments —
. Incur additional debt and 1ssue preferred shares .
. Provide guarantees to third parties not belonging to the restricted Group ——-

- Create restrictions on the guarantors’ ability to pay dividends or transfer or sell assets

The parties to the indenture also have the power to

. Request complrance with certain financial ratios
. Incur additional debt subject to certain ratios

The 1ssuer pays the interest on the bonds 1ssued in 2005, 2006 and 2010 semi-annually on 15
June and 15 December Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A may also redeem all or part of the
bonds 1ssued in 2005, 2006 and 2010 at a repurchase price of 100% of par plus the applicable
premium (between 0% and 2 75%)

The interest on the 300 mithon US dollar bond 1s alsa payable semr-annually on 15 February and
16 August to matunty in 2019, the bonds cannot be repurchased before vear three after 1ssuance,
at which point they may be bought back at 100% of par plus a premium which depends on the year
of repurchase (0% - 9 250%)
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

{Thousand eurc}

The guarantors at 31/12/2014 are

Alta Cordillera, § A
Bingos Codere, S A
Bingos del Oeste, S A

Bingos Platenses, S A

Bintegral, Sp A

Codere, S A

Codere Aménca, SA U

Codere Apuestas Aragdn, SLU (™)
Codere Apuestas Esparia, S1 U (**)
Codere Apuestas Navarra, S A U
Codere Apuestas SAU

Codere Apuestas Valencia, SA U
Codere Barcelena, S AU (**"}
Codera Argentina, S A

Codere Colombia, S A

Codere Espana, SLU ("}

Codere Intemacional, S L U {**)
Codere Internacional Dos, S A U
Codere Madnd, SAU (***)

Codere México SA deCV

Codere Network Sp A

Codere Uruguay, S A
Codere ltala, Sp A
Codere Valencia, S A (***)

Colonder, SAU

Gestioni Marcom, S r!

Giomax, Srl

Hipica de Panama, S A
Iberargen, S A

Interbas, S A

Intenuegos, S A

Intermar Bingos, S A

Intersare, S A

Itapoan, S A

Misur, S A U

Operbingo Italia, S p A
Openbérica, S A

Palace Bingo SrL

Pansienne, Sr L

Promuociones Recreativas Mexicanas, S A de CV
Promojuegos de Mexico, S A (%)
Recreativos Mae, S L U (**){(***)
Vegas Srl

("} This company 1s only guarantor on the bonds 1ssued in June 2005, Apnl 2006, November 2006 and July 2010

(**) These companies only guarantee the sentor debt
(***} Companies merged with Openbénca, S A U in 2014

The bonds dencrminated in euro are guaranteed by the parent guarantor under an intercreditor
agreement between Codere Finance (Luxembourg), 8 A and Codere, S A (bearing interest at the
same rate as the bonds) and subsidianly by a pledge over shares in Codere Espafia, SL U and
Codere Internacional, SL U

The bonds denominated in US dollars are guaranteed by the parent guarantor under an
intercreditor agreement between Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A and Codere Internacional
Dos, S AU (bearing interest at the same rate as the bonds) and subsidianly by a pledge over
shares 1n Codere Internacional, S L U , Codere Espafia, S L U, Codere America, S A U, Colonder,
S AU and Nididem, S L

The general terms of the bond i1ssues also subordinate all other debt of the Codere Group
companies to the payment obhgations in respect of the bonds, with the exception of those debis
secured by specific assets

As mentioned in Note 2 a 1), on 23 September 2014 a Lock-up agreement was signed between
Codere, S A, Codere Finance Luxembourg, S A and certain Codere Group companies with the
holders of approximately 80 2% of EUR Bonds and 88 9% of USD Bonds

This agreement and the structure envisaged to reorgarmise the Group's debt and capial are
explained n detall in Notes 3 f) and 3 g)
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

b2) Bank borrowings

Thousand euro

2014 2013
Shont-term loans 31,734 23,266
Trade discount lines and credit faciities 130,000 85,000
Interest accrued/prepaid {758) 872
Total bank borrowings 160,976 119,138
Total undrawn - -
Total hmit 160,976 119,138

Short-term loans

The items recegnised under this heading at 31 December 2014 included princtpally short-term
debts with credit institutions held by various companies in the ICELA Group of 13,643 thousand
euros, the Group in Maly of 1,721 thousand euros, the Group in Panama of 4,716 thousand euros
and 20,688 thousand euros in Uruguay

The main decrease has ansen in Codere Mexico, SA de CV due to the repayment of the loan
from HSBC and in ltaly due to the repayment of the loan from Unicredit

The mamn increase has taken place in Uruguay, due to the reclassification to short term of the loan
from Rospide Sociedad de Bolsa, S A

At 31 December 2013, it main includes short-term bank borrowings of

vanous Group companies, Codere Mexico, S A de C V, for 5,117 thousand euros
the ICELA Group for 11,091 thousand euros, the ltaly Group for

2,271 thousand euros and the Panama Group for 4,130 thousand euros

Trade discount ines and credit faciities

This heading also includes a credit line drawn down by 130 million euros at 31 December 2014 (95
million euros at year-end 2013)

©On 5 July 2013 the Senior credit facility was partially renewed to 5 January 2014 after the former
creditors had ceded their positions in favour of Canyon Capital Finance Sarl and vanous funds
managed by GSO Capttal Partners LP The new Senior Financing Agreement lays down a ceiling
of 98 56 million euros of which up to 60 million euros consists of credit avallable in cash and the
remainder of guarantee instruments The applicable interest rate 1s set at the higher of the Euribor
+8 5% or Libor +7 5% and an inception fee of 5% Due to this renewal, of the annual comphance
ratios (covenants) were eliminated and the payment of interest due on 15 August 15 2013
associated with bond issuances made by Codere Finance Luxembourg, S A was established as a
reason for early maturity

On 13 September 2013, an agreement was reached with creditors of the senior credit facility to
change the condiions of that credit facility by increasing the total maximum available in cash by 35
million euros, up to a total of 95 milion euros The applicable interest rate 1s set at the higher of the
Eunbor +8 0% or Libor 7 0% and an inception fee of 1,069 thousand euros The maturnity date of
the senior debt was 5 January 2014

On 9 January 2014 the extension of the senior credit faclity to 5 February 2014 was agreed
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

On 6 February 2014, the senior credit faciity expired and 1s pending repayment, although it 1s
covered by the Stand-stil Agreement lnked to the Lock-Up debt restructuring agreement
concluded on 23 September 2014 (Note 3 g} Since that date, late payment interest has accrued

On 17 October 2014 the senior debt holders agreed to increase the availlable figure by 35 millicn
euros In the same contractual terms, in order to obtain the funds required to conclude the legal
proceedings with the Court of Auditors in ltaly

The lending institutions that have underwritten the current senior credit faciity are GSO, which
includes varnious funds managed by GSO capital Partners LP, Canyon Capital, Finance Sar/|,
Silver Point Luxemburg Platform, S a r |, Monarch Master Funding 2 (Luxemburg), Sar | and FBC
Holdngs Sarl

The balances drawn (in thousand euro), their matunties and the interest rates applicable at 31
December 2014 and 2013 are as follows

2014 Interest rate Matunty date
60,000 12 02% 06/02/2014
20,000 12 02% 06/02/2014
15,000 12 02% 06/02/2014
35,000 12 02% 06/02/2014

130,000

2013 Interest rate Matunty date
60,000 7 68% 06/02/2014
20,000 718% 06/02/2014
15,000 7 23% 06/02/2014
95,000

An Intercreditor Agreement links the guarantees on both categonies of debt - bonds and seror debt
- subordinating the former to the latter For further information see the detalls of the bond and
senior debt guarantee agreements at the beginning of this note

Notes 3 f and 3 g describe agreements reached with the lenders, including the replacement of the
current credit facility with a new faciity of 253 million euros matunng in 2020
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CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

b 3) Other non-trade payables and current tax llabilities

Thousand euro

2013
2014 Figures restated under IFRS 41

Payable to tax authonties 161,653 157,439
Gaming taxes deferred 30,380 33,641
Payable to employees 20,079 22,680
Other payables 29,118 54,079

241,240 267,839

b 3 1) Payable to tax authonifies

This heading includes amounts payable in respect of VAT, personal income tax, corporate income
tax and other taxes

b 3 2) Gaming taxes deferred

This heading includes amounts payable in respect of gaming taxes on a certain number of gaming
machines in Spain in the autonomous commumties of Madnd, Cantabna, Valencia, the Balearnc
Islands and Catalonia This heading includes the amounts for which deferral has been applied for
and approved which fall due within less than 12 months from the reporting date

b 3 3) Other payables
This heading includes

- Current finance lease obligations on gaming machines in the amount of 3,892 thousand euros
at 31 December 2014 (17,371 thousand euros at 31 December 2013}

- Payables for exclusivity nights and to suppliers of fixed assets to Sparish gaming machine
companies in the amount of 2,914 thousand euros at 31 December 2014 (3,765 thousand
euros at 31 Decermnber 2013)

- Bills payable in the shart term by Spanish companies totalling 987 thousand euros at 31
December 2014 (2,194 thousand euros at 31 December 2013)

- Payables due to the renewal of licences in Argentina at 31 December 2014, there are no
amounts payable (13,806 thousand euros at 31 December 2013)

- Payments outstanding on the acquisition of companies in ltaly in the amount of 1,447 thousand
euros at 31 December 2014 (1,804 thousand euros at 31 December 2013)

Payables on the acquisition of betting terminals 1in Spain in the amount of 1,489 thousand
euros at 31 December 2014 (2,552 thousand euros at 31 December 2013)

b4) Disclosure on deferral of payments to suppliers Additional Prowision 3 Disclosure
requirement Law 15/2010

Spanish Law 15/2010 of 5 July 2010 establishes a deadline of 60 days for payment to suppliers To
this end, the legislation provides for a transition schedule that firnshes on 1 January 2013
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Thousand euro)

in compliance with Law 15/2010 the following data 1s reported at 31 December concerning Spanish

entities within the consoclidation scope

2014

Paid within the legally-mandated maximum term

Other

Total payments n the year

Weighted average days past due (*)

Trade payables past due by more than the legally-mandated
maximum term at the repeorting date

2013

Paid within the legally-mandated maximum term

Other

Total payments in the year

Weighted average days past due (*)

Trade payables past due by more than the legally-mandated
maximum term at the reporting date

(*) The average payment term in excess of the legal imit

c) Loans secured by the Group

Thousand euro % of total
77,569 86 81%
11,789 13 19%

89,358

44 65

2,186
Thousand euro % of total
72,778 80 10%
18,079 19 90%

90,857

56

2,489

In addition to the shares of various Group companies pledged at 31 December 2014 and 2013 as
described in paragraph b 1) above, debt totalling 82,117 thousand euros (73,917 thousand euros at
year-end 2013) was secured by fixed assets belonging to several Group companies (Note 22)

d) Current habilities by currency

Thousand euro

2014 2013

Currency Figures restated under IFRS 11
Euro 1,133,382 245,451
US dollar 318,405 88,785
Argentine pesos 47,702 70,055
Mexican peso 163,582 147,765
Uruguayan peso 3,189 6,185
Colombian peso 5,021 6,676
Sterling 81 -
Chilean peso 87 89
Brazihan real 2,858 2,446
1,674,307 567,452
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Thousand euro)

20 Derivative transactions

Dunng 2014 and 2013, no operations were carried out involving derivatives

21 Tax matters

Codere S A 1s subject to Corporate Income Tax in Spain and since 1 January 2000 has filed under
the special tax rules established in Section VIl of Part VIl of Royal Decree 4/2004 of March 5,

approving the Rewvised Text of the Law on Corporate Income Tax

The companies forming the Spanish consolidated tax group in 2014 were

. Codere, S A, as Tax Group Parent and beneficiary

. And the following subsidianes

Spanish Tax Group 2014
Codere,S A
Cartaya, SAU
CF-8 SL
Codere Aménca, S AU
Codere Asesoria, S AU
Codere Apuestas Esparia, SL U
Codere Apuestas, SAU
Codere Apuestas Aragon, S LU
Codere Apuestas Castilla y Leon, S A (%)
Codere Apuestas Cataluia, S L (7}
Codere Apuestas Ceuta, S A (*}
Codere Apuestas Extremadura, S A (*)
Codere Apuestas Galicia, SL U
Codere Apuestas Murcia, SL U
Codere Apuestas LaRigja, S A (")
Codere Apuestas Navama S A U
Codere Apuestas Valencia, SA U
Codere Distribuctones, SLU
Codere Interactiva, S L

Codere Internacional, S L U (unipersonal)

Codere Internacional Dos, S A U

Codere Logrofio, S L

Codere Online, S A

Codere Espaiia, S L U (unipersonal)
Colonder, S A U

JM Quero Asociados SA U

JPVmatic 2005, S LU

Codere Sagunto, S L ()

Misur, S A U

Nididem, S L U (unipersonal}
Openbenca, S AU

Red Aeam S A U

Codere Servicios, SR L (*)

Stgirec, S L

Codere Apuestas Castilla la Mancha, S A
Codere Servicios Compartidos, S A
Dasarrollo on line Juegos regulares, S A

(") These companies were added to the scope of consclidation in 2014

The companies forming the Spanish consolidated tax group in 2013 were

. Codere, S A, as Tax Group Parent and beneficiary

. And the following subsidiaries

81

Tmm

|

|

L

|

bi

I

Hii

v

v

i

pEr—
|

B ——

s




i

|

!

r——
CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES S
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS T—
{Thousand euro) e
————
el
Spanish Tax Group 2013 -
Codere S A —-
Cartaya, SA U Codere Logrofio, S L ::
CF-8 SL Codere Madnd, S A U JR—
Codere Aménca, S A U Codere Onling, S A —
Codere Asesoria, S AU Codere Servicios Compartidos, S A (%) _—_—_.:.:
Codere Apuestas Espafia, SL U Codere Espaiia, S L U (unipersonal} -
Codere Apuestas, SAU Colonder, SA U —
Codere Apuestas Aragén, S LU J M Quero Asociados, S A U ———
Codere Apuestas Galioa, S L U JPVmatc 2005, S LU -
Codere Apuestas Murcia, SL U CodereValencia, § A U
Codere Apuestas Navarra S A U Misur, S AU ”__::
Codere Apuestas Valencia, SA U Nididem, S L U (umpersenal) PR
Codere Barcelona, S A Openbenca, S AU T—
Codere Distnbuciones, SL U Red Aeam S A U R,
Codere Interactiva, $ L Sigwec, S L ———
Codere Internacional, S L U (unipersonal}) Codere Apuestas Castilla la Mancha, S A (*) :
Codere Internacional Des, S A U Desarrolla on line jueges regulares, S A —
Recreativos Populares, S L :
Recreativos Mae, S L T —
|
e mr—
e ——
“—r————
(") These compantes were added to the scope of consolidation in 2013 N
The Group's Itallan companies file under consolidated tax group rules applicable in ltaly The
companies included in the tax group headed by Codere ltalia S p A have filed under these rules
since 1 January 2005 and the companies in the tax group headed by Operbingo Italia, S p A since J—
1 January 2006 The Operbingo ltalla, S p A tax group was included under the Codere ltala, e
S p A tax group in 2012 —
The subsidianes included in each of these groups 1in 2014 and 2013 are as follows R
Itahan tax group 1n 2014 -
Codere ltalaSp A Operbingo ltala S p A —
Cnistaltec Service Sl Royal Jackpot, SR L el
Seven Cora Service Srl Bintegral Spa :"
Vasa e Azzena Servica Srl Gestions Marconi S r | BR——
Codere Network S p A Giomax Srl I
Codematica Srl Palace Bingo Sr! J——
Codere Gaming talia $rl Panstenne S| i
FG Slot Service S r i Vegas Sl _:
Gap Games, Srl King Slot Sl ——
Gaming Re, Sr King Bingo S J—
DP Service, Sri e
R ]
R
————
ey
i
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

Itahan tax group Iin 2013

Codere Itala S p A Operbingo Italia S p A
Cnstaltec Service Sl Codare Interattiva S|
Seven Cora Service S| Bintegral S p A

Vasa e Azzena Service Sl Gestioni Marcom S r1
Codere Network S p A Giomax Srl
Codematica S| Palace Bingo Srl
Codere Gaming ltalia S ri Pansienne S ri

FG Slot Service Sl Vegas Srl

Gap Games, Sr King Slot Sri
Gaming Re, Sr King Binge Srl

DP Service, Sl

The other companies file iIndividual corporate income tax returns

Companies domiciled in Spain are subject to a statutory income tax rate of 30% in 2014
Nevertheless, certain deductions may be applied to the amount payable Companies domiciled
outside Spain are subject to the tax legislation and rates of the countnes in which they are located,
which vary between 25% and 35%, except in Chile, where the tax rate 1s 20%

Under current legisiation, tax returns cannot be considered final until they have been inspected by
the tax authonties or until the applicable statute of hmitations has lapsed

The directors of Codere S A consider that the companies forming the Codere Group have properly
settled all applicable taxes and therefore do not expect significant additional habilities to arnise in the
event of an inspection

The reconcihation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the
applicable tax rate

Thousand euro

2014 2013
Consolidated profiti/{loss) before tax (169,965) (162,248)
Tax at statutory rate of 30% (50,989) (48,674)
Tax effects of rates applicable in other countries 3,230 3,366
Tax effect of tax losses and permanent differences for which
deferred tax assets were not recogntsed 88,644 79,962
Tax losses capitalised/derecognised - 2,105
Cost associated with tax inspections - 8,600
Corporate Income Tax expense taken to
the consolidated income statement 40,885 45,359
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

The amount recorded under "Tax effects of rates applicable in other countries” corresponds to the
difference ansing from applying the statutory rate of 30% in Spain in 2014 and 2013 to
consohdated profit/(loss) before tax and applying the rates prevailing in each country The amounts
of 3,230 thousand euros and 3,366 thousand euros in 2014 and 2013, respectively, correspond
principally to the difference anising from the rate in Spain and that applied in Argentina, where the
statutory rate 1s 35%

The heading "Tax effect of tax losses and permanent differences for which deferred tax assets
were not recognised” includes the following items

- The tax effect of tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised
specifically the tax effects of tax losses not recognised at 31 December 2014 and 2011,
principally in Spain and head offices, Mexico, Uruguay and Brazil, in the amount of
approximately 73 milion euros (48 million euros in 2013)

- In particular, the effect of the recognition of deferred taxes in Argentina in 2014 derived from
retained earnings totalling approximately 9 milhon euros {Note 3 ¢ 1)

- In particular, for 2013, the effect of the tax charge derived from the IETU in Mexico of
approximately 13 millen euros This tax ceased to be apphcable as from January 2014

- Permanent differences differences ansing from the application by Group companies of the
statutory tax rate in the corresponding country

- This heading also includes the income tax expense recognised by Spanish companies In
respect of foreign taxes collected by each country on revenue from the provision of services
and interest received by Codere S A

In 2013, the item "Cost associated with tax inspections” related to the cost of tax inspections on
Codere Mexico and some of its subsidianies

Corporate income tax expense for 2014 was calculated as follows

Thousand euro

2014 2013
Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax (169,965) (162,248)
Permanent differences 218,196 237,017
Temporary differences 29272 31,549
Use of previously unrecognised tax losses (250) (2,652)
Tax base (taxable income} 77,253 103,666

Temporary differences correspond mainly to differences in the useful lives of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment for tax and accounting purposes

Permanent differences correspond mainly to expenses which are not tax deductible and
adjustments on consolidation
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

The main components of the income tax expense are as follows

Consolidated income statement

Current tax
- Current income tax expense (*)
- Foreign taxes and other adjustments to current tax

Deferred tax

- Relates to increases and decreases in temporary
differences (Note 12)
- Relative to deferred tax charge on retained earnings in
Argentina
Other adjustments to ncome tax expense
- Cancellation of tax credit for tax losses

Corporate income tax expense
(") Includes cost of tax inspections

Thousand euro

T

2014 2013
27,708 40,608
13,969 13,773

{10,008) (11,127)

9,216 -

- 2,105
40,885 45,359

The tax effect of tax losses for which no tax assets are recogmised Is reflected in adjustments to
current tax This heading also includes amounts paid for taxes equivalent to corporate income tax

in Mexico (IETU until 2013) and ltaly

The breakdown of tax loss carryforwards pending offset losses of the Codere Group at 31
December 2014 and 2013 after factoning in tax expense for both periods is as follows (thousand

euro)

Thousand euro

Company

2014 2013

Figures restated undar
IFRS 11

Codere, S A (Tax Group)
Rest of Spain

ltaly

Mexico

Argentina

Panama

Uruguay

Brazil

Colombia

Total

360,555 354,372
20,604 20,604
43,258 24,335
170,713 58,206
1,593 1,839
3,541 3,118
33,381 17,708
28,752 27,980
207 17,160

662,644 525,322

Unrecognised deferred tax assets amount to 154,491 thousand euros at 31 December 2014

and137,800 thousand eurcs at 31 December 2013
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

The tax credit which may be generated by unused tax losses in respect of income tax in the years
to come 15 not recognised in the Group's consolidated balance sheet, except for capitalised tax
credits totaling 23,988 thousand euros corresponding mainly to Codere S A (6,972 thousand
euros}, certan ltahan companies (11,167 thousand euros) and certain Mexican companies (3,389
thousand euros)

In 2015, due to the entry into force of the amendment to the Spanish Carporate Income Tax Act,
tax loss carryforwards are no longer subject to any time hrmit Tax losses relating to Spain amount
to 381,159 thousand euros at 31 December 2014

The time limits for offsetting tax loss carryforwards prevailing at the year end are as follows

Thousand guro Thousand euro

2014 2013

Year Qther countries Spain Other countries
2014 2230 - 3760
2015 2112 30 2,500
2018 6591 54 7387
N7 9324 1,064 8775
2018 21025 1,576 16,424
2019 15,045 5374 4,973
2020 15,473 3917 14 750
2021 9,533 14 279 5 689
2022 17,479 38,858 10,477
2023 46,106 39,223 10,833
2024 64,369 84,239 .
Subsequent penods - 183,740 -
Indefinite 72,198 - 67,400
Total 281,485 372,354 152,968

The amount of unused tax credits of the Codere Group at year-end and thetr expiry dates at 31
December 2014 and 2013 are as follows

Expiry date 2014 2013
2013 - 608
2014 938 938
2015 807 807
2016 1,512 1,512
2017 1,789 1,799
2018 4,107 4,107
2019 6,844 6,844
2020 1,786 1,786
2021 5344 5344
2022 30 30
2023 25 25
2024 14 14
2025 97 97
2026 125 125
2027 6,897 6,897
2028 1472 8274
2029 755 .

32,551 39,203

22 Guarantees extended to third parties and other contingent habilities
One of the Group's man activities 1s the operation of amusement and gambling machines, which in

Spain are subject to the guarantee requirements stipulated by Royal Decree 533/1990 of 27 Apnl
These guarantees have been deposited with the competent authorities
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

Although Codere SA 15 not a direct operator of gaming activites, the Company provides
guarantees akin to those of an operating company to Group companies when banks require
guarantees from the Parent

The breakdown of sureties and bank guarantees at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows

Thousand euro

Sureties and guarantees 2014 2013
Sureties and guarantees for gaming 87,386 114,018
Other guarantees 69,654 78,175

157,040 192,193

Sureties and guarantees for gaming

The most significant sureties and guarantees for gaming operations at 31 December 2014 and
2013 correspond to suretyship policies in respect of obligations derived from the administrative
concession granted by L'Amministrazione Autonoma del Monopall dello Stato (AAMS) to Codere
Network, S p A for the installaton and operation of a gaming management network in italy in the
amount of 19,858 thousand euros at 31 December 2014 |t should be noted that these policies are
external to the senior credit facility and are therefore not covered by that ine's guarantee package
18,880 thousand euros Is also included relating to the guarantee lines which the Group has utilised
when drawing down part of the senior financing facility

Codere S A has aiso provided guarantees to the tax authorities of the autonomous community of
Madnd in respect of the orgamisation and marketing of sports betting operations totalling 12,003
thousand euros at 31 December 2014 and the same amount at 31 December 2013 It should be
noted that these policies are external to the senior credit facility and are therefore not covered by
that ine's guarantee package

There are other non-bank guarantees counter-guaranteed by Codere, S A , 1ssued by Afianzadora
Aserta S A de CV in Mexico, guarantees 1n favour of the Mexican Federal Treasury related to the
lawsuits concerning tax related interest of Codere Mexico Group amounting to the equivalent of
34,330 thousand euros at 31 December 2014, compared with 32,320 thousand euros at 31
December 2013

Codere S A has also provided other non-bank guarantees including guarantees 1ssued by Generall
n ltaly to secure the lease of premises and bingo concessions held by the Operbingo Group
totalling 6,403 thousand euros which are counter-guaranteed by Codere, S A

The Company's Directors do not consider that matenal obligations are likely to anse from these
guarantees, for which no provisions have been recognised

Other guarantees

Codere S A has also provided other non-bank guarantees including guarantees issued by General
in ltaly to secure the lease of premises and bingo concessions held by the QOperbingo Group
totaling 6 4 million euros, which are counter-guaranteed hy Codere, S A
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES -
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS e
(Thousand euro) ——
—erminiink
e
S
There are other non-bank guarantees counter-guaranteed by Codere, S A | 1ssued by Afianzadora N
Aserta S A de CV in Mexico, guarantees in favour of the Mexican Federal Treasury related to the —
lawsuits concerning tax related interest of Codere Mexico Group amounting to the equivalent of B
34,971 thousand euros at 31 December 2014 and 32,320 thousand euros at 31 December 2013 e
i
Codere S A s the parent guarantor on the bonds 1ssued by Codere Finance (Luxembourg), S A e
under an intercreditor agreement between the two companies bearing interest at the same rate as _______,,'
the bonds These bonds are subsidianly secured by pledges of shares in Codere Espafia, S L U e
|
and Codere Internacional, SL U
In management’s opinion, these guarantees should not give nse to significant habilities beyond the
amounts provided for -
The companies histed in the table below own land, bulldings and machines which have been -
pledged as collateral to secure bank loans and tax deferral applications (in the case of Spanish e
companies), the values of which are as follows _—
Thousand euro -
31 December 2014 -~
Land and butldings Machines Total -
Operibenca, S A 8,938 61,158 70,086 i
JMQuerc S A 1,222 - 1,222 et
J PV Matic 2005, S L 858 - 858
Codere Gwona, S L 5,335 - 5,335 v———
Codere Alicante, S A 209 - 209 B
Codere Asesoria, S L 4,195 - 4,195 s
Comercial Yontxa, S A 261 - 261 .
21,018 61,158 82,176 e
R — ]
R —— ]
s
el
Thousand euro —
31 December 2013 I
Land and huildings Machines Total e
]
Codere Madnd, S A U - 52,501 52,501 —
Openbénca, S A 1,557 213 1,770
Codere Barcelona, S A 4,557 - 4,557 -
Recreativos Mae, S L 1,278 - 1,278 e
Gistra, S L 144 - 144 et
JM Quero S A 1,083 - 1,083 —
J PV Matic 2005, 5 L 871 - 871 S
Codere Valencia S A - 6,087 6,087
Codere Girona, S L 5,408 - 5,408 JE————
Codera Alicante, S L 218 - 218 g
15,116 58,801 73,917 e
(*) The amounts included under “Machines™ in the table above correspond to the value ascnbed in —_—
the collateral agreements while the amounts recognised under “Land and buildings” are stated at —
therr carrying amounts N

23 Income and expenses

a) Other income

This heading corresponds principally to revenue received under an exclusivity agreement with a
machine suppler in Mexico derived from the installation of machines by said supplier in gaming

premises not operated by the Codere Group Since 2013, the revenues from the lease of the
Banamex centre are included
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

b} Consumables and other external expenses

This heading corresponds to food and dnink consumables, principally in Mexico, Argentina, Spain
and Panama

c) Other operating expenses

Thousand euro

Figuras restated under IFRS 11

2014 2013

Gaming levies and other taxes 468,898 513,363
Machine rentals and other leases 109,531 118,502
Supplies, repair and maintenance 72,448 78,861
Professional services and other expenses 285,378 259,702
936,255 970,428

d) Employee henefit expense
The breakdown of consolidated employee benefit expense in 2014 and 2013 1s as follows

Thousand euro

Figures restatad under IFRS 11

2014 2013
Wages, salaries and similar expenses 178,998 232,703
Social secunty costs 48,680 57,410
Other welfare expenses 14,452 9,995
Total 240,130 300,108

“Wages, salanes and similar expenses” includes termination benefits n the amount of 6,411
thousand euros in 2014 (9,270 thousand euros 1n 2013)

d) Staff
2014 2013
Figures restated under IFRS 11
Average number of Average number of employees
employees
Men Women Men Women
Administrative staff 276 383 353 464
Executives (including sermor management) 118 28 124 19
Middle management 1,693 661 1,456 565
Manual workers 5,963 4,009 7,633 5,406
Techrical staff 1,477 582 1,317 434
Total 9,427 5,754 10,883 6,888
&89

U

i

1

|

|

il

i

t
H

i

N

i

L

mnm

i

mm

Ui

|




CODERE, S.A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

The decrease in the number of employees 1s due to the Group's restructuring processes carried out
in 2014, particularly in Mexico and Argentina

f) Earnings per share

Basic earmings per share

2014 2013

Loss for the year Average number of Loss per Loss for the year Average number  Loss per
(€'000) shares share (Thousand euro) of shares share
(207,883) 54,752,222 (3 80y (205,273) 54,885,363 (374)

Basic earnings/ioss per share altributable to the parent company

2014 2013

Loss for the year Average number of Loss per Loss for the year Average number Loss per
{€'000} shares share (Thousand euro) of shares share
{173,005) 54,752,222 {3 16) {173,616) 54,885,363 {316)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to the parent company

2014 2013

Loss for the year Average number of Loss per Loss for the year Average number Loss per
{€'000) shares share {Thousand euro) of shares share
(173,008) 54,752,222 _{318) (173,616) 54 885 363 (316)

Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of alf dilutive potential ordinary shares For this purpose
conversion 1s treated as hawving taken piace at the start of the period or at the moment the potential
ordinary shares were 1ssued, If this took place duning the pericd concerned At 31 December 2014
and 2013 the Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares, as no convertible debt had been
1ssued and the share-based payment systems (note 16) will not entail any equity 1ssuance by the
Group which could have a dilutive effect in the future

Including treasury shares, basic earmings per share i1s calculated on the basis of an average
number of shares of 54,752,222 in 2014 (54,885,363 shares in 2013)

90

L

i

L

T nm

i

T

n

|

|

T




CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

g} Finance income and costs

Thousand euro
Figures restated under IFRS 11

2014 2013
Financial expenses
Contractual interest expense (132,561) {133,987)
Provisions and other lrabiibies unwinding of discount (15,613) (7,325)
Total {148,174) (141,312}
Fimancial income
Interest income 2,120 2,735
Income from securities, loans and other assets 1,211 2,293
Other finance income - 39
Total 3,331 5,067
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) (45,899) (8,755)
Net finance costs (190,742) (145,000)

Contractual interest expense

This heading reflects interest expense on borrowings from third parties The year-on-year decrease
in 2014 1s due manly to the interest generated on the debt taken on by the Argentine companies {o
finance the renewal of therr licences and the borrowing costs associated with the renewal of the
senior debt facility in Codere

Provisions and other habilties unwinding of discount

The increase n this heading in 2014 results from the fact that in 2014 it reflected 51,613 thousand
euros relating mainly to the following items

« 5,436 thousand euro loss in Mexico as a result of not exercising the purchase option on
15 2% of the Icela Group in June 2014

» Losses on the sale-purchase of Argentne government bonds in the amount of 10,058
thousand euros

In contrast, in 2013 this heading manly included the loss due to the adjustment to far value of the
icela option

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses)
In 2014 this heading I1s the net result of 105,739 thousand euros of exchange gains and 151,637

thousand euros of exchange losses In 2013 this heading 1s the net result of 85,336 thousand
euros of exchange gains and 94,091 miles thousand euros of exchange losses
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CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

24 Additional information on the consolidated cash flow statement

Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents

Thousand euro

2014 2013

Cash equivalents 12,806 24,491
Cash at bank and n hand 73,866 77,905
86,672 102,396

Thousand euro

Currency 2014 2013
Euro 43,214 52,394
US dollar 6,284 14,440
Argentine peso 17,641 26,519
Mexican peso 15,832 5418
Uruguayan peso 1,745 862
Colombian peso 1,657 2,133
Sterling 1 2
Chilean peso 53 199
Braziian real 145 197
86,672 102,396

Additional information on cash flows from investing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the main transactions not involving movements of cash
were profits on sales of fixed assets (2,026 thousand euros), operating income (366 thousand
euros), losses on disposals or sales of fixed assets (5,373 thousand euros) and operating
expenses (4,232 thousand euros)

With regard to cash applied to investing activities in the year ended 31 December 2014, payments
were made for fixed-asset acquisitions totalling 83,641 thousand euros and 6,679 thousand euros
was earned on sales of fixed assets In addition,144 thousand euros was received from long-term
ioans consisting of a net increase of 121 thousand euros i loans to the owners of hotel and
catenng businesses Iin Spain (loans paid out of 2,307 thousand eurcs net of receipts of 2,186
thousand euros) and 23 thousand euros received on long-term loans granted to the owners of
premises n ltaly (loans paid out of18,848 thousand euros net of receipts of 18,825 thousand
euros) Payments have been made for acquisitions of compames {net of cash received) totaling
2,252 thousand euros which include the acquisition of 49% of minority interests in Mexico and 10%
in bingos in Italy for 2,258 thousand euros and includes the 332 thousand euro cash outflow ansing
in 2013 from the companies ceasing to be consolidated

Increases in cash due to bank foans of 1,051 thousand euros relate to loans obtained mamnly In
ltaly The 11,989 thousand euros in bank loan repayments relate to Mexico, Panama and ltaly
bingos Vanation in other financial Labiities includes funds from deferral of taxes amounting to
2,626 thousand euros

The heading "Other cash flows due to the impact of exchange rates on cash recepts and
payments" records applications of funds amounting to 10,599 thousand euros

92

TR

Ty

Uil

|

I

O aebiie bl




CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOL!IDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{(Thousand euro)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the main transactions not involving movements of cash
were profits on sales of fixed assets (353 thousand euros) operating income (768 thousand euros),
losses on disposals or sales of fixed assets (6,842 thousand euros) and operating expenses (9,250
thousand euros)

The heading Other under changes in working capital includes the effect of exchange rate
fluctuations on operating activities and the vanation in time-period adjustments due to prepaid
expenses and deferred income

With regard to cash applied to investing activities in the year ended 31 December 2013, payments
were made for fixed-asset acquisitions totalling 112,614 thousand euros and 207 thousand euros
was earned on sales of fixed assets In addition, 1,276 thousand euros was receved from long-
term locans consisting of a net reduction of 866 thousand euros in loans to the owners of hotel and
catenng businesses in Span {loans paid out of 1,523 thousand eurcs net of receipts of 2,389
thousand euros) and 413 thousand euros received on long-term loans granted to the owners of
premses In ltaly (loans paid out of 21,534 thousand euros net of receipts of 21,247 thousand
euros) Cash paid in respect of acquisitions of companies (net of the cash acquired) totalling 2,822
thousand euros includes the acquisition of machine and bingo operators in Italy, a 459 thousand
eurc payment for the acquisition of operators in Spain and 16 thousand euros in cash due to the
full consolidation of a machine operator in ltaly

Increases in cash due to bank loans of 21,183 thousand euros relate to loans obtained mainly in
Uruguay The 41,644 thousand euros in bank loan repayments relate to Argentina, Mexico,
Panama, Spain and ltaly Changes in other financial debt include funds obtained due to the deferral
of fees of 8,509 thousand euros and funds applied in the payment of renewal expenses for the
senlor credrt facility totaling 9,288 thousand euros, as well as expenses associated with the bank
loans granted in Argentina amounting to 1,334 thousand euros

The heading "Other cash flows due to the impact of exchange rates on cash recepts and
payments" records applications of funds amounting to 9,751 thousand euros
25 Related party disclosures

Transactions with related parties not belonging to the Group at 31 December 2014 and 2013 and
year-end balances resulting from related party transactions were as follows

Thousand euro

2014 Nature of relationship Loans Services provided
Encarnacion Martinez Sampedro Executive/Director 512
Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro Executive/Director 1,026
Robert Gray Adviser to the Board 2,015 138
Fernando Crs Executive 154
Jaime Estalella Executive 3
José Ramén Romero Director 500
Pedro Vidal Executive 154
Adolfo Carpena Executive 103

3,967 641
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

Thousand euro

Services

2013 Nature of relationship Loans provided
Encarnacion Martinez Sampedro Executive/Director 503 -
Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro Executive/Director 1,006 -
Raobert Gray Adviser to the Board 2,183 43
Fernando Ors Executive 151 -
Jaime Estalella Executive 101 -
José Ramén Romero Director 503 500
Pedro Vidal Executive 151 -
Adolfo Carpena Executive 101 -
4,699 543

The interest expense accrued on leans to related parties amounted to 64 thousand euros at year-
end 2014 (136 thousand euros at year-end 2013) No balances were pending payment to related
parttes at either year-end

The transactions carmned out with related parties were at arm’s length At 31 December 2014,
nterest accrued on icans to directors amounting to 1,103 thousand has been provided for in full At
31 December 2013, interest accrued on loans to directors amounting to 1,323 thousand euros has
been provided for in full

a) Director and senior management remuneration

The salanes, per diems and other remuneration paid to the members of the Board of Directors of
Codere S A are broken down below

Thousand euro

2014 2013
Directors' remuneration 742 761
Services rendered (*) 500 500
Fixed and vanable remuneration 1,771 1,746
3,013 3,007

(*) This balance includes fees of 500 thousand euros and 500 thousand euros paird in 2014 and 2013, respectively, to the
legal firm of director Mr José Ramon Romero in respect of legal counsel provided to the Codere Group
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

The fixed remuneration received by the Group's executive directors in 2074 was as follows

Gross amounts paid (thousand euro)

Remuneration

Fixed for attending
remuneration Board

Director Fixed remuneration as director meetings Total
Mr José Antonio Martinez

Sampedro 912 32 30 974
Mr Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro 650 32 27 709
Ms Encarnacion Martinez

Sampedro 209 32 29 270
Total 1,771 96 86 1,953

The fixed remuneration paid tc the Company's non-executive directers in 2014 for thewr
membership of the Board of Directors and its vanous commitiees (the Audit Commuittee,
Comphlance Committee and Corporate Governance Committee) was as follows

Gross amounts paid {thousand euros)

Remunara Remunara
tion for Remunera tion for
attanding ton for attanding
Remunaration Remunara Audit attending Corporate
Fixed for attending tion pald for Com Compliance Governance
remuneration Board vice mittea Commiitee Committae
Director as director maatings presidency meatings meaotings meetings Tatal
Masampe S L (1) 32 29 29 - 4 11 100
Mr Jose Ignacic Cases
Méndaz 32 30 - - 4 7 73
Mr Josaph Zappala 32 30 - 8 2 - 70
Mr Jose Ramdn Romaro
Rednguez 32 a0 - 7 4 - 73
Mr Eugenio Vala Sastre 32 30 - 7 - 6 75
Mr Juan Jose Zomoza Pérez 32 27 -] - 7 72
Mr_Juan Jungquera Temprano 32 30 73 4 7 g6
Total 224 206 52 28 18 33 559

(1) Represented by José M Lastra Bermudez
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

The remuneration paid to senior management in 2014 was 3,031 thousand euros (4,030 thousand
euros at 31 December 2013) Termination benefits amounting to 272 thousand euros were paid to
senior executives i 2014 The employment contracts of several of the Spanish members of
Codere's management team contain clauses specifying special payments in the event of dismissal
in addition to those required by current legislation The overall amount of the redundancy payments
under these contracts stood at 1 1 million euros at 31 December 2014 and 1 5 million euros at 31
December 2013

No advances had been extended to members of the Board of Directors at erther year-end Nor had
the Parent assumed pension plan cbligations on behalf of former or serving members of the Board
The loans extended to directors and semor managers are detalled at the beginming of this note

In compliance with their duty to avoid any conflict with the Company's interests, during the year the
directors that have held positions on the Board of Directors have complied with the obligations laid
down in Article 228 of the Spanish Companies Act 2010 In addition, both they and persons related
to them have abstained from corming under the instances of conflict of interest envisaged In Article
229 of said Law, except In cases in which the relevant authorisation has been obtained

A conflicted director must abstain from deliberating on resolutions or decisions relating to the
transaction giving rise to the conflict In addition, the directors have confirmed the absence of
conflict of interest with Codere, S A except as described in Note 3f The company's Directors
declare that they do not hold investments or posts in companies whose corporate purpose 18
identical, similar or complementary to that of Codere, S A other than those detailled in Appendix IlI

In addition, in comphance with Article 4 f) of the Board of Directors Regulations of Codere, S A, the
Drrectors are alse obliged to report any direct or indirect shareholdings held by them or their related
parties in companies whose corporate purpose 1s identical, similar or complementary to that of the
Company, additionally reporting any positions or duties discharged at these companies Agamnst
this backdrop, they have declared that they have neither performed nor are currently performing
any achivities, as independent professionals or as employees, at compamies whose corporate
purpose i1s identical, similar or complementary to that of the Company, other than those instances
itemised in Appendix lil

Neither the directors nor persons acting on their behalf have carned out transactions with the
Company during the year that were outside the ordinary course of its business or that were not at
arm’s length

b) Balances with the Caliente Group

Certain Mexican companies hold recevables against Caliente Group companies (Mexico minonty
shareholder) that have not been acquired in the amount of 38,858 thousand euros (28,417
thousand euros at 31 December 2013), the amount of which 1s provided for in full at 31 December
2014

c) Balances with the CIE Group

The Codere Group has an account receivable of 10,718 thousand eurcs at 31 December 2014

{10,795 thousand euros at 31 December 2013) with the CIE Group (minorty shareholder in
Mexico)} company Make Pro, S A de C V relating to advertising and sponsorship
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

26 Auditor remuneration

The fees paid to the Group's auditors are as follows

Thousand euro

PricewaterhouseCoopers Other PwC group

Auditores, S L companies Total

FY 2014
Audit services 290 1,711 2,001
Other services 4 79 83
294 1,790 2,084

FY 2013
Audit services 273 1,585 1,896
Other assurance services 132 273 405
Tax advisory services - 169 169
Other services 34 52 86
439 2,079 2,556

27 Environmental disclosures

Environmental activity 1s any transaction the mamn purpose of which 1s to minimise environmental
impact and to protect and improve an entity's environmental record

The Group did not make any material investments of an environmental nature in either 2014 or
2013

No provision 1s recognised in the consolidated balance sheet for environmental habilities, as the
Group had no material future obiigations at year-end in respect of measures to mitigate or reparr
damage caused to the environment

28 Events after the balance sheet date

Change in shareholder structure in Carrasco Nobile, S A

As a result of the financial difficulbes undergone by Carrasco MNobule, S A and pursuant to
Uruguayan law, on 29 October 2014 said company's sharehclders approved the requisite capital
reduction as the company's equity had fallen below the figure required by Uruguayan legislation
The amount finally approved in at the shareholders’ meeting tc restore the financial position of
Carrasco Nobile, S A required a subsequent capntal increase to restore the balance between
capital and equity Therefore, at said meeting a capital increase was proposed for a total amount of
525 milhon Uruguayan pesos (17 7 milion euros approx at 31 December 2014), in order to restore
the financial position of Carrasco Nobile, S A

97

1

iR

M

i

.

»

““HH‘

i

I

L

nm

ol

W

!

i

!



HHIW

AU

CODERE, S A AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
(Thousand euro)

On 23 January 2015, Codere Mexico SA de CV subscribed the capital increase in Carrasco Nobile,
S A proposed at the Extraordinary General Meeting of 29 October 2014, in an amount of 267 7
milhon Uruguayan pesos (8 9 millon euros approx at 31 December 2014) As a result of the capital
increase, in which the minority shareholder did not take part, Codere Mexico SA de CV increased
its interest in Carrasco Nobile, S A from 51% to 73 7%

On 23 January 2015 the Board of Directors of Carrasco Noblle, S A ratified the resoclution adopted
on 10 December 2014 for the restructuring of existing loans with Rospide Corredor de Bolsa, S A
and other lenders The agreement involves changes in the principal repayment and interest
payment schedule and changes in debt ratios The Codere Group estimates that the agreement
will be formalised during the first quarter of 2015

Closure of halls in Mexico

Duning January and February 2014 judicial decisions were received which rejected the possibiity of
reopening five of the eight halls that were closed in Mexico in 2013 As a result of these
notifications, an impairment of the assets associated with those halls has been recogrised,
entaiing a 7 1 million euro impact on the 2014 income statement

Italian Stabibty Law

The Stability Law enacted in Italy on 29 December 2014 includes the implementation of a new tax
for 2015 on gaming companies In ltaly amounting to 500 milion eurcs per annum The annual
payment, as from 2015, will be distnbuted among the 13 network concession holders based on the
number of interconnected machines of each operator Codere Network, S p A will be required to
pay 22 million euros according to a report published by the AAMS dated 15 January 2015 This
amount will be distributed among all participants in the value chain of Codere Network, Sp A

Approval of the new Board of Directors Requlations

Al a meeting held on 23 January 2015, the Board of Directors of Codere S A agreed to amend the
Regulations of the Board of Directors in order to bring them into line with the changes included in
the Spanish Companies Act as amended on 3 December 2014 with respect to the operation of the
Board of Directors and its Committees Among other relevant matters, the determination of tax
strategy and the management of tax nsks have been included among competencies reserved for
the Board of Directors The figure of the Coordinating Director has also been regulated, who may
request a meeting of the Board and the inclusion of new tems on the agenda to reflect the
concerns of external directors and who will direct the evaluation by the Board of its Chairman In
addition, the composition of the Audit and Corporate Governance Comrmittees have been altered,
requiring a higher number of independent directors
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CODERE, S.A. AND THE SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
{Thousand euro)

The subsidiary, Codere Finance {(UK) Limited company number 09200465, 1s taking
advantage of exemption from audit under section 479a of the Companies Act 2006
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APPENDIX |
Consolidated Group at 31 December 2014 and 2013
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2014 adl)
Conludation % bl
hame Busmess method Sharcholdmyg Haldwg company Sharehalding toldmg company
SPAIN
CARTAYA SAU
Awla de Hrusclas 26 Hingo bhall operation Full consol 100% CODFRE ESPARA.SL U 100% CODERE FSPANA,S LU
24108 Alcobendas ( Madrud}
CHoSL
Avia b Brusclay 24 Guarang maching opeTstion Full consol 5% OPERIBFRICA § AU % COUERE MADRID § AU
IW108 Alcobendss (Madrid)
COM RE ALICANTE, S LU
Avia Algueria dé Movet 19 21 Gamumg, machar operatim Full consol [ CODERE ESPAMA, S LU o CODERE ESPALALS LU
Picanys (Valeoci)
CODERE APUFSTAS. § A
Avds ds Bruselas 26 Sports bering Full consal Lo% SODERE AFUESTAS ESPANA L00% CODERE APUESTAS FSPARA. S LU
28108 Alcobendas (Madrd)
CODERE: APULSTAS ARAGON SLU
Joud Pellcer 33 Sports batng Full canssl 100% g?fz; RE APUESTAS FSPANA 100% CODERE APUI STAS FSPANAS L U
{Laragosn)
CODERE APUESTAS CASTILLA LA
MANCHA S AU
Poliynne Industrial Sants Maru de Sports bettmg Full consal ton  CODERE APUESTASESPANA W00%  CODERE APURSTAS FSPARAS L
Beaquerencu™ Calle Jarams 30 A
45007 Tokedo
CODFRE APLESTAS CASTILLA ¥ LEON
Sau CODERE APUESTAS ESPANA
Calle Recondn 11 13 Sports bettng Full cansol. [Le Sy
47007 Valladol
COULRE APUESTAS CATALUNA, § A
Poligune Industnal *Raere de Catdes™ Calle Spors betutg Full comal 100% CODERE APUESTAS ESPANA

Mercadors Nimera |
G134 Pakau | Soliuk Plcgamans { Bareclona)
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2014 2013
Cousobdaton * ¥
hame Business method Sharcholdmg Holdung company Sharcholding. Holdmg compay
CODFRE APUFSTAS CEUTA 5 L.
Glarieta del Teruems Rewoss, ¥ afificin“Crua CODERE APUESTAS ESPARA
Conter”™ bnales B2 B 23 B My B 25 Sports betung Full conal 100% coot
51001 Ceun
CODFRE APUFSTASISPAMA SLU
Avida dc Brusclas 26 Sports bestmg #ull consol. L00% CODERE, S.A 100% CODERF S A
24108 Alcobendas (Madeid)
CODERE APUESTAS EXTREMADURA, § A 1J
Acvepuda de Fspae 23 Spors berung. Pull consal 100% g?_[ff‘“ APUESTAS ESPANA
10600 Plascncn (Ciceres}
CODERE APUESTAS GALICLA, 5 LU
Eifcw Pabcio de ln Opers Glonets de Amércs CODERN APUI STAS FSPANA
e 1500k La Car Sparss betumg Full consol 100% oy L00% COUFRE AFUFSTAS ESPANA SL U
15004 A Corula
CODERF APURSTAS MURCLA. S LU
.
Alianie o 170 Spuorts belting Full comol 100% CODERE APULSTAS FSPARA 100% CODKRE APUSTAS ESPANAS L, U
30007 Munya
CODERE ARUFSTAS NAVARRA 5 A
Poligono Plazasla. Manzana 1) have 10 Azoam  Sports bettng Full cansol 100% g?_':f"w APUESTAS FSPANA 100%. CODFRE APULSTAS FSPANAS L U
11195 Barnoplano {Navarra)
CODERE APUESTAS LA RIOJA, S A
Pollgona industrial k1 Sequea® Calle Rlo CODERE APUESTAS ESPARA
Puqueass 133- N3 $ports befung, Full consol 100%, so
26151 Arrubal (La Rap
CODERF APLKSTAS VALENCIA S AU
Avds Alquerts de Mores, 19 21 Spors betung, Fult comsol tow  CODEREAPUESTAS LSPANA 100% CODERE APULSTAS ESPANA S LU
Prcaays (s akocs)
CODERE AMERICA SAU ment and admunmtration of Lo CODERE INTERMACIONAL DOS Lo CODERE INTE RN ACIGN AL DOS
Avwta do Husclaa 26 cquity of colucs bot rEadel m bl canl SAU SAU
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2014 o1k
C % %
hame Bursncn method Sharchokdmg Holding company Shareholding, Holding company
X168 Akcobendss (Madnd) Spam
CODERF ASESORIA, SAU
Avde Alqueria de Morer, 15 21 Garong machine operaton Full casol. 100% OPERIBERICA. S AU 94 2% CODERE Y ALENCIA, S A
Picanys {Valeacu)
LA RF BARCHLONA S AU
Mercaders L Fol Ind, Ricra de Caldes Ganung machine operaton 100% CODERE ESPANA, SL U
Falau de Plepamars (Barcelons)
CODERE Di§!RIPLCIONES § LU
Mercaders 1 Pol Ind Riers de Caldes Gaming machine operation,
dtrinion and meetng Full cunsol 100% OPERIBERICA. 5 A U 100% CODERE BARCFLONA. SA U
Puau dc Phgamazn { Barceloss)
CODEFRE ESFANA,SLU
Avda d¢ Bruselm 20 “‘:‘t““ FompAny gamimg maching Full consol L00% CODERE, S A 100% CODIRE, S A
inpe hall opcraton
25108 Alcobendas [ Madrud)
CODERE GIRONA 5 A
C/ Benet del Ruw, 10 Guntung machuse operation Full causol 66 67% CODERE FSPANA, SL U 66 67% CODERE ESPANA, S LU
Giroom (Barcelons)
CODFRE GUADALAJARA. S A
Awvds de Bruselas 26 Gamung nuchux: operatwn £ull consol 5074 OPERIBERICA. S AU s COIM RE MADKID 5 AU
Alobendas (Madrid)
LODERE HUFSE A, S L
 Cavig K porinl & kcal B Cemuiy macbuie operstan Full consol 5102% OPERIBERICA,S A U 51 02% COE Ry BARCELONA, SA U
(1 benca)
CODERE INTERNACIONAL, S L U
Avds de Banclu 26 Holding cunipany Full wonsol 100% LODERF 8 A 1007 CODIRE SA
X106 Alcobendas (Madnd)
CODERE INTEANACIONAL DOSS A U
Holding con

Avda de Bruschu 26 i compiny Full consat 1o SOUFREINIERNACIONAL 10024 CODI RE INTERNACIONAL S LU

SLU
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14 2019 -_—:l
B ——
Cansalidsion * % it
Name Busncss mcthod Sharehalding Ilalding conmpany Sharchalding Holdeg congaay ettt
T8108 Alcobendas (Madnd)
R
[N
CODFRI INTFRACTIVA SL I
Avda de Brusclas 26 Tebevuson, oaloc wod tckepbany Full consol. 9%, CODERE, § A S0 CODERE S PN,
2 pmmg
X103 Ak obendas (Madrid) I
U
CODERF LOGRONOD SL. .
Prquarss 1313 Gamang machine cperaton Hult cousol 7503% OPERIBERICA.SA U 740M% CODFRE BARCELOMA.SA U ————
Arrubal (La Krya)  ——ad
e o]
CODERF MADRID 5 A U —me——
Awida de Brusclas 26 Gaming machune aperation 100% CODERE FSPANA,S LU e
28104 Ak obendas (Madrud) g
e
CODFRF DNLINES.AU B
Avda de Bruselas 26 g;"'“'“ "E""“"" markeiung Full conso) 100% CODERE ESPANA. SL U 100% CODERE ESPANA.SL U iy
28108 Alcobenas (Madrd) e
CODFRF SAGLNTO S L
::'x;"_“lxﬂz""l ' de Movel, Avda Algeenia de Gamung machme operancn Full camol 100% OPERIBERICA,S AU -
Ircanys { Valenca) —
e
v ——
Codere Servicios Compamdos SA (*)
[
Avda dc Brusclas 20 Fuubnc el services. il coumal 100% CODERF 5A 100% CODERE SA -
8108 Alcuberdz, (Madrid) -
R
CODERE SFRVICIOS $ LU
Adviory micrmediery and real R
Avda de Hruselas 26 esiale developiment aod £ull consal 100% JPY MATIC 2005 SL 100% JPV MATIC 2005 S L. R
BI0K Akobendas {Madeud) Mmanugemant sETVicey e
—
CODERE VALERCLA, S A ——
Avis Alqueria de Morer 19 21 Gamung machme aporation % CODERE ESPANA.SL U —
Prcanyn {valencis) ———
———
CODERE 5 A
Financial services 100% 100% ——
Avin de Boneh, 16 tall consol. ————
e ]
i
—re———
R
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2014 2013
a " “
Tame Business meibod Sharcholding tHoldmg company Sharcholding Holdmg company
23100 Alooberudas {Madnd)
COLONDER SAU
Avda de Brusclos 26 | Lalding company Full consal L00% giul; RE INTERNACIONAL DOS Tooy Eguut RE [NTFRNACIONAL DOS
28105 Akobendas (Madrid)
COMERCIAL YONTXA, S A
UNicolas Akorw, | Graung machok opetson Full comsol. 5% OPFRIBERICA, S AU 1% OPERIBERICA, S A U
AR003 Rulhao
DESARROLLO ONLINE JUEGOS
REGULADOS S AU
CF Manues 0 33 Cnline gammng sctviies Full consol 100% CODERE QRLINES AU 100% CODHRF SA
2K224 Poguels de Alaredn (Madrid)
FL PORTALON S L.
Avda g Brusclas 26 Gammg machme operauon Full coosol 0% OPERIBERICA. S AU 0% CODERF MADRID SAU
15108 Alcubendas (Madnd)
GARAIFEN VICIORIA APUSTUAK S L CODMR APUES 1 AS FSFANA O R APUESTAS LSPANA S L U
O Nwolas Alkona | Spuirts betuny, Full ceasol 45 15% S LU and COMERCIAL 34 46%
and COMERCIAL YONTXAS A
45003 Bilbas YONTXAS A
GISTRA SLU
T Veldrques, 14 Premus leasing 47 36% RECREATIVOS RUAN S A
601K Valen:u
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Name

Conualidaon

2014

2013

%

Sharcholdmg

Haoldug cotmpany

Shancholduig

lloldiag company

JM QUERD Y ASOCLADDS, S AU
Awda de Bruelss 16
%108 Adcobendas (Madrid)

JPVMATIC 2005 SLU
Awvda de Brselas 28
25108 Alcobendas (Madnd)

MISUR) s AU
Avda de Bruxtlas 26
K108 Alcahcndas {Madrul)

NIDIDEM SLU
Avda de Bnaelas 26
28103 Adcobendas (Madnd)

OFFRIBERICA AU
Avda de Baselas 26
28108 Akobendas (Madrd)

OPERCES1I SA
Crtlerndn Cords 184
Yillenisevy de ln Serens (Badnjor)

OPFRSHERRA SLU
©/ Padre Mekhor Preto 31
(Burgos}

RECREATIVOS ACR, S L.
Poligono bspinu Sane Parccla 1112
33010 Ovieda ( Astirias)

RECHREAIIVOS MAF S LU
Cna Pali - Akuda kin 19400

Gazung machoe operatoa

Gumung machine operaton

Bogo pmmg

Management of controled mveuees

Garung machine operaton

Garubg michine operaton

Ganung machins operation

CGammg niachase aperatun

CGarmung machuc operacon

Full consal.

Full comal

Full comsa|

Full consol

Full congol.

Full consol

Full cansol

Fult consol.

5%

CODERE ESFARA S LU

CODERE ESPARA.S.L U7

CODERE ESPARA, $.LV

COBERE INTERNACIOMAL
DASSAU

CODERE ESPARA, 5.LU

OPFRIBERICA, S A U

COMERCIAL YONTXA, 5.A

OPERIBERICA SA U

LOO%

L%

51%

CODERF ESPANA.S LU

CODERE ESPANA, SLU

CODERE ESPANALS LU

CODERE INTERMNACIONAL DOS
SAlL

CODERE ESPANA,SLU

OPFRIBERICA, 5 A U

COMERCIAL YONTXA, 5 A

OPFRIBERICA, S A U

CODERE ESPANA,S L U
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Buiness

Connoldaton

met

2014

2013

%

%

Sharcholdmy

Hokdiny, company

Sharcholding

i loldung company

Consell {Mallorca)

RECREATIVOS OBELISCO S L.
Iuercal de Alimena 7 San Rafacl 73 Poligone

Industnal San Rafacl
Almeria

RECREATIVOS POPULARES S 1L,

&/ Pucnic de la Koma, 26 Bapo
Y allsdohd

RECREATIVOS RUAN S.A
Cvclizquez 18
Vol

RFD ARAM SAU
Awda dc Bruscls 26
ZBIOK Alcobendas {Madrid)

RESTIYCIASL
Avda de Brus¢las 26
28108 Akebendas (Maudrd)

RESUR CADIL S L
P 1 Fl Poreone have | 2
Jercz de la bromiera (Chdiz)

SIGIREC S L
Avds de Brugclas 26
28108 Alcobemdng (Madrid)

Garmung machine operaion

Gammg machne operaion

Gaming machine operaton

Hmgo gaming

Cinrung machine operation

CGaming machme aperation.

Gaming machine operation

Full consol

Full consal

Full consol

Full consal

B0 61%

TI05%

QOFERIBFRICA SAU

MISURL S A U

OPERIBERICA, SA U

OPERIBERICA. S A U

A0 61%

5%

47 36%

7505%

OPFRIAE RICA, S AL

OPERIBERICA. S A U

CODERE VALENCIA SA

MISURI 5 AU

CODERE MADRID 5A U

CODERE ESPANA, 5L

OPERIDERICA BA YU
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04 2013 N
Consaludation % ki ——
haine Hustess method Sharcholdmg, Hokog company Sharcbolding Holding company ST
e
ARGENTINA et
J——
BINGOS DEL OFSTE § A e
bertador CODERE ARGENTINA, S.A CODES i i
Av el L 1068 £ ¥ Loctesacs nd buigo halls Fll ecnsol oo and BINGOS PLATENSES § A O T PLATEAGES S e
Buenos Atres (Arpealina) —
J——
BINGOS PLATEASES 5 A [
s N e SESSEDGT o ST —
Buenos Arres (Argeawose) —
e
CODERK ARGENLINA § A COBERE AMERICA -
Av Del Liberiadar 1064, P % Holdimg company Full consol. 0% ({Boimg?siﬁ = 100% SAU.MOIDEMS LU and —
Bocaos Atres Urgeniuan IBERARGHN S A R
J—
IBERARUGEN 5 A ——
Av Dol Liberadon 1068 P9 B loenes and food end drask Full coesal L00% g%lgm"; SaU Lo0% 8"‘?"["“ SA U and MDIDEM ——
Buroe Aucs (Argraun) JE———
——‘-‘ﬂ
INTFRHAS § A —ee———
o |
Av el Liborindon 1063 P & Laticry xad bunge ball cpermtion Full consol - COLONDER SAL at -— COLONDER SA U and IHERARGER
U
Bucaos A (Argennns)
e
INTHRILFGOS, § A T————
e
o Do 1 —— o SORRETS e ST —
Bucnos Aurcs {Argoating)
RN
INTERMAR BINGOS 5.4
Av Deb Libenasdor 1064 P9 CODERE ARGENTINA $.A CODERE ARGENTINA, S A 480
Bunge ball eperation Full consol b and COLONDER SA U e COLONDIRSA U
[
ITAPOAN § A ——
Av Del Libenadar 1068 P & enge ball opeminon Full consol, ®L 2% IBERARCEN S 4 md B196%  PERARGER SA wd INTERDAS .
Bucnos Aucs (Arpoiting) .
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214 2013
Cx % %
ame Business encthod Starchaldmg, Holding company Sharcholdiny, Holding company
SAN JAIME, SA
Av el Libermadar 1068, P9 CODERE ARGENTINA. S.A CODLRE ARGLKTINA. S A and
g * Real estate Full eamsal 1% and BINGOS DFL OESTE. S A 100% BINGOS DEL OFSTE § A
Buenos Awrcs {Argenting)
BRASI
CODFRI DO BRASIL Lida
Rua Helens 260 - conuitos 42 ¢ 84 Vil Olzrp Gamimg naachune operaton and sull consol Lo CODERE AMERICA S.AU snd L00% CONFRE AMERICA SAU s
& P de a0 ) tetratk rmaagement NIDIBEM, S LU MEHDEM, S LU
CHIt 1.
CODFRE CHILE, Lide
Gerénumo de Aldereer 790, depeo 107 Ls Flonds, 70 "‘m“":: d"""::l;rk Fult camsol 100% CODERE AMERICA. S AU and 00% CODERE AMERICA, S AU and
Saauwg de Chile (Chik) porchse aad exchacge eomsol NIDIDEM, S.LU NIDIDEM, § LU
COLOMBEA
RINGOS (ODERE S & NIDIDEM, SL U INTERSARE, NIDIDFM, S LU INTERSARK S A
T 168 Bis A 281 41 5.A CODERF COLOMBIA CODERE COLOMBIA S.A
e T Hugo hall pperabon Fudl comsol ki SA COLONDER EAU and T COLONDER. SA and CODERE
Bogotk |Cokmba) CODFRE AMERICA $.A U AMFRICA S ALY
CODRRE COLOMHIA S A COLONDER SA U NIDUDFM
COLONDER, § A4 BIBIDEMS LI

Transverss! 93 Bu A¥ 230 41 Operalicn of electrocic games and Full consol 99 99%, SLU CODERE AMERICA 99%9%  CODERE AMEHICA 5 A U and

gamcs of diance SA U and CODERE COD CIONALS LU
Bagoth (Colambu INTERNACIONAL § LU FRE INTERMACIORAL S L
INTLRSAR! 5 A

Busmess operstin of electronse
Trazsverss$ 93 Bis A ha 28D - 41 o entry o s it po— CODERE C;)L(LMBIAS.A.M sha  COUERE cg:.%um.\sn -

faming coachines comol NIDIDEM, § L NIDIDEM, § L.
Bogoth (Colombs) partca
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2014 2013 e ]
C % % ———
hame Busincss matbod Sharehaldmg Holdang company Sharehaliiny, 11olding company —————
i
ENGLARD AND SCOFLAND ———
———r
CODFRF FINANCE (UK) —
Sih e &St Andrew Srcel, London EC4 JAE  Ahoriedio conduut sl leal Fell consol 1o0% CODERE $ A ———
United Kingrlom N
 r——
1IALY A —
o —
BINTEGRAL, 5 P& Te———
Vi Comnctha, 458 Hingo ball operation Full consul 100% OPERBINGO [TALIA S P A 100% OFERBINGO 11 ALIA, S ¥ A T——
Rome B ————
e
CODERF GAMING ITALIA SR L
Vie Coneli 498 Jlokding sompany Full consol 10087 CODEAE |1 ALIA, SP.A 100% CODERE [TALIA 5P A
o -
——
PUSE—.
CODERE {TALIA SP A .
Via Corti s 458 Provision of sdvisory servies Full consol, Lo COILRE INTHRNACIONAL, 100% CODERE INTFRNACIONAL, SLU r——
flome J————
et
CODFMATICA SR e
Vi Cornella 493 Guming machme operaion Full cousol. 0% ODLRE GAMING ITALLA |00%  CODERE GAMING ITALLA, S HL —
P ——emmplinda
R
[
oot S ey —
v Came la, 598 mm ouboe i P % OPERBINGO ITALIASP A 100% OPFRBINGCITALIASP A ——
Rome E—
e
CODERE NETWOR, 5P A e
% Comelln 498 Neawork coactanon Full consal 100% CODFMATICA SR L. 100%, CODEMATICA, SR e
Rome B ——
|
e
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hame

2013

method

Sharehaldmg

Halding company

Sharcholding

tolding company

CRISTALTEC SHRVICE, SRL
Vi Cornella 49%
Rooc

DPSFRVICES R L
Via Cornelia 198
Rome

FGSLOT SFRYVICE SR L
i Cormellia 994

Romc

GAMINGRESR L
Vi Corncllin 498
Roine

GAP GAMFSSR L
Vs Cornellin 498
Rome

GESTION MARCOR] SRL
Vu Cornellin 498
Rome:

GIOMAX SRL
Vin Comellia, 4948

Roae

hINGSLOT S R

Via Strada Sk Saanxka. 265 km 25 K00

Masddaloni {Ce) Jealy

KNG BINGD SR L.

Gamung mechuie opersuon

Ganung machme operanon

Gammg machme opcration

Gartung machine operaton

Camng machine operatan

Bmge hall aperation

Buigo hall aperation

Bugn hall epertion

Bingo hall oparanon

Full consol.

Full consol.

Full consol

Full coesol.

Full consol.

Fuwli conso)

Full cansol

Full consol

%

35%

5%

5%

8%

CODYRE ITALLA,SP.A

CODERF ITALEA SPA.

CODERY ITALEA, S P.A_

CODERE ITALIA SPA

CODERE [TALIA 3P A,

OPERBINGO ITALLA, SPA

OFERBINGO TTALLA, S PA_

GPERBINGO ITALIA, SP.A.

31%

Ti%

3%

100%

100%

CODERE ITALIA, S P A

CODFRF [TALIA, S P A

CODEREITALIA SF A

CODERE ITALLA S5PA.

CODERF ITALIA.SP A

OPERBINGO ITALIA. S.P A

QPERBINGO ITALIA, SP A

OPERBINGO ITAUA, SF A
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Consolxdation

Name Busmos mcthod

2084

2013

Stargholdmg.

Holding company

Sharcholdug

toldung cosnpany

Vi Strada Statale Sanmica, 263 km 23 500 Full consak
Maddaloas (Ce) laly

NEW JOKFR SR L
Y dells Maghona 279
Romc

Bmigo ball opersin 3

OPFRBINGO ITALIA, S P AL
v Comelln, 498
Rome

Bugo hall opcoatan Full conel.

PALALE BINGO SRL
Via Corncllin, 495
Rome

Bmgo hall opctaton Full consol.

PARISIENNE SR1.
Via Coroela 493
Rome

Bmgo hall epemton. Full consob.

ROYALJACRPOT SRL
Vis Corellma. 498
Collcterra (RME)

Bingo ball operstion Full cemaal

SEVEN CORASERVICE, SR L.

v ia Conc s, 498

Rome

VASA & AZLENA SERVICE SR L.
via Comelim 498

Rome:

Gemung machune operaucn Hull consol.

Ganung machine Gperalns Ful consal

YILAS SRL
A Cornelln, 498
Raemc

Bugn hall operaton Full conzal

5%

in

%

QPERBINGOITALIA SPA

‘OPERBINGO ITALLA S P A

CODERE ITALIA SP.A

CPERBINGO ITALIA S P AL

OPERBINGO ITALIA 5P A

CODERE ITALIA. 5P A

CODERE ITALLA, SPF A

CODERE ITALIA, SP.A

OPERBINGO [TALIA, S P.A

%

Lo0%

5%

S5i%

OPERBINGO ITALIA, 5 PA.

OPERBINGOITALIA. S PA

CODERE ITALIA.SP A

OPERBINGO ITALIA.SP A

OPERBINGO ITALIA.SP A

CODERF ITALIA SP A

CODEREITALIA SPA

CODERF [TALIA,SF A

OPERHINGO ITALIA, S PA

o
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2014 2013
C %% *
Name method
Husiness Starcholding Holding company Shareholding THalding covpany
HLORIDA
CODERF INTFRACTIVE, ING
;‘;l’fq""““"‘ Boulevand Sune 331 hey Bucayne Any legal busincss Full consal 100% CODERE 5 A 100% CODERE S A
Honda. USA
LUNEMBOLRG
CODFRF FINANCE, S5 A
C rue Gaheiel Lippounn L-5365 Munshrch, CODERE S A usd CODERE CODERE SA and CODERE LSPANA
Iold Full
p—, olding company consal 1o0% ESPANA,S LU W sLu
Munubach
MEAICO
ADMIMSTRADORA MEXICANA DEL Operaucn sdmmusrauon and
IPODROMEO S A deC Y development of racetracks and m:r']’,m‘so“ CH‘TEO Dk IMFULSORA CHNTRO Di
Palmes 1005 Desp 714 sports evenls Full connol 44 8% :ME‘}I‘I“E@”‘S‘K‘:‘{ DlI:ZACSV Hd 4% ENTRETENIMIFNTG LAS
67 30% Lomas Chaplicpec sl AMERICAS $AP1 DECY wd
SERVICLOS ADMINLSTRATIAOS
ADMINSTRATIVOS DL, DEL HIPODROMO. S A DREV
HIPODROMO 5 A DECV
ADMINISTRADORA MEXICANA DEL
HWIPCDROMO S A DECY Opetranoe, admensirid on sad ADMINISTRADORA
ADMINISTRADORA MEXICANA
ASOCIACION £ PARTICIPACION mm ofmormeksnd Full consol el MEXICANA DEL 84 8% DL HIFODROMO S A DF CV and
v Dol Concripta 311 Ace 4 Caballcnza 803 102 w&g’:&ﬁ_ﬁ%ﬁc v end ENTRETENIMIFNTO RECREATIVO
Lowus de Sauclo RECREATIVO, S.A-DEC ¥ SADECY
ADMINISTRADORA MEXICANA DL Operation sdmunssca nd ADMINSTRADORA ADMINISTRADORA MEXICANA
HIFADROMO Il 5 A DF CV developmstt of raceira ks and MEXICANA DEL 41e%  DFLEUPODROMO SA DUCV
Palmas 1005 Desp 714 sports eveus Full cansal 33 96% HIPODROMO § A DECV JUFGAMAX Dk LAS AMERICAS

67 X% Lomas Chapulicpes

ADMLNISTRADORA MEXICANA DEL

Opcranm  admunusiracon end

IUEGAMAX DE LAS
AMERICASS A DECV

ADMINISTRADORA

SA DECY and
ENTRETENMIENTO VIRTUAL, S A
DECV

ADMINISTRADORA MEXICANA

I
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2014 2013
Conmlutainon % %
Name Busmess mcthod Sharcholdmg Holdmg company Sharcholdng. Holding company
HIPODROMO Il SA deC V development of racctracks amd MEXICANA DEL DEL IIPODROMO, S A DEC V.,
Paimas 1003 Desp 714 sports evenis Full comsal 84.50% HIFGDROMO S A DFCV and 43 06% IMPULSORA CENTRO DE
IMPULSORA RECREATLVA ENTRETENIMIENTO LAS
6730% Chopulicpee DE ENTRETENIMIENTO AMH AMERICAS S A DECV and
SA DECV ENTRFTENIMIENTO VIRTUAL, § A
DEC V
ADMINISIRADORA MEXICANA DFL Operalne admmuiration end Full consol ADMINISTRADORA MEXICANA
IIPODROMO IV S A de C V development of mceacks and v 925% ADMINSTRADORA 4315% DELIIPGDROMO SA DECV
Palmas 1065 Desp 714 sparts ¢veals MEXICANA BFL IMPULSORA CEN RO Db
#7 X% Lomas Chapuhieper HIPODROMO S A Dt CV b5 TRETENIMIENTO LAS
AMERICAS $A DFCV and
ENTRETENIMIENTO VIRTUAL S A
ROV
CALLE DEL ENTRETEMMIENT® SA ¢ €V Developmicnl constructon, ADMINISTRADORA ADMINSTRADORA MEXICANA
L2k LA
AvDel Canscrpio 311 Ace 4 Caballerza 60 102 ™BARSALIOA. operaion. cq Full consal e MEXICANA DEL 4% DEL HIPGDROMO S A DECV and
of aad equity mvesung m IIPODROMO 5 A DF C.V and ENTRETENIMIENTO VIRTUAL, § A
Loaus de Soleky companset ENTRETEMMIENTCY DECY
VIRTUAL SA DECVY
CALLEICELAS A DECV
:; Indmlrmkjﬂl;nr SN Acceso 2 Puerts A Cal Development, cous N % g?’m-xs MEXICO S.A DE
e e “1; 11200 OTGARIAIE OPErANON, AqUSIDOD
D of and equuty Investng m
Sompney
ODmRn MEHICO 4 DEEY COBERE AMERICA § AU CODHRF AMERICA SA U COD RF
P de la Reforma 905 Ioldng sompany Full sonsul 100% CODERE $ A and NIDIDEM 100
SA snd NIDIDEM. S LU
Cal Lomnas de Chapuliepec CP 11000 Maxia U F SLU
CENTRO DE CONVENCIONES LAS
AMFRICAS S Ade C v Admmustraton. operation and MOTEL ICELA SAP1 DECV ADMINSTRADORA MEXICANA
Av Del L mscriplo 311 Ace 4 Cabw!lenua 6D 102 developroest of exhibitions and I3 F1 and CALLE ICELASAPI DF B4 K DFL HIPODROMO S A DECY and
Lormas de Soisio caavealans cv ENTRETENIMIENTO VIRTUAL S A
DECY
COMFRCIALIZADORA SORTLIUEGOS § A ADMIKISTRADORA ADMINLSTRADORA MEXICANA
DECY Oxber busmess uppon services g% MEXICANA DEL % DEL HIPODROMO S A DFC.V ang
Av Del Conscrpto 311 Acc 4 Caballenza 8D 110 Full camsol HIPGDROMO S.A. DECV and ENTRETENIMIENTO VIRTUAL S A
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014 2001
Consofidation % 4
Name Busmees method Halkl Halding, company
Lo de Satela ENTRETENIMIENTO DECYV
YIRTUAL S.A DECY
ENTRENIMIENTO RECREATIVG S A DECV IMPULSORA CENTRG D IMPULSORA CENTRO DE
Operation of Iegally permitied ENTRETENIMIENTO LAS FNTRETENIMIENTC LAS
P de lnt Palmar 1003 ames =ty e Full consol 8e8% AMERICAS SAPI DEC V 54 8% AMBRICAS SAPI DECY oad
DET 312 Mexio and FNTRETENIMIENTO ENIIRETENIMIENTG VIRTUAL § A
VIKTUAL, 5 A DECV BECY
ENTRFTERMINTO VIRTUAL S & DGy Drvelopmens consinacuon, ADMINISTRADORA
Av Del Consenpto 3E1 Acc 4 Cabalienza 1) 101 Offanaation opcralian, acqueiion Full consal, 818% MEXICANA. DEL 84 8% SIE)LMIIGE%DL?(;KASMHHCMA
[ and cequity mvestivg o A DECV and
ol ad oguity 3 HIPODROMO SA DECV and
Lomas de Scickr compones T CENTRO DE CONVENCIONES LAS
ENTRETENMIENTO AMERICAS 5.4 DF CV
RECREATIVGSA DECV
GRUPG CALIENTE S APL DFC V
BIUD Manus| Avia Canacha 40 Cperaton of gumiay machinct and Full consol e3p  COPEREMEXICO SA b 6730%  CODFRE MEXICG SA DFCV
Lomas de Chapulicpée
GRUPG INVFRIUEGO SAPI DECV
Bkb Manuc] Avla Camacho 40 Gaming Full cansol 6730% E?,D""“ MEXICO S A DE 67 30% CODERE MEXICC S A DF C.V
Lomas de Lbaputtcec
;S:t:r‘n:)l; rCNVlnH EMMIENTO LAS AMFRICAS HOTELICELAS AP I DFC YV
end CALLE ICELA S AP 1 DF ADMINISTRADORA MEXICANA
A¥ Del Conscripto 311 Acc 4 Cabalknza 6D 102 Cmm.l:’um raragemeal of v e v s58% DEL HIPOUROMO § 4 Db C.Y and
tounsm and eporis complenes SERVICIOS ADMINMSTRATIVOS
Lomas dc Souro DEL HiPODROMO S A DECV
HOTEL KELAS APL DECY Deve laprimet, Comiak lion,
AV Indusirin Miluar SN Accesn 2 Puerta A Lol grgamsation operation. &.quisiton . CODFRF MEXICO SA DE
Restieno ] Milar ol and eguily Hvesting n 3 ov
Meuco DF 11208 compazies.
IMPULSORA REC REATIVA DE ENTRETENIMIENTO ENTRETENIMIENTO
AMH S A BECY Gamng room manegement VIRTUAL 5A DECY and
Av Del Coscrpto 111 Ace 4 Cabulienza 6D 102 o Fult conaol B4.80% COMERCIALIZADORA, 43 23% ENTRETENIMIENTO VIRTUAL S.A
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2014 2013
Consobdanon % %
Doame Busmess method Starcholdmg Hokdmg company Sharcholding Holdmg company

SORTHUEGOS SA DECY DECV

Lo de Sowlo

IMPYLSORA CENTRO BE ENTRETENIMIENTO LAS

AMERICAS SATL Ll v

Av el Consuripla 111 Acc 4 Cabatherian 60 102 pyr seraces Full consol #440% CODERE MEXICO S A DF B4%0%  CODERE MEXICO SA DECV

Lomes de Soelo

JUEGAMAX I3E LAS AMERICAS S A DECV

Av Del Conscripio 311 Acc 4 Caballenza 61 102 ENTRFTENMIENTO

Lomas de Sotwlo Gamng room operatien Full consel 0% VIRTUAL S A DEC V and a125% ENTRFTENMIENTO VIRTUAL, § A

conte COMERCIALIZADORA - DECY

SORTULEGOS, 5.4 DECY

JOMAHARNO S AFL DECV

3
Bhvd Agus Caliente 12027 Organmation of all manner of Full comel £130% CODERE MEXICO S A DE £110% CODERE MEXICO S A
pamen bets and drawy ool cv

67 30% Hipédronn Tyuana B C

MIQ GAMES SA DECV PROMOFUFGOS DE MEXICO PROMOIUEGOS DF MEXICO 5.4
5.4 DECYV sod GRIIPC D C ¥ and GRUPQ INY ERIVEGO

Club Mamuel Avila Camacho n 460 =D it

ok San Arsdren At Gaming Full consol £730% INVERJUFGO SAPT DEC Y 6730% SAPI DI CV

53300 Navcalpan bamdo de Mézica

LIHKOS FORANEOSS A DECV GRUPOCALIFNTF SAP| DF

Hivd Agua Cabicnic 12027 Organuaation of all manner of Full consol 57 300 CV and OMAHAREO S A P | & GRUPO CALIENTES API DECY

games bets end draws 0 bl and JOMAHARHO $ AP [ DF GV

67 30% Hipodromo Tiyuars. 8 C pECV

OPERADORA CANTABRICA S A DECV GRUPO CALIENTE 5.A.F1 DE

Iivd Agus Calimie 12027 Full consal o7 2% CV JOMAHARHOS AP D¢ — GRUPO CALIENTE SAPI DECV

&7 30% Hipddroma
Tyuans B C

QPFRADORA DE ESPFCTACULOS
DEPORTIVOSS A DECV

Orpanpation of all manner of
games bels and daws

Organuatun of sll mannes ol
games bels and draws

CV OFRRADORA Dt
ESPECTACULOS
DEPORTIVOSS A DECV and
LIBROS FORANEQS S A DE
cv

GRUPOCALIENTE S AP DF
CV and JOMAHARBQ S APL

KIMANARIIOS APL DR CV
OPERADORA DE ESPI CTACULOS
DEPORTIVOS SA DECV and
LIBROS tORANEOS 5.A DECV

GRUPQ CALIENTESAPIDECY
and IOMAHARNO S API DEC YV
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2014 2013
C bl *
Nume Buaincss method Shazehalding lolimng company Sharcholdug Holding company
Biwl Agua Coliente 13027 Full consol 61 30% DECY 87 30%
67 30% Hipscmmo
Tyuana, B C
PROMOCIONES R CREATIVAS MEXICANAS, o000 s aperation.
SA DECY
adminmtration and nther scvities CODERE MEXICO S A DE CODHRE MEXICO SA BECV ead
Reforma 503 Cal Lonwa dé Chapulieper. i Full comsol 100% Ve NIGIDEM S L 100% Pt
11000 Mexga D F digrally w0 speaific lncaucor
PROMOIUL GOS DE MEXICO SA DF CV
GRUPO INVERJUEGO S AP |
Lhuty Mamucl Avila Camacho, 40 Gamusg Fullconsal 6730% DECV and MIO GAMES, § A s730%  GRUPOAERJUEGO S AP Db
€V and MIG GAMES $A DEC YV
Lomas e Chupaltepé BEC Y
RECREATIVOS CODFRE, § A DECV
O s i - b e SOEMMBICOSADS iy CONMONO A bhCY e
Lomes de Chapultcpés
RECREATLVOS MARINA, SA DECV MEX
P e A Dr CODERE MEXICO SA DECV ané
Club Manuel Avila Camacho, 50 Gaming, Full coosol 160% ECREATI NS NFXICANAS 100% PROMOCIONES RECREATIVAS
Looass de Chapalisph, o peg! v MEXICANAS SA Dk ( V
SFCOFACIL SA DELY SFRVICIOS
D Co 31 A Comlrin 60100 ot T, bt aETIATVOS DEL sercs s s
buring, advisory and dasustamce 24 B0% 4 k0%
Lomas de Soick g payrall nces ADMINISTRADORA ADMINISTRADORA ME XICANA
serce MEXICANA DEL PEL HIPORROMO $ ADECY
HIPODROMO SADFCY
SERVICIOS ADMINIS TRATIVOS DFL ADMINISTRADOIA MEXICANA
HIPODROMO S A DF CV Proviswn of sta(T admsmtration, "“""‘WKT“-“DO“ DEL HIPODROMO § A DECY and
Av Del Cantsarmpto 311 Ace 4 Caballcrma 60181 lunng. sdvisory sd sssistance Full consot 24 80% MEXICANA DEL A4 E0% CENTRO DE COMVEACIONES LAS

Loms de Sulzhy

PANAMA

ALTA CORINLLERA, S.A

services ncluding payrol) services

Full canno opcrauan

BIPODROMO SA DFCY
end FNTRET FNIMIENTO
RECREATIVOSA Dt CV

COUERF CHILE. LTDA

AMFPRICAS S A DECY

CODERE CHILE, LTDA
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2014 2013
Consalxtatan % %

hune Business method Shareholdmg, ilolding company Sharcholding Hokling company
Urbanwacitn bl Covgrew Edilin 27 Full consol 5% COUERE AMERICA § A1) % CODERE AMFRICA 5 A U
Crxdad de Pansma
HIPICA DF PARAMA S.A
Via José Agustln Arango Corregimenti de Juan
Dz, Apda zoua Raceiracks and slol machities Full consol 5% ALTA CORDILLERA 5 A % ALTA CORDILLERA.S A
Panura
COMPARLA D RECREATIVOS DF PANAMA
SA
R y Elvira Méndez, Torre Financiat Center Finan il scrvices Full consol 100% CODERF CUILE, LTDA. 100% CODKRE AMFRICAS A U
Puyod0yd|
Pansrm
PULRTO RICO
LODERF PUFRTO RICO Inc .
P Rico Heldmg compeny 9% CODERE AMERICA S.A U
1RLGUAY
(ODERF URUGLIAY § A Instetation. sdimosmatuen and

ion. sdimunisran
/ Juncal (317 apio 2201 COLONDER, §.A U and COLONDER, § A U and CODERF
Ap opcranon of bings halls xad +ull consal Loa% CODERE AMERICA 5.AU 1o0% AMERICA. 5A U
Mutteviten | Lralgumy) complemcnary KIvices
MIPICA RIOPLATFASF LRLGUAY § A
José Marle Guersa 3540 Raxeursiks pad nlot ma hunes F 0% CODERE URUGUAY S A shu COUERF URUGUAY S.A
Monieviden (Unigiay)
CARRASCD NOBILE. S A Operatsan, sdmuustrston aod
Couta Rua 1$7] anagemnent of botcls, cASIDGS
paming roama, eloL machiney Full cotaal 1% CODERE MEXICO S A Dk s1% COLFRE MEKICO S A DECV
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Name

Cansmldaxa
method
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3013
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Sharcholdmg

Holdng company

Sharcholding

Haldwng company

Maniewidoo (Uruguay)
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APPENDIX II
Reserves and retained earnings by company
at 31 December 2014
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The breakdown of the reserve and retainad earnings accounts by company at 31 December 2014 (in thousand eurc) 1s as follows PR
Share Retalned ——
Company capital Shara premium Reserves earnings Interim dividend Equity
ADMINIST MEXICANA HIFODROMO IS A CV (1 536) 67} (488) (2 089) -
ADMINIST MEXICANA HIPODROMO LS A CV (1 588} 748 &0 (780} -
ADMINIST MCXICANA HIPODROMO VS A. C V (2941} - 897 m {1,273) -
[——
ADMINIST MEXICANA HIPGDROMO SA CV {115 292) (5994) (78 895) (4722 {204 903) e
ALTA CORDILLERA § A (24 627) - (10511) 78 {35 0€0) ie——— ¢
ASOCIACION EN PARTICIPACION {14 221) 6753) {3 854) (24 828)
BINGOS CODCRE b A (2521) 2233 @) (363} U
BINGOS DELOESTE S A (54) (2417) 1180 {1281) r——
BINGUOS PLATENSLS § A (11 536) {2679) {14 215)
BINTEGRALSP A (300} {13 698) (1 248) (15 246) __..]
LALLE DLL ENTRETENIMICNTO 5 A DECV O] - 34 45) 8as
CALLE ICCLA.S A DECV 3) - 5 2 e
CARRASCO NOBILE SABDECY {10 456) (4 861) 14 155 (1162) ———srmma
CARTAYAS A {120) (12n ) (250) —
CENT CONVENC AMLRICAS SA DECV 3 3 RN
CODEMATICA SRL 4y} (87) 145 48 ——
CODERL & A (14 007) {231 280) 210 743 B4 502 63058 -
CODLRL ALILANTEC 5 L. (875} (389) {120) [1384)
CODERE AMERICA SA {83 35Dy (82 849) (1784) {167 983)
CODERE APUESTAS ARAGON SL. (1 000} - 161 204 {635) o
CODETRE APUCSTAS CASTILLA LA MANCHA S A (500) 1 (187) (686) ———
CODERE APUESTAS CASTILLA LEON S A {1 000) (2) (1,002) "
CODERE APUESTAS CATALUNA, S A (600) 172 (428) ——-
CODERE APUESTAS CEUTA SLU (250) 30 (220) ——
~ .
CODCRE APUESTAS ESPANA. S L. (662) (32 286) 27 088 775 {5 084) .
CODERE APUESTAS ENTREMADURA. 5 A {1000 - - 1 (999} ——
——
[
——
il
e
N
el
el
B
e
B — e
———
JIU—
e
P
———
[

I

!




Company cs::;::l Share premium  Reserves f::::;: Interlm dividend Equity
CODLRE APUESTAS GALICIA SL. {2 000) (24) (160) {2 184}
CODERE APUCSTAS LA RIOJA, S.A {1 000) 18 (982)
CODERE APULSTAS MURCIA SL. {1 000) 287 247 (466)
CODERE APULSTAS NAVARRA § A (2 000) 558 234 (1168)
{ODERE APULSTAS VALENCIA S A (2000) (29) 73 {1256)
LODERE APUESTAS & A (60} {1315) 5056 3681
CODERE ARGENTINA S A (180} {991) {4 421) (1885) {7 477)
CODERL ASCSURIA S A (60} (3 442) {64} {3 566)
GCODERE BRASIL LYDA (5 582) 2556 41345 7818 . 46137
CODERE CHILE LTDA (18 072) {8 869) 158 (26,781)
CODERL COLOMBIA & A {12 002) (18 B44) 5618 (181 B {25 409}
CODERE DISTRIBUCIONES § L. [&)] - 2 35 34
CODERE ESPARA S L. (2613) (5185) 184 358 {1513) 175 047
CODERE FILIAL 8 5 L. (60) 153) (75) {150}
CODERE FINANCE (UK ) § A

CODERE FINANCE (LUXLMBURG) § A 3% (4 726) (19 694y (& 196) (30 648)
CODERE GAMING ITALIA SRL a0 (124} an 187
(ODERE GIRONA § A {126) (10 108) (65} {10 299)
CODERE GUADALAJARA § A £} )] (130) 40 [96)
¢ ODERLC HUCSCA S L 5 (412) (108) {525)
CODERL INTERACTIVA SL {30 875 23) 822
CODERE INTCRACTIVE INC {10) 1078 175 1241
CODERE INTERATIVA [TALIA SRL 8 (6)

CODERE INTERNACIONAL DOS S AU (436) 152 634 (636) 151 562
CODERE INTERNACIONAL S 1. {110:997) (69.506) (662) {181 265)
CODERE ITALIA SPA (15 000) (34822 €622 (43 000)
CODLRE LOGRONO {6) 10 (66) (62)
{ODERE MEXICU S.A. 188 751) (29) {198 815) 33583 (352 112)
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Company csa’:‘l::I Share premium Reserves :::::;: Interim dividend Equity

(ODLCRE ONLINE & A (100 84 80 74
CODCRE SAGUNTOS L (868} 10 (858)
CODERE SERVICIOS COMPARTIDOS S A (60) 1 {59)
CODERE SERVICIOS S LU 3 14 11
CODERE URUGUAY 5 A (13317) 3158 {1 849) {12 007)
COLONDER § A {9761) (299 897) {4 474) {314 132)
COMERCIAL YONTXA S A (481) (4 766) (810) {6,057)
COMPARNIA RLCREATIVOS DE PANAMA S A (3576) - 0 (3 576}
CRISTALTLC SCRVICE SRL (10) {14086} {299) {1715}
DESARRCLLO ONLINE JUEGOS REGULADOS 5 A (1753 . 685 1128 40
DPSCRVICCSRL (90) (315) {2934} {6671 {4 D06}
EL PORTALON S L. 3 - {207) (37} (247}
ENTRETLNIMIENTO RECREATIVO S A (53 355) - (17779 {1350) {72 484)
ENTRETENIMICNTO VIRTUAL SA DECV (25 384) (55 672) 10586 {79 980)
Fis SLOT SERVICES 5 RL (116} 244 (758) {630}
GAMINGRE SR1 [l 2838 47 2599
GAP GAMLS SR L {21 284 (1 304) {1031
GARAIPCN VICTORIA APUSTAK SL (12 228) 15 348 200% 5,121
GESTION MARCONISR L (1 (3897) (181) (4 089)
GIOMAX SR L (69) (26 827) 117 {25 725)
GRUPO CALIENTE A CV ®) {17 847) (1551) 7 {19 400)
GRUPD INVLRIUEGO § A (2350) (132) 621 141 [450)
HIPICA DE PANAMA S A 6609 {1 836} 4773
HIPICA RIOPLATENSE URUGUAY S A (12860) (5614) (& 501) (24 875)
HIPPOBINGO FIRENZE SRL (10 - 8) 2 - (16)
HOTCL ENTRET AMHS A CV 3 - 4 1 2
HOTELICELA SA DCCV (3 - 5 2
IBERARGEN S A (4 769) (35 549) (14 566) {54 984)
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Share Retalned
Caompany capltal Shara pramium Reserves eamings Intarim dividend Equlity .
IMPULSORA CENTR ENTR AMLRICAS SAL YV {150 386) (3 587} (56 766) (2 432} (243 171) _""|
IMPULSCRA RECREATIVA AMHS A CV (5) (1 588) 27 0 {1 556) S
INTERBAS § A (834) (4 569) {23 679) 9627 {38 709} oe—
|
INTERJUEGDS § A {ARG) (3) (1883) (10 638) (3478) {16 012) .
INTCRMAR BINGOS § A (10) {1323) (3597) {4,924) B —
INTERSARE 5 A (750) (123) (a1} (514} T—
I
ITAPOANS A (467 (940) i (1336) JRE—
JMQUEROS A (87 (1083) 1555 375 .
JOMAHARHO SA CV (5) (B 548) (109) 16 {8 646) —
JPVMATIC 2005 S L 3 (4 250) (807) {5 060}
JUEGAMAX DE LAS AMERICAS SADECY (8 (1536) 438 (426) {1,528)
RING BINGO S R L. (0 (170) 869 689 .
KNG SLOT SR L {100 (202) {1482) {1884) —
LIBROS FORANEUS SA CV (12 255) B4 357 29 756 - 101 B58 =
MIO GAMESSA DECV (890) 6277 1421 6 BO8 ]
MISURI S A (2 542) (5 664} 1022 (7 184) A
NEW JOKER SR L (1)) . (102) 442 230 ’
NIDIDEM S L. (380) D442 (241) 8821 _—
OPER SHERKA S L. (1049) {1.028) (204) {2 281) e
OPERAD LSPECTACULOS DCPORTIV SA CV (2 553) 25208 12026 34 631 -
OPERADORA CANTABRIA.SA CV {26 737) 88 976 34 345 96 584 e
OPERBINGO TTALIA S P A {10 180) 44 543 (2,308) - 32,055 —
OPCRIBERICA S & (2104) . (123 493) (3 590) 129,189 —
CPEROESTE 5 A (204) (330 {124) {681} R
PALACE BINGO SRL (60) {280) (16) {1036) {1392) —
R s aa|
PARISIENNE SRL 40 (30) (905) {945)
PROM REC MEXICANAS § A {1088) 11134 (5 869) 3,437 o
PROMOSUCGOS DE MCXICO S A 324) 22780 7791 30247 —
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Company ::Sar:::I Share premium Reserves 5:::::;‘: Intorim dividend Equity

REGREATIV CODERC S A DCCV &) 15 8 20
RECRLATIVOS ACR SL. (24) (6) (119} 10 (139)
RLCRLCATIVOS MARINA S A 3 536 576 1109
RLCREATIVOS GBLLISCOS L. {37 (703) 342 183 {235}
RLD ACAM S A {60} (@) (2) (64)
RCSTIYCA SL (3 {38} 87} {139)
RLCTL FRANCO ITALIAS P A (2 000) (26 206) 8045 {20 160)
ROYAL JACKPOT SRL (20) (14) (39) {73
SANJAIME S A Mg a5 (10) (84}
SECOFACH SA DECV 3 1362 726 2085
SERVICIOS ADMINIST HIPORROMO $.A DECV 3 802 {298) 500
SCVLN CORA, SRL (20) {1792) {55) {1 867)
SILIREC S L (96} (415) 4N (558)
SORTWUEGOS SA DECV [ab] (6330$) “r) {6 832)
VASA £ AZZENA SERVICC SR L. (0 (1,566) (374) {1 950}
VEGASSRL {10) (3807 (580) {4 157}
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APPENDIX 1Nl
DIRECTOR DECLARATIONS REGARDING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
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Shareholdings and posts held by members of the Board of Directors in companies whose
corporate purpose I1s analogous to that of the Parent Company

} Direct Indirect
Director/Related party Entity " Post/Duty shareholding [ shareholding
% %

Jose Antonio Martinez Chatrman CEOQO (acting o
Sampedro Francomar Investments S A Joint and severally) 52%
Jose Antonio Martinez o,
Sampedro Promabowling S A 0124% 51 35%
José Antonio Martinez Centros de Ocio Familiar
Sampedro SL 25 74%
Jose Antonio Marninez o
Sampedro Magic Recreativos S L U 51 47%
Jose Antanio Martinez Matenal Auxilar de Juego Director (acting joint 26%
Sampedro Intemacional Mapsa S A and severalty) ?
Jose Antenio Martinez Planet Bowling S L 51 47%
Sampedro {en hquidacidn} °
Jose Antonio Martinez Promobowling Levante 51 47%
Sampedro SAU ?

Matenal Auxiiar de Juego
Jose Antonio Martinez Internacional de Colombia 26 52%
Sampedro

SA
Jose Antonio Martinez o,
Sampedro TuiPlay S L (en hiquidacion) 20 22%

Board member and
Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro | Francomar Investments S A | CEOQ (acting joint and 12%
severally)

Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro | Promobowling S A 0124% 11 85%
Luwis Javier Martinez Sampedro geLntros de Ocio Farmuliar 5 98%
Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro | Magic Recreatives S L U 11 97%

Matenal Auxiliar de Juego o
Luis Jawvier Martinez Sampedro Intenacional Majisa S A 6%

Planet Bowling S L o
Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro (en liquidacion) 11 97%
Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro grxnbobomdmg Levante 11 97%
Lwis Javier Martinez Sampedro | Twi Play S L (en iquidacion} 467%
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Direct Indirect
Directar/Related party Entity ! Post/Duty shareholding | sharehoiding
% %
Matenal Auxiiar de Juego
Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro | Intemacional de Colombia 612%
SA
Recreativos Metropolitano Director (acting joint o
Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro sL and severally) 100%
Secretary and CEQ
Encamacién Martinez Francomar Investments S A {acting joint and 12%
Sampedro
severally)}
Encarnacion Martinez
Sampedro Promobowling S A 0124% 11 85%
Encarnacion Martinez Centros de Ocio Familiar 5 98%
Sampedro SL °
Encarnacion Martinez 5
Sampedro Magic Recreativos S L U 1 97%
Encarnacion Martinez Matenal Auxihar de Juego 6%
Sampedro Internacional Majisa S A °
Encarnacion Martinez Planet Bowling S L 1 97%
Sampedro {en hquidacion) °
Encarnacion Martinez Promobowling Levante 11 97%
Sampedro SAU ¢
Encarmacion Mariinez o
Sampedro Tui Play S L {en hqudacion} 4 67%
Matenal Auxiiar de Juego
Encarnacion Martinez Internacional de Colombia 612%
Sampedro
SA
Board member and
M® Carmen Martinez Sampedro | Francomar Investments S A | CEO (acting joint and 12%
severally)
M® Carmen Martinez Sampedro | Promobowling S A Sole director 0748% 11 85%
M2 Camen Martinez Sampedro gemes de Ocio Familiar 6 29%
M® Carmen Martinez Sampedro | Magic Recreativos S LU Sole director 12 60%
Matenal Auxiiar de Juego
1] 0,
M?® Carmen Martinez Sampedro Internacional Mayisa S A 6%
Planet Bowling S L
a 0,
M? Carmen Martinez Sampedro (en hquidacion) 12 60%
M?® Carmen Martinez Sampedro Promobowling Levante Sole director 12 60%
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Direct Indirect
Director/Related party Entity '} Post/Duty shareholding | shareholding
o/ﬂ ‘/D

W® Carmen Martinez Sampedro | Tu Play S L {en hquidacion) 4 67%
Matenal Auwxalar de Juego

M?* Carmen Martinez Sampedro | Intemacional de Colombia 612%
SA

Angel Martinez Sampedro Francomar Investments S A 2%

Angel Martinez Sampedro Promobowling S A 0126% 198%

Angel Martinez Sampedro geLntros de Ocio Familiar 105%

Ange! Martinez Sampedro Magic Recreativos S L U 2 10%
Matenal Auxiliar de Juego

Angel Martinez Sampedro Internacional Maysa S A 1%
Planet Bowling S L o

Angel Martinez Sampedro {en hquidacion) 2 10%

Angel Martinez Sampedro grzrt]obowrhng Levante 210%

Angel Martinez Sampedro Tuw Play S L (en liguidacidn) 078%
Matenal Auxihar de Juego

Angeal Martinez Sampedro Intemacicnal de Colomhia 1 02%
SA
Recreativos Metropolitano Director {acting joint

a
Ana M?* Fornieles Canadas and severally)
Joseph Zappala Tucson Greyhound Park Chairman 80%

(*) The abhove information refers sclely to nan-Codere Group companies
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR 2014

The Codere Group's business performance

During 2014, EBITDA reflected a decrease in Argentina mainly due to the constant devaluation of
the Argentine peso against the euro, in ltaly due to the expense related to the resolution of the
litigation with the Court or Auditors, due to financial advisory expenses In the restructunng of the
parent company's debt and to a lesser extent in Mexico due to the temporary closure of gaming
halls The decrease has been offset by smaller losses at Hotel Casino Carrasco in Uruguay

Investments in 2014 totalled 54 2 million euros compared with 76 3 miullion euros in 2013, of which
36 4 milhon euros related to maintenance and 17 8 million euros to investment 1n growth

Highlights of the year include the following

s Restructunng of the Company's debt

On 23 September 2014 the Company signed a Lock-Up Agreement with most bondholders and
sentor debt holders on the terms for the restructuring of its debt and capital Note 3 f) descrbes the
terms of this agreement in detall

+» Closure of halls in Mexico

During January and February 2014 judicial decisions were received which rejected the possibility of
reopening five of the eight halls that were closed In Mexico in 2013 As a result of these
notifications, an impairment of the assets associated with those halls has been recognised, entalling
a 7 1 milion euro impact on the 2014 income statement

s  Ruling by the Court of Auditors in ltaly

On 11 November 2013 the Court of Auditors (Corte der Conti) offered all the concessionaires the
option of terminating the legal proceedings through the payment of 30% of the amount of the
penalty plus legal interest In the case of Codere Network, the amount due was 34 5 million euros
{30% of 115 mulion) plus legal interest

The Company's decisicn to pay said amount (on 4 November 2014) had an impact of 24 5 milion
on the Italy income statement The figure of 24 5 million 1s the result of netting the 34 5 milion euros
(30% of the mibal fine) plus 1 9 milhion euros of legal interest against the existing provision of 119
million euros

This 1s a major non-recurnng item which, as it was financed through an extension to the senior debt
facility, did not impact the Company's iquidity

Group's financial resulits

Operating iIncome

Operating income fell by 1352 milion euros (8 9%) to 1,385 6 millon euros due mainty to the
dechne In revenues in Argentina (35 7 million euros} as a result of Argentine peso depreciation,
and in Mexico (40 5 millon) as a result of the closure of halls, the fall in the average daily takings
per machine and the depreciation of the Mexican peso This has been partly offset by ncreases of
5 3 milion in ltaly and 1 8 milllon in Uruguay due to the inauguration of Casino Hotel Carrasco in
March 2013

|
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CODERE, S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR 2014

Operating expenses

Operating expenses fell by 170 milion euros (11 6%) to 1,362 5§ million This reduction was very
significant in Argentina (78 3 milhon euros) due mainly to the depreciation of the Argentine peso
against the euro and the business reengineering efforts, and in Mexico (66 8 million euros) partly
due to the recogmition of higher asset impairment in 2013 than in 2014 In addition, the reduction in
expenses In all our business units as a resuit of the efficiency plans implemented over the last 15
months has made a positive contribution to this trend

Gain/(loss) on disposals of assets

Fixed asset disposals generated a loss of 3 3 million euros compared with a loss of 6 5 millon
euros recorded in 2013 This loss mainly denves from disposals of machinery and other assets in
Spamn

Operating profit

Operating profit rose by 380 milhon euros to 208 million euros in 2014, due to lower asset
impairment than in 2014 The operating margin grew to 1 5%, agamnst a loss of 1 1% in the
comparable pertod in 2013

EBITDA

EBITDA shrank by 34 9 million euros (17 6%) to 163 5 millon euros mainly due to negative growth
in Argentina (17 4 million) and Italy (16 7 millon), and in parent companies The EBITDA margin
increased to 13 4% compared to 5 8% for the comparable period in the previous year

Financial expenses

Financial expenses rose by 6 9 milion euros to 148 million euros This change was due mainty to
the reduction in the financial charge in Argentina, Mexico and Panama, partially offset by higher
costs associated with the Senior Credit Faciity due to the late-payment interest, the interest
generated on unpaid coupons and the refinancing in taly, in Hotel Casino Carrasco and in Mexico

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax payable in 2014 fell by 4 5 million euros (9 9%} to 40 9 million euros due
mainly to the tax impact of the deductibiity of the payment made to resolve the proceedings with
the Court of Auditors n ltaly, the tax reduction In Mexico due to the elimination of the EITU tax as
from 1 January 2014 and the recognition of a provision for tax contingencies in 2013 This
decrease 15 partly offset by the regulansation in 2014 of certain tax credits and the recognition of
the withholding for the future payment of dividends in Argentina

Profit/(loss} attributable to non-controfling interests

The profit attnbutable to non-controlling interests decreased by 3 3 million euros to 34 9 million
euros, compared with 31 6 miilion euros in 2013 This decrease 1s mamiy due to the greater losses
incurred by the Joint Licensees offset by smaller losses ineurred by Casino Carrasco
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CODERE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR 2014

Profit /(loss) attributable to the Parent Company

Mainly as a result of the factors described 1n the above paragraphs, the results attnbutable te non-
controlling interests resulted in a loss of 173 milhion against a loss of 173 68 million in 2013

Disclosure on deferral of payments to suppliers

The average payment period to Spanish company suppliers is 105 days The Company 1s
analysing ts internal processes in order to reduce supplier payment penods to the maximum
penods stipulated in current legislation

A more detalled description of deferrals in payments to suppliers can be found in Note 19 above

Personnel

At 31 December 2014 the Group employed a total of 15,181 persons, this being 2,598 employees
less than at the end of 2013

Environmental information

At 31 December 2014 there are no policies aimed at protecting the environment

Research and development expenditure

At 31 December 2014, the Group has not incurred any R&D costs

Treasury shares

As mentiocned in Note 17, on 27 June 2013 the shareholders, at general meeting, authorsed
Codere S A to acquire at any time and on as many occasions as it deems necessary, directly or
through any of its subsidianes, fully paid up own shares, for cash or for any valuable consideration
The minimum price or consideration will be the nominal value of the treasury shares acquired and
the maximum the market value plus 20% at the acquisition date The Board of Directors 1s
empowered to execute this power (See Note 17 Liquidity Agreement)

Outlook for the Group

For 2015, the Group intends to continue implementing financial measures designed to boost free

cash flow generation Investments forecast for 2015 will mainly centre on maintenance at gaming
halls and specific product renovation
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CODERE, S A AND SUESIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR 2014

Group's main risks

The Group's main risks are detailed as follows, this list baing indicative but not exhaustive They
include those related to the gaming sector in which it operates (regulatory nisk, this being a highly
regulated sector, nisks associated with public perceptions of the gaming sector and the nsk of
increased compettion) and nsks specific to Codere These latter include poltical, economic and
monetary nsks associated with international operaticns, htigation nsks, risks derived from the
company's indebtedness, the nsks associated with relying on third parties where the Group does
not hold the gaming licences which 1t operates, nsks denved from 1ts growth strategy, concentration
nsk in the supply of gaming machines in Spain, the risk of being unable to offer secure gaming
products and to ensure the integnty and secunty of business lines, and the nsks associated with
operating alhances with third parties

See the corresponding notes to the financial statements for a more detailed description of the
Company's principal risks
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ANNEX |

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT
FOR PUBLIC LISTED COMPANIES

ISSUER ID

YEAR ENDING AT:

31/12/2014

TAX

A-82110453

CORPORATE NAME.

CODERE, S A

ADDRESS

AVENIDA DE BRUSELAS, 26, (ALCOBENDAS) MADRID
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT
FOR PUBLIC LISTED COMPANIES
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[A]SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE :j"‘“
i

A 1 Complete the following table regarding company share capital -
Date of most Share Capital (€) Number of shares Number of voting rights o

recent change P gng -
19/10/2007 11,007,294 00 55,036,470 55,036,470 —

———y

-—-q

Indicate whether or not there are different types of shares with different associated rights —
v

e

Yes [ ] No  [X] -

B s« ]

i m——

A 2 List the direct and indirect holders of significant shareholdings 1n your company at year-end, excluding  ~ e
e ]

directors JE—
~—r——

B — ]

wr—

Number of Number of % of total -

Name of shareholder direct voting indirect voting -
rights votes rights - :
—-—1
MASAMPE HOLDING, B V 28,259,088 0 51 35% p—
e
|
Indicate the most significant movements in shareholder structure that have taken place during the R
year —
R e o

A 3 Complete the following tables regarding members of the Board of Directors of the company holding —
share voting nghts in the company N
i
——
e
gl

Number of % of total
Name of Director direct voting Number of oVO““g "—"-"_—-
indirect votes

rights rights ——
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO 1,202,000 0 2 18% s
MR EUGENIO VELA SASTRE 0 20,718 T ——
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO 0 1,396,035 254%
MR JOSEPH ZAPPALA 278,738 0 051% — T
B ——— ]
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO 6,838,261 28,250,085 6377% =
e |
e
+re——

Name of indirect shareholders Through Nama or corporate name of Numtber of -

the direct shareholder voung -

rnights -
MR EUGENIO VELA SASTRE MS CARMEN FERRER PALASI 20,718 R
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO M LUXEMBOURG SIF-GLOBAL ASSETS BRISA 1,296,035 I
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO SOLGIM INVERSIONES SICAV, S A 100,000 i
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO MASAMPE HOLDING, B V 28,259,088 —
e —————
g
]
’ Total % of voting nghts held by the Board of Directors I 69 13%-| —_
B —
Complete the following tables regarding members of the Board of Directors holding company share =
e ——]
rights N
2 e
R ]
i
—

(|



A 4 Indicate, If applicable, any family, commercial, contractual or corporate relations existing between the
significant shareholders, to the extent to which the company 1s aware of them, unless said relations
are insignificant or are the result of ordinary business activity

Name of related parties
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO

Type of relation Family
Brief description:

Ms Encarnacion Martinez Sampedro and José Antonio Martinez Sampedro are siblings

Name of related parties

MASAMPE HOLDING, B V
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO

Type of relation: Corporate
Brief description:

Mr José Antonio Martinez Sampedro 1s the CEOQ of Masampe Holding, BV Additionally, Mr
José Antonio Martinez Sampedro holds control of Masampe Holding BV through the proxy
granted in respect of the voting rights of Mabloem Ontwikkeling BY (see section H)

A 5 Indicate, f apphcable, any commercial, contractual or corporate relations existing between the
significant shareholders and the company and/or its group, unless said relations are insignificant or
are the result of ordinary business activity

Name of related parties

MASAMPE HOLDING, B V
CODERE, S A

Type of relation. Corporate
Brief description:

Masampe Holding BY 1s the majority sharehaolder (51 346%) of Codere S A

Name of related parties
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO
CODERE, S A

Type of relation: Corporate
Brief description:

Mr José Antonio Martinez Sampedro 1s Charrman and CEO of Codere S A
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Name of related parties —:.

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO —
CODERE, S A TT—
e m————

it

i

e

Type of relation: Corporate ——

Brief descrniption S

—

el

Ms Encarnacton Martinez Sampedro 1s a Director of Codere S A ——.

———

————

S——

A 6 Indicate whether or not the company has been informed of any quasi-corporate agreement affecting i, -—=
pursuant to articles 530 and 531 of the Spanish Capital Companies Act If so, brnefly describe such _—
pacts and list the shareholders related through the agreement o
Yes [ | No [X] —

Indicate whether or not the company 1s aware of the existence of concerted action among its —
shareholders If so, brniefly describe such action —
—nliniy

Yes [ ] No [X] I

In the case whereby any change or break in said agreements aor concerted action has taken place —
————

during the year, expressly indicate said circumstance -
i

e

R ]

The company 1s not aware that dunng the year there has been any of the situations descnbed "T—
——meiinb

A 7 Indicate whether any natural or legal person exercises or I1s able to exercise control over the company —
pursuant to article 4 of the Spanish Securities Act If so, identify said person ———
e

——e——

Yes [X] No [] —_-'_——u

—————

il

Name or company name —

MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO -
r Comments .

Mr Jose Antonio Martinez Sampedro controls MASAMPE HOLDING, BV through the proxy granted on the voting nghts of Mabloem
Ontwikkeling BV (see section H) and through his own direct interest in the share capital of Codere, S A

A 8 Complete the following tables regarding company treasury stock

At year-end

Number of direct shares Number of indirect shares (*) Total % of share capital
387,733 0 070%

(*) Held through:

Describe any significant changes, according to the provisions of Royat Decree 1362/2007, during the
year

A sTm



Total direct shares Total indirect
Date of notification acqu“-ed shares acqu"-ed Total % of share capltal
31122014 262,133 0 052%

A 9 Detail the conditions and term of authorization in force for the Board of Directors’ Meeting to acquire
and transfer treasury stock

The General Meeting of Shareholders held on 27 June 2013 approved peint four of the agenda, as follows

1 Rendenng the part thereof which has not been used null and void, the authonzation for the acquisition of treasury stock granted under
point nine of the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders held on 10 May 2012, to authonze, in accordance with applicabie law,
the derivative acquisiton at any time and as often as Codere, S A deems adwisable, either directly or through any of the subsidianes of
which it 1s the parent, of treasury stock, fully paid up, by means of purchase, sale or by any other legal title for valuable consideration

The minimum purchase price or consideration will be the face value of the own shares acquired, and the maximum will be the result of
increasing by 20% the market value of the shares on their purchase date

This authonization will be granted for a term of five years, counted as of the date of this Meeting, and 1s expressly subject to a imitation
consisting of the face value of the own shares acquired pursuant to this authonzation, to be added to the value of those already held by
Codere, S A and any of its subsidianes, and 1n no event being able to exceed the maximum allowed by law at the purchase date

1t 1s expressly noted that this authonzation may be used wholly or partially for the purchase of own shares to be delvered or transmitted
to employees or directors of the company, or upon exercise of stock options held thereby

2 Empower the Board of Directors, in the widest terms possible, in order to exercise the authonzation conferred by this resolution and to
carry out the remaining provisions foreseen therein, said powers may be delegated by the Board of Directors fo any Director, to the

Secretary or Vice Secretary of the Board of Directors, or to any other person whom the Board of Directors expressly empowers for this
purpose

A 10 Indicate, if applicable, any legal or statutory restnctions in regard to the exercise of voting nghts In
particular, report the existence of any restrictions that may impede the acquisition of control of the
company through the purchase of shares in the market

Yes [ No [X]

A 11 Indicate whether the General Meeting of Shareholders has agreed to adopt neutralization measures
with respect to a takeover bid pursuant to Act 6/2007

Yes [ No [X]

if 'ves’, explain the measures approved and the terms in which the restrictions will become ineffective
A 12 Indicate whether the company has 1ssued secunties that are not traded on an EU regulated market

Yes [ ] No [X]

Where applicable, indicate the different classes of shares and, for each class of shares, the nghts and
obligations conferred

GENERAL MEETING

B 1 Indicate, and, if applicable, explain any differences regarding the minimum quorum levels for the
holding of sharehclder meetings established in the Spanish Capital Companies Act {LSC)

Yes [ ] No [X]
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B 2 Indicate, and, if applicable, explain any differences regarding the adoption of corporate resolutions with

respect to the system provided for in the Spanish Capital Companies Act (LSC)

Yes [X] No []

Describe how this differs from the system provided for in the LSC

Different quahfied majonty from Other cases of qualified majority
that established under Article 201 2
LSC in those cases specified Iin
Article 194 1 of the LSC

% established by the company for 75 00% 0 00%
adoption of resolutions

Descnbe the differences

In those cases specified 1n Article 194 of the Spanish Capital Companies Act require the favourable vote of 75% of the capital present or
represented at the General Meeting, when at the second call, the meeting 1s attended by shareholders representing 25% or more but
less than 50% of the subscnbed voting capital (reinforcing the requirement of the favourable vote of two-thirds of the capital present or
represented when, at the second call, the meeting 1s attended by shareholders representing 25% or more but less than 50% of the
subscribed voting capital required by the article 201 2 of the Capital Companies Act )

B 3 State the rules applicable to the amendment of the corporate bylaws In particular, indicate the

majorities needed for the amendment of the corporate bylaws and, where approprate, the rules laid
down for the protection of the nghts of the shareholders in the modification of the said bylaws

Art 19 of the Corporate Bylaws provides as follows "However in order for the Regular or Exiracrdinary General Meeting of Shareholders
to validly resolve in regard to a capital increase or reduction, and, in general, In regard to any amendment of the Corporate Bylaws, bond
1ssue, the elimination or imitatton of pre-emption nghts for new shares, as well as the transformation, merger, spin-off or assignment en
masse of assets and liabilties and the transfer of the registered office outside of Spain it shall be necessary at first call that the meeting be
attended in person or by proxy by shareholders holding at least 50% of the subscnbed voting capital At second call, the attendance of 25%
of said capital shall suffice For said resolutions to be adopted the favourable vote of 75% of the capital present or represented at the
General Meeting shall be required, when at the second call, the meeting 1s attended by shareholders representing 25% or more but less
than 50% of the subscnbed voting capital * The same provision 1s contained in Article 20 2 of the Rules of the General Meeting of Codere
SA

Additionally, article 7 of the Rules of Procedure of the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company provides that the following 1s the
competence of the General Meeting "h} The transformation, merger, spin-off or assignment en masse of assets and habilities and the
transfer of the registered office outside of Spain and dissolution of the Company, and, in general, any amendment of the Corporate
Bylaws™

As for the voling on resclutions, Article 3 b) of the Rules of Procedure of the General Meeting of Shareholders states that "In
the case of the amendment of the bylaws, each item or group of items that are matenally different” shall be voted on separately

B 4 Indicate the attendance data for the general meetings held durnng the year of reference of the present

report and those for the previous year

Attendance Data
Date of G_eneral % of those % of Proxy Holders % of Remote Vote Total
Meeting Physically Present Electronic Vote Other
27/06/2013 15 75% 61 35% 0 00% 083% 77 97%
14/08/2013 14 88% 62 28% 0 00% 173% 78 89%
25/06/2014 13 28% 63 40% 0 00% 0 00% 76 78%

B 5 Indicate whether the Bylaws contain any restriction regarding the minimum number of shares required

in order to attend the General Meeting

Yes |7]

No [7]
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| Number of shares required to attend the General Megting

B & Indicate if certain decisions Involving a structural modification of the Company ("affilation” sale of key
operaling assets, aperations equivalent to the iquidation of the company ) must be submitted to the

100

approval of the general meeting of shareholders, although not expressly required under company law

Yes [ ]

B 7 Indicate the address and means of access to the company website for information on corporate
governance and other information on general meetings to be made available to shareholders via the

website of the Company

No [X]

The address of the website of the Company 1s www codere com

From this address by clicking on the hink called "Shareholders and Investors®, multiple options are deployed, clicking the option titled

"Corporate Governance” Clicking on that ink will bnng up information on the corporate governance of Cedere SA, including its Bylaws,
the Rules of the General Meeting, the composition of the Board of Directors, the Regulations of the Board, and a specific information on
the General Meetings In this tab, we publish all information relating to the General Meetings of Shareholders held since the date of the
IPO, as well as information on the Electronic Shareholder Forum

ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

C 1 Board of Directors

C 1 1 Maximum and minimum number of directors provided for in the Bylaws

|

T

Wi

A

Wi

I

b

Maximum number of directors 15 —
Minimum number of directors [———
—resuiighld &
J—
C 1 2 Complete the following table with respect to members of the Board :1
a6
Name of Director Representative Position Date of Date of Procedure for _:j
on Board Initial Most appointment R
Appolntm Recent -.—-J
——
MR JUAN JOSE ZORNOZA PEREZ DIRECTOR 17/096/199 25/096!200 AgﬁETihéENT
GENERAL ___.4"'
MEETING .
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ CHAIRMAN- 07/05/1999 | 25/06/2009 |} AGREEMENT OF st
SAMPEDRO CEQ THE GENERAL ~—
e
MEETING OF

MR JOSE IGNACIO CASES MENDEZ DIRECTCR 17/06/1999 { 25/06/2009 | AGREEMENT OF ——

THE GENERAL .
MEETING OF :
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ DIRECTOR 17/06/1999 | 25/06/2009 | AGREEMENT OF ——
SAMPEDRO THE GENERAL RSS—
MEETING OF ey
B e ———
MR EUGENIO VELA SASTRE DIRECTOR 17/06/1999 | 25/06/2008 [ AGREEMENT OF J——
THE GENERAL -
MEETING OF =
MR JOSE RAMON ROMERO DIRECTOR 17/06/1999 | 25/06/2009 | AGREEMENT OF THE —
RODRIGUEZ GENERAL MEETING I
OF SHAREHOLDERS —
DIRECTOR 07/051999 | 25/06/2009 AGREEMENT OF THE —
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ IGENERAL MEETING J————
SAMPEDRO IOF SHAREHOLDERS w——
————

7
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l

Name of Director Representative  |Position on Board| Date of Imitial |Date of Most Procedure for ——.:
Appomntment Recent appomtment -
Appointment o——
——
MR JUAN JUNQUERA DIRECTOR 10/05/2012 10/05/2012 | AGREEMENT OF ——
TEMPRANO THE GENERAL r———
MEETING OF R
SHAREHOLDERS J——
MASAMPE, S L MR JOSE MARIA DEPUTY 07/05/2008 25/06/2014 | AGREEMENT OF iy
LASTRAS CHAIRMAN THE AGM -
BERMUDEZ e ——
MR JOSEPH ZAPPALA DIRECTOR 20/11/2002 25/06/2009 | AGREEMENT OF Ay
IHE AGM e
e
i
I Total number of directors I 10 l s
Indicate any resignations or dismissals from the Board of Directors produced during the -
period —
e
o
rr————
C 1 3 Complete the following tables regarding members of the Board of Directors and their type of —
directorship S
J—
S
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS —
el
Bl
e L]
Name of Director Committee which proposed Position in company ——
the appointment organization chart R
MR JOSE ANTONIC MARTINEZ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHAIRMAN AND CEO RS
SAMPEDRO COMMITTEE S
MS ENCARNACIGN MARTINEZ CORPORATE GOVERNANGE DIRECTOR —
SAMPEDRO COMMITTEE PR
B e
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DIRECTOR CODERE AMERICA R —
SAMPEDRO COMMITTEE e
B ——
e
|
v
Total number of executive directors 3 S
% of total board 30 00% -
EXTERNAL NOMINEE DIRECTORS  —
v——q
i |
——
Name of Director Committee which Name of significant r—
proposed the shareholder which this —_-:,,
appointment director represents or which R
proposed the director's R
MR JOSE IGNACIQ CASES MENDEZ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ -
COMMITTEE SAMPEDRO o
MR JOSE RAMON ROMERO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ _,:
RODRIGUEZ COMMITTEE SAMPEDRO O
E—
MASAMPE, S L CORPORATE MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ B
GOVERNANCE SAMPEDRO D
e
el
Tetal number of external nominee directors 3 __,:
% of total board 30 00% —
e ——
e
B e ——
EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ——
D
R
B —
Name of director: -
8 —

mmm
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MR JUAN JUNQUERA TEMPRANO




Profile

it

Former Secretary of State for Telecommunications and the Information Soctety CEO of —
Imrersum, S L .

Name of director —
Po————

MR JOSEPH ZAPPALA [—

Profile
Former U § ambassador to Spain (1989-1992) President of Joseph

Zappala Investments

T i

Total number of other independent directors 2
Totai % of Board 20 00%

Indicate whether any director qualified as an independent director of the company or its group,
receives any amount or benefit other than for the concept of directors fees, or holds or has
held a business relationship with the company or any group company during the last financial
year, either on theirr own behalf or as a significant shareholder, director or senior manager of a
company that has or has had such a relationship

No independent directors incurred in this circumstance

In this case, provide a reasoned statement of the board on the reasons why it considers that
the director can perform his or her functions as an independent director

OTHER EXTERNAL DIRECTORS

b

el
C tt hich d
ommittee which propose P |
Name of director the appoIntment J—
e —— ]
MR JUAN JOSE ZORNOZA PEREZ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE [
MR EUGENIO VELA SASTRE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE JRS—
B e ]
PRSI
Total number of other iIndependent directors 2
Total % of Board 20 00%

State the reasons why they cannot be considered to be nominee or iIndependent directors and
any ties they have, whether with the company or its managers, or with company shareholders

Lot

Name of Director

MR JUAN JOSE ZORNOZA PEREZ
Company, executive or shareholder mantamning the link
CCDERE, S A

Reasons

10
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Law 31/2014 of 3 December, amending the Corporations Act to improve corporate governance, provides
in Article 529 ak any director for continuous period exceeding 12 years cannot be considerad in any way
as an independent director

Upon entry into force of this Act, we understand that the status as an independent director that untit then
was held by Juan José Zornoza Pérez, under the Ministenal Order ECC/461/2013, said status 15 lost for
having held the position for over the 12 years established

However, we understand that Juan José Zormnoza Perez cannal be considered a nominee director as he
does not own any shares In the company and has not been designated or represent any shareholder of
the company

Name of Director

MR EUGENIO VELA SASTRE

Company, executive or shareholder maintaining the link
CODERE, S A
Reasons

Law 31/2014 of 3 December, amending the Corporations Act to improve corporate governance, provides
in Article 529 ak any director for continucus period exceeding 12 years cannot be considered in any way
as an independent director

Upcn entry into force of this Act, we understand that the status as an independent director, who until then
held Eugenio Vela Sastre under the Ministenal Order ECC/461/2013, Is lost for having held the position
for over the 12 years established

We understand, notwithstanding the foregoing, that Mr Eugenio Vela Sastre cannot be considered a
nominee director, not having been appointed by a sharegholder, nor represent any shareholder

Indicate, If applicable, any changes that may have taken place during the penod in regard to
the type of directorship

i

|

i

I

lt!!“”“

Tm

mn

Hi

¥

T

i

Name of Director Date of Previous status | Current status
change
MR JUAN JOSE ZORNOZA PEREZ 2411212014 Independent Oth:lrr:;ts:nal
MR EUGENIO VELA SASTRE 24/12/2014 Independent Other external

C 1 4 Complete the following table with information on the number of directors for the past 4 years,
and the nature of such directors

Number of directors % of total of each type of director
2014 2013 2012 2011 2014 2013 2012 2011
Executive 1 1 1 1 33 33% 33 33% 33 33% 33 33%
Nominee 0 0 0 0 0 00% 0 00% 0 00% 0 00%
Independent 0 0 0 0 0 00% 0 00% 0 00% 0 00%
Other External 0 0 0 0 0 00% 0 00% 000% 0 00%
Total 1 1 1 1 10 00% 10 00% 10 00% 11 1%
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C 1 5 Explain the measures, If any, which have been taken to seek to include a number of women on
the Board to achieve a balanced representation of women and men

T

Explanation of the measures

H

The company has not formally adopted measures, nor any formal procedure for the inclusion of women in the Board so that
therr presence on the Board would be balanced

|

R )

Notwithstanding the foregaing, the Ethics and Conduct Code of Codere Group in section IV point 1 states that "The Codere b

Group will promote equal treatment for men and women as regards access to employment, training and promotion of R

professionals and working conditions, as well as access to goods and services and their supply” In point 5 of the same

seclion states that “The Codere Group will maintain a ngorous and objective selection policy considenng only the academic J———

and professional ments of the candidates and the needs of the Group " o

—_

C 16 Explain the measures, f any, agreed by the appomtments commitiee to ensure that the B

selection procedures are not imphcitly biased against the selection of female directors and that e

the company makes a conscious effort to include potential female candidates which meet the

desired professional profile TT—

I Explanation of the measures I .

To cover new vacancies, pursuant to the Rules of the Board of directors, the Corporate Governange Comimitiee ensures that T——

the selection procedures are not impheitly biased aganst the selection of female drectors and makes a conscrous effort to I

include potential female candidates which meet the desired professional profile v

The Regulations of the Board of Directors of the Company empowers the Corporate Governance Committee to assess the _:1
skills, knowledge and experence required on the Board and to define the roles and capabitiies required of the candidates to -

fill each vacancy and evaluate the ime and dedication needed to perform their duties —

When, despite the measures, if any, taken there are few or no female directors, explain the -

reasons why S

m———y

il

I Explanation of reasons l -

Currently the Board of Directors of Codere S A 1s made up of ten members, one of whom 15 Ms Encarnacion Martinez —

Sampedro, who 15 an Executive Director of the Company and, therefore, women represent 10% of the members of the ____'

Board —

~mentliel |

The latest stabistics published by the CNMV, and refernng to 2013, show that the average percentage of paricipation of —

women In the Boards of Directors of kisted Spanish companies was 12% Notwithslanding the foregoing, the correspending R

report Indicates that in 2013 listed companies with a capitalization of less than 500 million, the average of women in the S

boards down to 10 8 Therefore we can conclude that the percentage representing women on the Board of Directors of |

"Codere SA" 15 in ine with the average of comparable companies ——

R e ]
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C 17 Explain the form of representation of significant shareholders on the Board of Directors ——

e —— ]

——memi

e

Jose Antonio Martinez Sampedro, owner of 12,425% of the shares of the Company and who indirectly controls an e

additienal 51'246%, 1s represented on the Board of Birectors by the directors Mr José Ignacio Cases Méndez, José Ramon T e—

Romera Rodnguez and Masampe, 5L, Nominee Director and Deputy Chairman, which 1s represented i turn by Jose Marna —

Lastras Bermudez -~

e

C 1 8 Explain, if applicable, the reasons for appointing nominee directors at the request of S

shareholders holding less than 5% of the share capital R

—————
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Indicale whether formal requesis for appointment to the Board have been denied to
shareholders having a shareholding equal to or greater than that of other shareholders at
whose request nominee directors were appointed If applicable, explain the reasons why

these requests were not honored

Wi

||

—————

———ba

e aad

e

Yes [ | No [X] —

R e ]

e

e

C 1 91In the case where a director has resigned from his or her position before the end of the term of ~——===
the directorship, indicate whether or not sard director has explained his or her reasons to the ——
Board, and by what means, and, in the case where the director has explained the reasons In s
writing to the entire Board, explain below at least the reasons given by the director -
C 1 10 Indicate, If applicable, the powers delegated to the CEOs —
i

Name of Director —
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO e
iy

Brief description _——. .

]

The Board of Directors permanently delegates all of the powers to the CEQ, with the exception of those e

powers that are reserved by law or statute, and those which may not be delegated pursuant to the rules —

of procedure of the Board of Directors i

gt

rm————

e

C 1 11 Identify, if applcable, the members of the Board who hold directorships or management ——==
posttions 1n other companies which form part of the listed company group e
e

i

—mER

Name of grou "

Name of Director company group Position -

MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ CHAIRMAN AND JOINT AND SEVERAL I
SAMPEDRO COLONDER SAU DIRECTOR —
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ CODERE INTERNACIONAL DOS CHAIRMAN AND JOINT AND SEVERAL] R
SAMPEDRO SAU DIRECTOR —
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ CODERE SERVICIOS —
SAMPEDRO COMPARTIDOS, S A U JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR J—
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ S
SAMPEDRO C-F8 SL JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR '
——
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ ]
SAMPEDRO CODERE DISTRIBUCIONES SL JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR .
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ CODERE ESPANA SLU JOINT AND SEVERAL DIREGTOR —
SAMPEDRO :
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ CHAIRMAN AND JOINT AND e
SAMPEDRO CODERE AMERICA S AU SEVERAL DIRECTOR s

SAMPEDRO

MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ

CODERE INTERNACIONAL SLU

JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR

i

SAMPEDRO

MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ

NIDIDEM SLU

CHAIRMAN AND JOINT AND SEVERAL|
DIRECTOR

SAMPEDRO

MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ

CODERE INTERACTIVA S L

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

SAMPEDRO

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ

GESTIONI MARCONI SRL

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

SAMPEDROQ

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ

VEGAS SRL

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

SAMPEDRO

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ

OPERBINGO ITALIA SPA

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

i
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Name of Director Name of group ——"‘j
company Position J——
MS ENCARNACION MART{NEZ p—
SAMPEDRO GIOMAX SRL SOLE ADMINISTRATCOR =
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ -
SAMPEDRO BINTENGRAL SPA SOLE ADMINISTRATOR |
e
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ —
SAMPEDRO CODERE ITALIA SPA SOLE ADMINISTRATOR
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ R
SAMPEDRO CODERE GAMING ITALIA SRL SOLE ADMINISTRATOR )
'—-*ﬁ
'N e &
“S”ASMEE%;%NAC'ON MARTINEZ CODERE NETWORK SPA CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD i
MS ENCARNACICN MARTINEZ s
SAMPEDRO CODEMATICA SRL SOLE ADMINISTRATOR ——
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ B
SAMPEDRO COLONDER SAU JOINT AND SEVERAL CEQ R—
o] INEZ e
MS ENCARNACION MART
SAMPEDRO PARISIENNE SR L SOLE ADMINISTRATOR |
el
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ |
SAMPEDRO PALACE BINGO SRL SOLE ADMINISTRATOR -
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ —
SAMPEDRO CODERE GIRONA S A JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR —
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ SECRETARY TO THE BOARD AND —
SAMPEDRO CODERE GUADALAJARA S A DIRECTOR p—
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE INTERNACIONAL DOS JOINT AND SEVERAL R
SAMPEDRC SAU CEO
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ R
SAMPEDRO OPERIBERICA S A SOLE ADMINISTRATOR —
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ .
SAMPEDRO MISURI S A SOLE ADMINISTRATOR .
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ —
SAMPEDRO CARTAYA S A SOLE ADMINISTRATOR ]
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ S—
SAMPEDRO CODERE ASESORIA S A JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR g
]
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS NAVARRA I
SAMPEDRO SAU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR .
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ RED AEAM S A JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR .
SAMPEDRO —reemsate
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
—remE
SAMPEDRO CODERE APUESTAS SAU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR :
C CION MARTINEZ -~
MS ENCARNACION ey
SAMPEDRO CODERE ONLINES AU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR e
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE SERVICIOS I
SAMPEDRO COMPARTIDOS, S A U JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR -
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS VALENCIA -
SAMPEDRO SAU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR S
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD .
SAMPEDRO RECREATIVOS OBELISCO S L AND CEG —
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ ro—
SAMPEDRO SIGIREC SL CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD B
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ e
SAMPEDRO EL PORTALON S L JOINT ADMINISTRATOR —
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ -
SAMPEDRO RESTIYCIA SL JOINT ADMINISTRATOR T
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ - —
SAMPEDRO CODERE LOGRORO S L SOLE ADMINISTRATOR s
R — |
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS GALICIA SLU | SOLE ADMINISTRATOR R
SAMPEDRO —
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS CASTILLA-LA R
SAMPEDRO MANCHA S AU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR —
e |
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS MURCIA SLU | SOLE ADMINISTRATOR e —
SAMPEDRO J—
|
———
el
———mmtll
e
R ———]
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Name of Director

Name of group
company

Position

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRO

C-F8 SL

JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR

A

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRO

CODERE DISTRIBUCICNES S L

JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRQ

CODERE ESPARA SLU

JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTCR

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDROC

CODERE AMERICA SAU

JOINT AND SEVERAL CEO

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRQ

CODERE INTERNACIONAL SLU

JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTCR

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRO

NIDIDEM SLU

JOINT AND SEVERAL CEC

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRO

CODERE APUESTAS ESPANASLU

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRQ

CODERE SERVICICS, SRL

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRO

JPVYMATIC 2005 SL U

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRO

CODERE ALICANTE, SLU

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRO

CODERE APUESTAS ARAGON S L U

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

e

|

MR JOSE RAMON ROMERO

T

RODRIGUEZ CODERE INTERACTIVAS L DIRECTOR
EEM;%'SR"SV'ER MARTINEZ INTERMAR BINGOS S A CHAIRMAN
QEM',;%'SF?SV'ER MARTINEZ CODERE ARGENTINA S A CHAIRMAN
“SAEM';,%'SJSV'ER MARTINEZ BINGOS DEL OESTE S A CHAIRMAN
g”EMlg,lélgFfSV'ER MARTINEZ IBERARGEN S A CHAIRMAN
R PRy TER MARTINEZ BINGOS PLATENSES S A CHAIRMAN —
-
QEM,L,%'DS;SV'ER MARTINEZ SAN JAIME S A CHAIRMAN J—
R ]
e |
g”fm';lé'g’,;gv'ﬂ MARTINEZ INTERBAS S A CHAIRMAN —
——
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ N
ITAPOAN S A CHAIRMAN —
SAMPEDRO —
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ ———
INTERJUEGOS S A CHAIRMAN SR
SAMPEDRO —
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ ——
ALTA CORDILLERA S A CHAIRMAN ey
SAMPEDRO J——
B ]
QEM',;%EF:SV'ER MARTINEZ HIPICA DE PANAMA S A EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN B
Y
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ COMPARIA DE RECREATIVOS DE .y
SAMPEDRO BANAMA S A EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN -
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ .
SAMPEDRO COLONDER SAU JOINT AND SEVERAL CEQ S
o
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ CODERE INTERNACIONAL DOS i
S AMPEDRO SAL JOINT AND SEVERAL CEO
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ CODERE SERVICIOS R
SAMPEDRO COMPARTIDOS, S AU JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR S—
J———
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ JOINT AND SEVERAL i
SAMPEDRO CODERE AMERICA SAU CEO ——
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ _
SAMPEDRO CODERE INTERNACIONAL S LU JOINT AND SEVERAL DIRECTOR =
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ JOINT AND SEVERAL J——
SAMPEDRO NIDIDEM SLU CEO o
—eanmglinhd
R e ———]
JR——
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Name of Director

Name of group
company

Position

MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRO

CODERE MEXICO SA DECV

TREASURER

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ
SAMPEDRO

CODERE HUESCA SL

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

T

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ

Yes [X]

No []

Explanation of rules

Article 4 1 b} of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors establishes that the Directors may not, except when
expressly authonzed by the Board, after a report by the Corporate Governance Committee, form part of more than 8 boards,
excluding (i} the Boards of Companies forming part of the same group as that of the Company {1) the Boards of familial or
holding compamas of the Directors or their familtes and (1) the Boards which they are members of owing to their professional

relation

reserved for itself

C 1 14 Indicate the general policies and strategies the approval of which the plenum of the Board has

Yes | No
The investment and financing policies X
The definition of the structure of the corporate group X
The corporate govermnance policy X
The corporate social responsibility policy X
The strategic or business plan and the annual budget and management objectives X
16

————
SAMPEDRO CODERE SAGUNTO SLU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR .
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS LARIOJAS A | SOLE ADMINISTRATOR —
SAMPEDRO
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS CASTILLAY I
SAMPEDRO LEONS AU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR —
MS ENCARNACIGN MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS CATALURA —
SAMPEDRO SAU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR ---.
——————
MS ENCARNACIGN MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS CEUTAS LU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR —
SAMPEDRO e
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ CODERE APUESTAS i
SAMPEDRO EXTREMADURA S AU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR —
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ ——
SAMPEDRO CODERE MEXICO SA DE GV CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR —
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ IMPULSORA DE CENTROS DE e
SAMPEDRO ENTRETENIMIENTO LAS AMERICAS | CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR R—
SAPI DE GV R——
IMPULSORA DE GENTROS DE B—
MR JOSE RAMON ROMERO ENTRETENIMIENTO LAS AMERICAS | DIRECTOR e
RODRIGUEZ SAP| BE OV B
N ———
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ e
S AMPEDRO CODERE CHILE LIMITADA REPRESENTATIVE —
MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ N
SAMPEDRS CARRASCO NOBILE S A DIRECTOR —
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ DESARROLLO ONLINE JUEGOS —
SAMPEDRO REGULADOS SAU SOLE ADMINISTRATOR o
R ——— ]
C 112 Detall, if applicable, the company directors who are members of the Board of Directors of —
other listed compames in Spain other than those of your Group, which have been reported to S
the company N
C 1 13 Indicate, and if applicable, explain, If the company has established rules on the number of —
|
boards its directors may form part of "
]
e

L

Ui oot obi
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Yes | No
Compensation Policy and Evaluation of Senior Management Performance X

The rnisk control and management policy, as well as the periodical monitoring of the internal information and| X T—
lcontrol systems, .

Dividend Policy, as well as Treasury Stock Policy, especially the mits thereof X -
e 1]

il B

C 1 15 Indicate the total remuneration of the members of the Board R
——
i
e d
Remuneration of the board of directors (thousands of euros) 2,513 ———
el

Amount of the remuneration corresponding to the benefits accrued by 0 -
the directors on pensions (thousands of euros) -
Total remuneration of the board of directors (thousands of euros) 2,513 —
werrlindle
———
——
R
C 1 16 Identify any senior management who are not executive directors, and indicate total —
compensation payable to them durnng the year i
J—
.|
- —
e ——

Name or company name Position

MR PEDRO CARLOS ECHEVARRIA ARNAIZ ASSISTANT DIRECTOR TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE e
MR_RAFAEL LOPEZ ENRIQUEZ CHILLON HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGER —
MR SERAFIN GOMEZ RODRIGUEZ SECURITY AND COMPLIANCE MANAGER N
MR BERNARDO CHENA MATHOV GENERAL MANAGER FOR ARGENTINA —
MR FELIPE LUDENA MUNOZ INFORMATION SYSTEMS MANAGER -

MR ANGEL CORZO UCEDA ECONOMIC FINANCIAL MANAGER -
MR ADOLFQ CARPENA MANSO INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER e
MR FERNANDO ORS VILLAREJO BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR S
i
MR ITALO DURAZZO MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER
MR ALEJANDRC PASCUAL GONZALEZ EUROPEAN OPERATIONS MANAGER -
—emint
l Total senior management compensation {in thousands of euros) | 3,031 | —
—
el
C 1 17 Indicate, If applicable, the identity of the members of the Board who are, in turn, members of -
the Board of Directors of companies having significant shareholdings and/or 1n companies st
]
belonging to its group -
el
Corporate Name of Significant .
Name of Director —
Shareholder Position "
_—~.
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRC MASAMPE HOLDING, B V JOINT —
ADMINISTRATOR ""'_,
et
e
Describe, If any, other than those referred to in the previous section, the members of the
Board of Directors with inks to significant shareholders and/or the companies thereof T
Related Director Name or Corporate Name —
I
MASAMPE, S L SR
—rm——
Related Significant Shareholder Name or Corporate Name —
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO s
= il
il
——mamilie
17 —
B
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Relation Description

MASAMPE, S L 1s 2 company fully owned by Mr Jose Antonio Martinez Sampedro

Related Director Name or Corporate Name

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO
Related Significant Shareholder Name or Corpeorate Name
MASAMPE HOLDING, BV
Relation Description

Ms Encarnacion Martinez Sampedro 1s the majonty shareholder of Mabloem Ontwikkeling BV, a
company that owns 100% of Masampe Holding, BV

Related Director Name or Corporate Name:

MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO
Related Significant Shareholder Name or Corporate Name
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO
Relation Description

Blood relation (sister and brother)

Related Director Name or Corporate Name:

MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO
Related Significant Shareholder Name or Corporate Name
MR JOSE ANTONIO MARTINEZ SAMPEDROQ
Relation Description

Blood relation {sister and brother)

Related Director Name or Corporate Name

MR LUIS JAVIER MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO
Related Significant Shareholder Name or Corporate Name
MS ENCARNACION MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO
Relation Description

Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro and Ms Encarnacidn Martinez Sampedro are siblings

C 1 18 Indicate whether any change has been made dunng the year in the rules of procedure of the
Board
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Yes [ | No [X]

C 1 19 Indicate the procedures for appointment, re-election, evaluation and resignation and dismissal

of directors Detall the competent organs, the steps to be taken and the cnteria to be
employed in each procedure

- Selection

The Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of the Company empower the Corporate Governance Commuttee to
make recommendations to the Board regarding its duties, appointments or nominations regarding the structure of the
Board and s Committees To this end, the Rules of Procedure empower the said Committee to assess the skills,
knowledge and expenence required on the Board and to define the roles and capabilities required of the candidates to fill
each vacancy and evaluate the tme and dedication needed tc perform thewr duties In particular, the Corporate
Governance Committee shall ensure that the selection procedures for new vacancies are implcitly unbiased against the
selection of female directors (Art 16 2 and 1 16 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors)

- Appointment

The appotntment of the members of the Board of Directors corresponds to the General Meeting of Shareholders (Art 24 1 of
the Corporate Bylaws), notwithstanding the power of the Board to appoint, from among the shareholders, those persons who
are to fill any vacancies produced, until the next General Meeting 1s held {art 24 16 of the Corporate Bylaws)

These persons affected by any cause of incompatibility, disqualification, incapacity or legally established prohibition in any
terntonial sphere affecting the Company, both general causes as well as those applicable in terms of the object and activities
of the Company (art 24 4 of the Corporate Bylaws) are prohibited from being directors or representing directors that are legal
persons

Furthermaore, and tn any event, the persons appointed as Directors are required to meet not only the conditions called for by
law and the Corporate Bylaws but also those established in the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Direclors, formally
undertaking at the time they take office lo comply with the obligations and duties stated therein, it being highlighted that when
the Board of Directors makes its proposals to the General Mesting for the appointment of Directors and makes the pertinent
appointments under the system of co-option, it will do so at the proposal of the Corporate Governance Committee, in the case
of Independent Directors, and after a report by the Corporate Governance Commuttee in the case of all other directors (art 2
Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors)

- Re-election

The Directors shall perform their duties for the term of six years, being elgible for re-election for further terms of the same
duration

As In the case of appointment, re-election must be preceded either by a proposal (In the case of Independent Directors) orby a
report from the Corporate Governance Committes {in the case of all other Directors)

- Evaluation

Once a year, at the proposal of the Corporate Governance Committee, the Board will evaluate its own functioning, as well as
that of is Committees and that of the Chairman of the Board (art 12 Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors

- Resignation

The Directors shall tender their resignation in the cases and for the reasons established by law or the bylaws (art 3 Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Directors}

C 1 20 Indicate whether the board has proceeded durning the year to conduct an assessment of therr

activity

Yes [X] No []

In such a case, explain the extent to which the self-evaluation has led to major changes in its
internal organization and the procedures applicable to its activities

| Description of changes |
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|

Article 12 of the the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors establishes the requirement that once a year the Board
will assess, on proposal by the Corporate Governance Committee, its own operation, its Committees and the Chairman of
the Board

After the self-assessment in 2014, the Board adopted a report that incorporated certain measures to improve those
areas that had detected a less proper operation

W

C 1 21 Indicate the cases in which directors are required to resign -

Nommee Directors are required to tender therr resignation when the shareholder whom they represent sells its entire
shareholding of when said shareholder reduces its holding to a level that requires a reduction in the number of Nominee
Directors (art 3 3 Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors)

I}

The Board shall not propose the resignation of any independent Director prior to compliance with the statutory penod for which
said Director was appointed, unless the Board considers that there 1s just cause for so doing, after a report by the Corporate
Governance Committee In particular, good cause shall be understood to exist when the Director has falled to comply with the
duttes inherent to hus or her position or 1s affected by any of the circumstances which prevent him from being classified as
independent (art 3 4 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors)

m

i

l

The dismissal of independent directors may also be proposed as a resull of Takeover Bids, mergers or other similar
corporate operattons entailing a change n the corporate capital structure when sard changes in the structure of the Board
are made owing to the critenon of proportionahty indicated in Recommendation 1 9 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board
of Directors)

Wi

Directors are required to tender their resignation in those cases in which they may harm the trustworthiness and reputation of
the Company (art 3 6 Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors)

When, whether as a result of resignation or for any other reason, a director leaves his or her position before the term
thereof finalizes, sad director explains the reasons in a letter to be sent to all of the members of the Board (article 3 7 of
the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors)

Wi

C 1 22 Explain whether the position of chairperson of the board entails the function of chief executive
of the company If so, indicate the measures taken to limit the nsks of accumulation of powers ——
In a sole person .

Yes [X] No [] —
e
- nilien &
Measures aimed at limiting risks [
Under Articla 10 of the Rules of Procedure of the Beard of Directors, the Chairman of the Board shall be the chief executive of R
the Company s
Article 7 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of Codere, S A establishes that notwithstanding the powers of -
representation and execution corresponding to the Chamrman, and the powers of attomey or delegations granted by the [
Company, the Board of Directors, as the core of its mission, 15 1n charge of approving company strategy and the organization e —
required for the implementation of said strategy, as well as of supervising the established targets and overseeing compliance hm—
therewith by management, and seetng to it that management respects the Company object and interests Moreover, said T——
article reserves for the Board of Directors the funclron of approving up to 18 different competencies, ranging from mergers —
takeovers, spin-offs or business combinations i which any Codere subsidiary 1s interested, excluding those taking place P ]
solely within its Group, or the disposal of capital holdings In companies or of other fixed assets the value of which exceeds e———
three milltlon euros, or rights assignments with respect to trade name or trademarks, or with respect to patents, technotogy and "'":

any industnal property modality owned by Codere, S A and having financial importance when these go beyond normal Group -
business actvity USSRV
' ———h
Likewsse, any resolution or decision that is of special importance to the company, after being approved by the Board, must T
be submitted to the comesponding Board Commuttee for review thereby For the adoption of certain agreements, it further _____-."
requires the relevant committee 1ssue a report or the person or body who proposed the agreement PR
e
It1s also important to point out that the Chairman does not have a casting vote on the Board of Direciors ~——"
Indicate and, if applicable, explain whether regulations have been established which empower -
one of the independent directors to request that a Board meeting be called, or that new items -
be included on the agenda, in order to coordinate and voice the concerns of external directors R
and to conduct the evaluation made by the Board of Directors R
e ]
re—

Yes [X] No []

gy
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Explanation of rules

Pursuant to article 10 5 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of Codere, S A, the Deputy Chairman, or in the
absence thereof, one or more Independent Directors, may request a meeting of the Board or that new items be included on
the agenda in order to voice the concerns of the external Directors and conduct the evaluation by the Board of its Chairman
Additionally, article 10 6 in the context of designation of the Deputy Chaiman, indicates that if the Board of Directors

considers it advisable it may appoint a Deputy Chairman for the purpese not only of repfacing the Chatrman in the case of
absence or liness, but also to collaborate with him in the exercise of his duties

C 1 23 Are reinforced majorities, other than the legal ones, required for any type of decision?

Yes [ ] No [X]

Where applicable, descnibe the differences

C 1 24 Explain whether there are any specific requirements other than those pertaining to directors, in
order to be appointed Chairman

Yes [ | No [X]
C 1 25 Indicate whether the Chairman has a casting vote
Yes [ | No  [X]

C 1 26 Indicate whether the bylaws cr the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Birectors stipulate an
age hmit for directors

Yes [ ] No [X]

C 1 27 Indicate whether the bylaws or the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors stipulate a
himited term of office for iIndependent directors

Yes [ No [X]

C 1 28 Indicate whether the corporate bylaws or rules of procedure of the Board of Directors establish
any formal processes for proxy voting on the Board of Directors , in particular regarding the
maxtmum number of proxies a director may hold and whether it 1s required for proxies to be
the same type of director If so, bnefly explain the rules

Article 24 13 of the Bylaws provides that the Directors may delegate in wnting their attendance and voting to any other Director

Also, article 4 1 d of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors, establishes that Directors, notwithstanding their duty
to attend the meetings of the organs which they form part of, and to reduce their absences to only the most essential
instances, may delegate proxies to attend on their behalf, provided that said proxy is essenttal and 1s granted {o ancther
member of the Board in wnling, 1s addressed to the Chairman of the Board, contains instructions and s exclusively for the
meeting in question

C 1 29 Indicate the number of meetings held by the Board of Directors duning the past year Likewise,
indicate, If applhicable, the number of imes that the Board has met without the attendance
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R
of its Chairman This calculation shall consider proxies without specific instructions as cases i
- D ]
of non-attendance JR—
— it
hamee ]
E——
Number of Board meetings 23 -
Mumber of Board meetings not attended by the Chairman 0 T
e s o ]
Indicate the number of meetings that the vanous Board Committees have held during the -
year -
Comnmussion fee Number of meetings .
AUDIT COMMITTEE 9 —
r————
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE [}
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 9 e
C 1 30 Indicate the number of meetings held by the Board of Directors during the year without the e
attendance of all of its members This calculation shall consider proxies without specific J—
——
instructions as cases of non-attendance
R —]
——ermnlils
Attendance by directors 17 U
% of absences with respect to total votes during the year 97 39% "
B —
e
R e
C 1 31 Indicate whether the individual and consolidated annual accounts submitted for approval by —
the Board have been previcusly certified et
———
B ———
e
Yes [X] No [] —
Identify, If applicable, the person/s who has/have certfied the individual and consolidated _—
annual accounts of the company, for the drafting thereof by the Board —
=
Name Position re———
MR ANGEL CORZO UCEDA ECONOMIC FINANCIAL MANAGER N
R
C 1 32 Explain the mechanisms, If any, established by the Board of Directors to prevent the individual -]
and consolidated accounts drafted by it from being presented at the General Shareholders' R
Meeting with a qualfied opinion in the auditors’ report —
Ea——— |
e
Pursuant to article 26 5 of the Corporate Bylaws and art 14 2 e} of the Rules of Procedure of the Beard of Directors, the ere——
Audit Committee has among its competences that of mamtaining relattons with external auditors in order to receive —mmtna s
information in regard to those matters which might jeopardize the independence of the latter, and any other matters related to —
the audit process, and likewise 1o recerve information and rmamtain with the auditor the commurications stipulated by law T—
e
In agcordance with article 9 4 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors, the relations of the Board with the external E—
auditors of the company, which shall be channeled through the Audit Committee, shall conform to cntena of loyal -
collaboraton and respect for their ndependence It 1s endeavored that the annual accounts drafted by the Board will be —
venfied by the auditors without a qualified opinion In the case whereby such qualified opinions are unavoidable, the Board, ____-."
the Chawman of the Audit Committee and the auditors shall explain with clarity to the shareholders the content and scope of R
the reservations T——

C 1 33 Is the Secretary of the Board of Directors a Director?

Yes [ No [X]
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C 1 34 Explain the procedures for appointment and dismissal of the Secretary of the Board, indicating
whether the Secretary's appointment and dismissal have been reported by the Appointments

m

E— ]
Committee and approved by the plenum of the Board ———
| Procedure for Appointment and Dismissal ———
The Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of Codere, S A, in order tc safeguard the independence, impartiality and i
professionalism of the Secretary, hus appeintment and dismissal will be reported by the Corporate Governance Commitiee ——
and approved by the plenum of the Board (article 11 6)

i
In comphance with the provisions of the said Rules, the Corporate Governance Committee of Codere, SA, at its meeting in ——eramtats
April 2012, reported favorably on the appointment of the current Secretary Mr Luis Arguello Alvarez, following the resignation —
of his predecesscr and his appointment was subsequently unanimously approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting "“'_
held in May of the same year O
I
|
Ye | No sl
5 i
Does the Appointments Committee report the appointment? X :
B —— ]

Does the Appointments Committee report the dismissal? X
Does the plenum of the Board approve the appointment? X T——
Does the plenum of the Board approve the dismissal? X el
B —— |
e
Does the Secretary of the Board have the special duty to oversee compliance with the e
recommendations of good governance? —
et
—
B ——
Yes IY] No |_| e

Comments -

Pursuant to article 11 3 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of Codere, S A, the Secretary of the Board —
must take special care in order to ensura that the actions of the Board P
e N
Conform to the letter and the spint of the Law and its regulations, including those approved by regulatory agencies, e
b
Are 1n accordance with the Company Bylaws and with the Rules of Procedure of the General Meeting, the Beard and alt I—
other rules of the Company JE——
Indicate the mechanisms, if any, established by the company to preserve the independence of the auditor, the financial R
analysts, the investment banks and the rating agencies =
i
etk
i
e |
C 1 35 Indicate the mechanisms, If any, established by the company to preserve the independence of —
the auditor, the financial analysts, the investment banks and the rating agencies i
il
- With regard to the independence of the external auditors —
s
Pursuant to art 9 4 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors, the relations of the Board with the external auditors of — ety
the company, which are to be channeled through the Audit Comnuttee, shall obey cntena of loyal collaboration and respect .
for their independence In addiion, art 14 2 e) of the same Regulation estabhshes that the Auddt Commitiee shall have T—
competence over the mamtenance of relations with the external auditor, in order to receive information on those matters .. I'
which may jeopardize the independence of the latter g
= i
Also, the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors establishes, among other tasks entrusted thereto that the Audit ——
Committee shall elevate the following to the Board of Directors the selection, appointment, reappointment and removal of the -
external audifor, and the terms of their employment and receive regular infermation from the external auditer on the audit J—
plan and the results of its execution, and venfy that semor management are actng on its recommendations (Article 14 32° e
a) and b)) —
sl 4
R L

Lastly, art 14 3 2c) of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors stipulates that it coresponds to the Audit Committee to
ensure the iIndependence of the external auditor, being required for said purpose te ensure that the Company communicates the
change in auditor as a relevant fact to the Spanish Secunties Commission (together with a declaration on the eventual existence
of disagreements between the ncoming and outgoing auditor), ensure that the Company and the audstor respect the regulations
n effect regarding the provision of services other than auditing services, the imis on the concentration of the business of the
auditor, and in general, the other rules established to ensure the independence of auditors, and, if the external auditor resigns,
examine the circumstances that have led thereto - With regard to the independence of financial analysts, investment banks and
rating agencies

23

e




Article 6 2 of the internal Code of Conduct in Secunties Markets stipulates that at the informative meetings between the
company and its representatives with analysts, institutional investors and other secunties market professionals, it will be
endeavored to follow the recommendations established in said regard by the Spanish Secunties Commussion

As a follow-up to the above, the investor retatiens department channels communication with institutional shareholders and
financial analysts which cover the action of the Company, taking care to ensure that they are not furnished with any
Information which could entail a situation of pnivilege or advantage for them, in relation to the rest of the shareholders and
moreover, consequently complying with the provisions of art 6 1 ¢) of the Internal Code of Conduct in Securihes Markets,
which stipulates as prohibited conduct the recommendation to third parties of the acquisition, sale or assignment of company
secunties on the basis of pnvileged infermation

C 1 36 Indicate whether duning the year the Company has changed its external auditor If so, identify
the incoming and the outgoing auditor

Yes [ | No [X]

In the event of any disagreement with the outgoing auditor, explain

C 1 37 Indicate whether the auditing firm does any work other than auditing for the company and/or its
group, and, If this be the case, state the fees received for said work and the percentage this
entails of the fees invoiced to the company and/or s group

Yes [X] No [7]
Company Group Total
Amount of work other than auditing (thousands of euros) 4 220 224
Amount of work other than auditing / Total amount invoiced by the auditing 261% 11 38% 10 74%
firm (as a %)

C 1 38 indicate whether the audit report of the Annual Accounts for the preceding year shows any
reservation or qualfied opimon If so, iIndicate the reasons given by the Chairman of the Audit
Committee to explain the content and scope of said reservations or qualified opinions

Yes[ ] No [X]

C 1 39 Indicate the number of years that the current auditing firm has been auditing the annual
accounts of the company and/or its group without interruption Likewise, indicate what
percentage the number of years audited by the current auditing firm 1s with respect to the total
number of years in which the annual accounts have been audited

Company Group
iINumber of uninterrupted years 6 6

Number of years audited by the current auditor firm /no of years that the company has 37 50% 37 50%
been audited (as a %)}

C 1 40 Indicate whether there 1s any procedure allowing directors to have access to external
consulitancy, and If so, give details

Yes [X] No []
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L Detaill of Procedure ]

Under Article 5 1 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of Codere, SA, the Directors, in addition to access to all
services of the company and to seek information and advice they need {o perform their duties, shall be entitled to propose tc
the Board of Directors to hure external financial, legat, technical, commercial advisors or any other measures deemed
necessary in the interests of company External consultancy 1s to be sought when the majonty of independent Directors
caincide on the need thereof

Additionally, article 13 6 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors estabhishes that the Committees are
authonzed, 1n addition to the power to call for the attendance and collaboration of Company managers and employees, to
contract external advisors when required by the Chawman of the Board Managers, employees and outside consultanis
report directly to the Committee seeking their services

C 1 41 Indicate and If so, detall whether there 1s any procedure allowing directors to have access to

the nformation required to prepare the meetings of the organs of administration sufficiently in
advance

Yes [X] No []

Detail of Procedure I

Article 12 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors estblathes that the notification of ordinary meetings of the
Board shall be made by letter, fax, Telegram or e-mail and shall carmy the signature of the Chairman or that of the Secretary
or Deputy Secretary by order of the Chairman Notice will be sent in good time for the Directors to recewe 1t no later than
the fifth day before the date of the meeting The notice of meeting shall at all tmes include the agenda of the meeting
together with any wntten information deemed suitable as stipulated in said Rules Nevertheless, when the Charrman deems
that there are exceptional circumstances so requinng, the meeting of the Board may be called by telephone, fax or email,
without observing the term of advance notice menttoned above and without providing the aforesaid information, informing
the Directors of the possibilty of examiming said information at the registered office

Nevertheless, for those sessions of the Board that will debate the amendment of the regulation, Article 18 increases the
aforementioned panod, indicating that any proposal to amend the Regulation of the Board shall be included in the agenda of
the session in which it will be voted, to be convened with at least ten days advance notice to faciitate therr examnation and
analysis

C 142 Indicate, and If applicable, detall whether the company has established any rules requinng

directors to report to the company any cases which may harm the frustworthiness and
reputation of the company and, where appropriate, to resign

Yes [X] No []

Explain the Rules

Article 3 6 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors stipulates that Directors are required to resign in those
cases which may harm the trustworthiness and reputation of the Company, and likewise to report to the Board any cnminal
action brought against them, as well as the subseguent procedural outcome If a Director is prosecuted or 1s brought to
tnial for any of the cnmes indicated n article 213 of the Capital Companies Act, the Board shall review the case as soon as
possible and, in view of the specific circumstances, decide whether or not the director should continue in office The Board
will report on the matter in the Annual Corporate Governance Report

C 1 43 Indicate whether any member of the Board of Directors has informed the company that he or
she has been indicted or ordered to stand tnal for any of the crnmes indicated in article 213 of

the Capital Companies Act

Yes [ | No [X]

Indicate whether the Board of Directors has analyzed the case If so, give a reasoned
explanation of the decision taken as to whether or not it 1s advisable for the director to remain
in his or her position
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C 1 44 Detall the significant agreements entered into by the company and those, which will enter into

force, be amended or concluded in the case of a change In the control of the company as the
result of a takeover bid, and the effects thereof

1 - Senior Credit Line The Company has entered into a Senior Credit Agreement dated October 19, 2007, as amended and
novated on vanous dates (duning the year under review, on dates January 9, 2014, September 23, 2014 and October 13 of
2014 ), for a maximum available amount of €130 million in cash and €18 8 million in guarantees, and although 1it1s technically
in default, the holders have signed an agreement to not enforce said default while the conditions of the Lock-up Agreement
signed in September 2014 are met

Said Senior Credit Line provides an earty termtnation in the event of a change of control of the company Codere, S A and all
amounts due thereunder shall where applicable, be immediately paid within two business days

2 - Bond Issue for 760 milllon Euros The Codere, S A subsidiary, Codere Finance SA (Luxembourg), has 1ssued bonds
matunng in 2015 (different dates from June 2005) for an aggregate nomunal amount of 760 rullion euros Codere S A | and
several of its subsidianes guarantee the 1ssues In the case of a change i control of Codere S A, the bondholders would be
able to request the early repurchase of all or part of their certificates These bonds are in default for non-payment of coupons,
but the bondhelders have signed an agreement not to enforce the said default and the terms for refinancing, to not enforce
said default while the conditions of the Lock-up Agreement signed in September 2014 are met

3 0 Bond Issue for 300 million USD On February 1, 2012, the subsidiary of Codere, S A, Cedere Finance SA (Luxembourg)
i1ssued bonds matunng in 2019, for a nominal ameunt of USE 300 milton, which was fully subscnbed on the same date The
15sue, which was guaranteed by Codere S A and several of s subsidianes, 1s in addition to the bond 1ssues carned out by
Codere Finance (Luxembourg) S A mentioned in the preceding pont In the case of a change in control of Codere S A | the
bondholders would be able to request the early repurchase of all or part of their certificates These bonds are in default for
non-payment of coupons, but the bondholders have signed an agreement not to enforce the said default and the terms for
refinancing, to not enforce sard default while the condhions of the Lock-up Agreement signed 1n September 2014 are met

Additionally, there 1s another senes of contracts with service providers, which provide for early termination in the case of
a change n the control or ownership of Codere, S A (or of the supplier) without the need of the wntten consent of the
other party in advance, although we consider that these agreements are of relative importance

C 1 45Identify 1in aggregate and specify, in detall, the agreements between the company and iis

directors and executives or employees providing for compensation, indemnity or guarantees, If
they resign or are made redundant without valid reason or If the contractual relationship
comes to an end as a result of a public takeover tnd or other corporate operations

Number of beneficiaries: 4

Type of beneficiary Executives
Description of the agreement

In three of the contracts the guarantee 1s compensation for dismissal equivalent o one year of salary,
another case I1s for severance pay equal to 18 months

Indicate whether the existence of such contracts Is required to be reported and/or whether the
governance organs of the company or of its group must approve them

Board of Directors General Meeting of
Shareholders
Organ authonzing the contracts Yes No
26
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Yes | No —entittn
]
Was the General Meeting of Shareholders informed of the contracts? X -
g2
B ol
g
C 2 Committees of the board of directors .
R ]
E—
il
C 2 1 Detail all of the Commuttees of the Board of Directors as well as the independent and nominee ::j
 ——
members thereof -
~r e
i
RSN
AUDIT COMMITTEE ——
Name Position Type it
e ————
MR JUAN JOSE ZORNQZA PEREZ ICHAIRMAN ICther External — i
B ——
MR EUGENIO VELA SASTRE MEMBER Other External ___...:
MR JOSE RAMON ROMERO RCDRIGUEZ MEMBER Nominee s
MR JOSEPH ZAPPALA MEMBER (ndependent -
mesiiglin
% of executive directors 0 00% -
— —
% of nominee directors 25 00% B —
i
% of independent directors 25 00% i
% of other external directors 50 00% R
B
wr meialfN
]
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE Y
R —
m—— ]
D — . .
Name Position Type e
——
MR JOSE IGNACIO CASES MENDEZ ICHAIRMAN Nominee e
MR JOSE RAMON ROMERQO RODRIGUEZ MEMBER Nominee B
MR JUAN JUNQUERA TEMPRANO MEMBER Independent S
MASAMPE, S L MEMBER Nominee —
MR JOSEPH ZAPPALA MEMBER Independent -
gl o
it §
% of executive directors 0 00% =
—re——it
% of nominee directors 60 00% P
% of independent directors 40 00% "
]
% of other external directors 0 00% ettt
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE —
il
e
el
Name Position Type E—
MR JUAN JOSE ZORNOZA PEREZ MEMBER [Other External -
MR JOSE IGNAGIO CASES MENDEZ MEMBER Nominee -
by
MR EUGENIO VELA SASTRE MEMBER Other External
MR JUAN JUNQUERA TEMPRANO ICHAIRMAN Independent ————
MASAMPE, S L IMEMBER Nominee s
e —— ]
i
i
% of executive directors 000% et
% of nommee directors 40 00% _,...
% of Independent directors 20 00% -
% of other external directors 40 00% T——
——_4
iyl
e
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C 2 2 Complete the following table with information on the number of directors comprising the S
committees of the board dunng the last four years o
i
Number of directors e,
2014 2013 2012 2011 e
Number | % Number | % Number | % Number | % e
Audit ————
C“d 0 | 000% 0 | 000% 0| 000% 0 { 000% e
ommittee ot
Corporate ~——
[ ) 0, ) ———
Governance 0| 000% 01000% 0| 000% 0 { 000% E——"
——
ggmg}::sse J———
0] 9 09 0 0% 0 000% ) —
Committee 0 00% 0] 000% 000% ) -
C 2 3 Indicate whether the following functions correspond to the Audit Committee —
il
e
Yes | No -
x e
Supervise the process for the drafting and the completeness of the financial information regarding the N
company and, where appropriate, the group, reviewing compliance with the regulatory requirements, the -——ﬁ
proper delimitation of the consolidation perimeter and the correct application of accounting criteria o———
Periodically revise the Internal control and risk management systems, in order that the principle nsks X s
may be adequately identified, managed and disclosed, —
Monitor the independence and efficiency of the Internal audlt process, propose the selection, X -
appointment, re-election and dismissal of the person in charge of the internal audit system, propose e,
the budget for this service, receive pertodical infermation on its activities, and verify that senior —
management take into consideration the conclusions and recommendations of its reports I
Set up and supervise a mechanism allowing employees to confidentially report, and where T—
appropriate, anonymously, any irregularities which they observe in the company and that may X I
have repercussions, especially in regard to financial and accounting matters it
Submit to the Board proposals regarding the selection, appointment, re-election and replacement X
of the external auditor, as well as the auditor's contract conditions,
Receive on a regular basis from the external auditor information regarding the audit plan and the X
results of its imptementation, and verify that senior management take into consideration the
Ensure the independence of the external auditor X

C 2 4 Describe the rules of procedure regarding the organization and operation, as well as the

responsibilities, of each Board commitiee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Article 14 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors regulates all these i1ssues regarding the Audit Committee

Regarding organization and operation, the Audit Committee shall be compnsed of a mimimum of three and a maximum of six
members appointed by the Board of Directors All members of said committee must be external directors
The members thereof, especially the Chairman thereof, shall be designated taking into account their knowledge and

experience In accounting, auditing or nsk management The Chairman of the Audit Commuittee must be an Independent
Director, and must be replaced every four years, being eligible for re-election one year after his resignation

Tha Audit Committee shall meet at least once every quarter, and whenever it 1s deemed necessary, after a meeting 1s called
by its Chairman, either at his own decision or at the request of two committee members or the Board of Directors or its

Chairman

The Audit Committee shall have the pnmary function of supporting the Board of Directors inits financial supervision and also a
number of other functions such as the following Report to the General Meeting on matters ansmg within its junsdiction,

reelection, substitution and conditions of employment of the external auditor, monttorning the effectiveness of intemal centrol of
the company, monitoring in relation to information systems and intemnal contre!, information to the Board pnor to the adoption
by it of certain decisions, ceriain aspects of polical control and nsk management of the Company, ensure the ndependence
and effectiveness of internal audit and external audit and others

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
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Article 15 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors regulates all these Issues regarding the Compliance Committee

i

The Comrmuttee shall be made up of a mumimum of three and maximum of six membpers, a majonty of which shall be extemal
directors The Commutiee shall meet each time the Board of Directors requests a report or the approval of proposals that fall

e ]
within its areas of responsibility, if the Committee Charrman for fulfiling its objectives considers this advisable ——i
——
Its powers are those related to monitonng the confidential and anonhymous communication mechanism for irregulanties, —
especially potential financial and accounting irregulanties, monitering comphance with natienal or foreign legislation on ___.,|
gaming, and the evaluation systems for intemal control in relation to reporting obligaticns and transparency in gaming —
et
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE T—
Article 16 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors regulates all these 1ssues regarding the Corporate Governance JU—
Committee .
This Committee integrates the functions that are recommended by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, which """""I
will constst of a minimum of three and a maximum of six members, all of whom shall be external Directors J—
— el
The powers conferred to this Committee includes the venfication of compliance with the intemal Code of Conduct regarding i
the Secunties Markets, prepanng reports and recommendations to the Board on decisions to be taken in the conflicts of —
interest, submit the Annual Corporate Governance Report to the Board of Directors and the Report on the Remuneration ittt
Policy for Administrators, make proposals set out in the Regulations with respect to the remuneration of the members of the IR
Board of Directors, evaluate the competences, knowledge and expenence required on the Board, consequently defining the e
funchions ang aptitudes required of candidates who are 1o cover each vacancy, and evaluate the time and dedication required _
in arder to carry out thewr duties properly, "_"
R
]
C 2 5 Indicate the existence, If any, of rules of procedure for the Board committees, the place where N
they are avallable for consultation and any changes made in them during the year In turn, —
indicate whether any annual report in regard to the activities of each commitiee has been =
voluntanly drafted .
AUDIT COMMITTEE e
——g
The organization and operation of the Audit Committes 1s regulated in detail in article 14 of the Rules of Procedure of the Beard S
of Directors and under article 26 of the Corporate Bylaws Saud regulations, which have not been changed dunng the year, are e
avallable on the Codere website (www codere com) e
]
The Audit Commiitee has presented a report to the Board of Directors on the activities it has carried out during 2,014 —
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE "
ety
The organtzation and operation of the Compliance Committee 1s regulated in detail in article 16 of the Rules of Procedure of the J—
Board of Directors Said regulation, which has not been changed dunng the year, is available on the Codere website e
(www codera com} e
e ]
The Corporate Governance Committee has presented a report 1o the Board of Directors on the activities it has carned out dunng  _ :;:
2,014 I,
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE -
The organization and operation of the Compliance Committee 1s regulated in detail in articte 15 of the Rules of Procedure of the —
Board of Directors Said regulaticn, which has not been changed dunng the year, 1s availlable on the Codere website oy
(www codere com) n—
—————
 —
The Compliance Commuttee has presented a repoert to the Board of Directors on the activities it has carned out duning 2014 e
B
e
e
C 2 6 Indicate whether the composiion of the management or executive committee reflects the S
participation in the Board of the vanous directors in terms of their type of directorship p—
i
il
by
Yes [ | No [X]
el
gl
If "NG™, explain the composition of your Executive Committee B

The Board of Directors of Codere S A does not have an Executive committee m—
S
S
———
=il
i
B ——
e
—reearmin
B .|
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e
- r———
- ————
[ D | RELATED-PARTY AND INTRA-GROUP TRANSACTIONS -
D 1 Identify and explain, If appropriate, the competent body and the procedure for approval of related-party S
and intragroup transactions i
srliing. ¥
teemliinkp
el
[ Body responsible for approving related-party transactions T
The Board of Directors —‘—:
[ Procedure for the approval of related-party transactions ____.:1
Article 7 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of directors of Codere, $ A states that related-party transactions must be approved by R
the Board of Directors following a favourable report of the Audit Commuttee The Directors affected by these transactions ¢can neither T
exercise nor delegate their votes, should be absent from the meeting while the Board deliberates and votes B
o d
However, authonzation of the Board 1s not required for related-party transactions that simultaneously meet the following three """"":
conditions RN
i
(1) They are conducted under contracts whose terms are standardized and apply en masse to many customers, ]
 —
(1) That they be camed out at prices or rates generally established by the supplier of the good or service tn question ___-.-"
R —— .
(m) The amount does not exceed 1% of the annual revenue of the Company ——r———
e
R ——
———
Explain whether the approval of transactions with related parties has been delegated, indicating, where "
appropnate, the body or persons to which it has been delegated =
The Board has reserved that power and it has not been delegated to any other body or person .
4—-.—1
]
D 2 Detail the transactions that are significant due to the amount or subject matter between the company  ——
or entities of its group, and the significant shareholders of the company p—
S
D 3 Detall the transactions which are significant due to the amount or subject matter between the company )
e
or entities of its group, and the directors or management of the company J—
by
e
Namer:::;ree(:’tor or Related party Relationship Nature of the operation Amount ____'-'
g name or corporate {thousan U
name ds of ——s
euros) r——
MS ENCARNACION CODERE, S A DIRECTOR Financing agreements loans 512 rmia
MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO J—
B —— e
MR JOSE RAMON CODERE, $ A DIRECTOR Provision of services 500
ROMERQ RODRIGUEZ ——
 ——
MR LUIS JAVIER CODERE, S A DIRECTOR Financing agreements loans 1,026 _—_-'-'
MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO —
MR ADOLFO CARPENA| coDERE, § A EXECUTIVE Financing agreements  oans 103 -
MANSO :..
MR FERNANDO ORS CODERE, S A EXECUTIVE Agreements for financing 154 —_—
VILLAREJO loans R ——
MR LUIS JAVIER CODERE S A DIRECTOR Purchases of fimshed goods 3 et
MARTINEZ SAMPEDRO and others

D 4 Detail the significant transactions carned out by the company with other companies belonging to the
same group, provided that these are not eliminated in the process of drafting the consoltdated financial
accounts and do not form part of the normal business activity of the company n regard to their object
and conditions

In any case, report any intra-group transaction carried out with entities established in countries or

territories considered as a tax haven
0
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D 5 Indicate the amount of transactions with other related parties 579 (In —
i

thousands of Euro) S ———
N

e

el

D 6 Detall the mechanisms established in order to detect, determine and resolve any possible conflict of B—
interest between the company and/or its group, and its directors, management or significant ot
shareholders -
Among the duties of Directors stipulated in Article 4 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of Codere, S A 1s the duty of ————
loyalty to company interests and, in saxd regard, paragraph 4 d thereof states that The Directors are required to communicate to the —
Board of Directors any situabion of direct or indirect conflict which they may enter into with respect to Company interests In the case of .
confiict, the affected Director shall refrain from taking part in the transactton which 1s the object of confict Situations of conflict of interests et
shall be reported in the annual report ——
———a

Article 16 of the said Rules, when regutating the composttion, functiorning and competences of the Corporate Governance Committee, .
determines that said Committee shall draft reports and proposals to the Board regarding the decisions to be adopted in cases of conflict of J—
Interests e
In addition, in accordance with article 5 of the Codere Internal Code of Conduct in Secunties Markets, the affected persons (that 1s, "
directors, semor management, and employeses which may have access to pnvileged information) are required to adapt their actions in JRU—
relation to the conflict of interest not only to the provisions of said Code but also to the prowistons of the Rules of Procedure of the Board R —
of Directors, Insofar as these are applicable to them ———
e |

|

When a situation takes place that entails, or may petentially entail, a conflict of interest, the person subject to the Code must immediately JEE—
inform the General Secretanat of said situation, and furnish said Secretarnat with all nformation requested of said indwidual for an et
evaluation of the circumstances of the case, f required e
]

The General Secretanat shall pass this on to the Board Committee for the adoption of the pertinent decisions The Board Committee is to J—
be consulted about any doubt as to the possible existence of a conflict of interest before any dectsion that could be affected by said conflict e |
of interest 1s adopted ——
e

The General Secretanat shall communicate the existence of the conflict of nterest to the person or person involved in the management __.-'.'
of the situation or in the adoption of the decisions affected by said conflict [

R e ]

The person subject to the Code who is affected by a situation of conflict of interest shall refrain from taking part in or directly or indirectly -
influencing the transaction, decision or situation affected by said conflict -
In the case of a conflict of interest, as a general rule resulting from the obligation of loyalty to the Company, the interast of the Codere s
Group 1s to prevail over that of the affected person subject to the Code —
e

D 7 Does the Group have more than one listed company in Spain? —
st

e

e

Yes [ | No I_)T]

Identify the listed subsidianes

Listed subsidiaries

Have the respective areas of activity and eventual business relations between the two, as well
as those of the listed subsidiary with the other companies in the group been expressly publicly
announced

Define any business dealings between the parent company and the
listed subsidiary, and between it and the other group companies

WG

i

Identify the mechanisms In place to resolve possible conflicts of interest hetween the listed
subsidiary and other group companies

| Mechanisms to resolve potential conflicts of interest l

@ RISK CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
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E 1 Explain the scope of the Risk Management System of the company

The Risk Management System exists at the business area level of for specific projects but does not consolidate information at the
corporate or group level

Dunng 2012, the Board of Directors approved the Risk Control and Management General Pelicy as well as the Risk Tolerance Document

The Codere Group Risk Contrel and Management General Policy aims to establish the basic pnnciples and general action framework for
the contrel and management of every type of nsk faced by the Group

All actions aimed at controiling and mitigating nsk at all tmes follow certamn basic pninciples, such as the integration of nsk-opportunity
vision, operating level segregation of nsk-taking areas, and areas responsible for nsk analysis, control and supenvision, guarantee of the
corract use of hedge instruments and assurance regarding adequate comphance with corporate govemance rules and the values set out
by the company in its Code of Ethics

The Risk Control and Management Genera! Policy and its basic principles are matenalized through a system of nsk control and
management, based on a defintion and assignment of functions and responsibiliies at the operating leve! and on a senes of procedures
and methodologtas in line with the vanous stages and activities of the system The principal stages and activities include, but are not
limited to, the following

a Rusk tolerance definition by the Board of Directors

b Annual identification and analysis of the significant rnisks conducted by each Business Unit and/or department

¢ Reporting of the principal nsks, especially those exceeding the hmits established by the Board of Directors

d Introduction and control of compliance with palicies, guidelnes and imits, through adequate procedures and systems required to
mitigate the mpact of nsk matenalization

¢ Penodicat evaluation and commurucation, at least yearly, of the results of the control and management monitoring

f Auditing of the system by the Intemal Audit Department

E 2 identify the organs of the company responsible for the development and implementation of the Risk

Management System

Article 26 of the Company Bylaws stipulates that the Audit Commitiee shall at least carry out the functions of supervising the efficacy of
company nternal control, internal auditing, if applicable, and the nsk management systems Likewise, article 15 3 of the Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Dhrectors establishes that the Audit Committee in particular 1s in charge of penodically revising the internal
control and nsk management systems for the proper identification, management and dissemination of the principal nsks Lastly, the
Beard of Directors has conferred upon the Audit Committee (which in turn has delegated to the Internal Audit Department) the
responstbility of penodically revising the nsk control and internal control systems, for the proper identfication, management and
dissemination of the principal nsks Likewise, at least once a year the Audit Committee 1s required to report to the Board of Directors n
regard to nsk control and any malfunctions detected in the internal audit reports or in the exercise of its functions

E 3 Describe the main nsks that may affect the achievement of business objectives

The Risk Control and Management General Policy includes the identification and definition of the typology of nsks which are significant for
the Group, and which, in general terms, are listed below

- Corporate Governance Risks The Company employs the strategy of sustained maximization of the economic value of the Company
and its successful cutcome in the long term taking into account the legitimate public or pnvate interests of the vanous stakeholders,
communities and temtones in which the Group acts, and those of its workers tn said regard, compliance with Group corporate
governance systems inspired by the goed governance recommendations generally recognized in the financial markets becomes
fundamental

- Operational and Loss of Incormne Risks established as the uncertainty in regard to the performance of key vanables intnnsic to the
business, as well as those related to direct or indirect economic Joss resulting from inadequate internal processes, technological
breakdown, and human error or as the result of autside events, including economig, social and reputational impact

- Regulatory and Institutional Relation Risks these come from changes in regulations established by the vanous regulators where the

Group has a presence, prncipally in regard to the conditions related to the exploitation of the licenses granted, and which may adversely
affect foreseen income Likewise included are nsks from delays, complications,
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and even the iImpassibility of carmying out projects, improvements, offers of new products, etc , owing to difficult relations with the regulatory
nsttutions

- Fiscal Risks resulting from the vanous interpretations that, in the case of audit, regulators may give to the fiscal cntena followed by
the Group

- Indebtedness Risk As a consequence of the indebtedness level and charactenstics, the debt service obligations may hinder the
growth of Group operations and limit their performance As a result of the obligations assumed n borrowing operations, there are hmits
on additional indebtedness, the possibility of granting new guarantees, investing in certain assets or disposing of them, and the
obligation of compliance with certain ratios and covenants

- Country Risk Rusk resulting from the sociopelitical situatien of the countries in which the Group has a presence, especially im Latin
America This category also includes the nsks resulting pnncipally from the local currency exchange rate fluctuations against the euro
In those countries where the Group has a presence

- Technological Risk refer to the negative impacts that may occur in the Group as a result of losses caused by interruption,
fallure or damage ansing from the informatien systems and technology platforms game

- Reputational Risk Potentizl negative impact on Group value as the result of conduct by the company that does not meet the
expectations created in the vanous stakeholders

£ 4 Identify whether the company has a level of nsk tolerance

The general nsk management and control policy of the Codere Group provides that the Beard of Directors of Codere, 5 A I1s responstble
for defining the Group's nsk tolerance

The defimiions of tolerance and nsk levels are regularly updated and communicated to the rest of the organization by establishung a
framework of policies, guidelines and imits, as well as the corresponding mechanisms for the approval, which will contnbute effectively to
ensunng that Risk management 1s conducted in accordance wath the nsk tolerance of the Company

To this end, the Company has established a scale with five levels of nsk tolerance For each of the types of nsks to which the Group 1s
subject a value of this scale 1s assigned, thereby establishing the nsk tolerance by type of nsk

The nsk analysis 1s decentralized to the heads of each business unit and/or department, who are responsible for understanding and
managing each of the nsks that affect um or her Annually, in accordance with said analysis, the pnncipal nsks, especially those exceeding
the imits established by the Board of Directors must be reported

E 5 Indicate which nsks have matenalized dunng the year

Qperational nsks

Circumstances giving nse to the nsk These nsks are intnnsic to the business medel, to Group activity and to the markets in which it
operates, and therefore exist and are matenalized throughout each business year

How the control systems functioned The internal control systems established by the Group have been functiening correctly throughout the
year, consequently, they have had no significant effect on the Group financial statements

Regulatory nsk

Circumnstances giving nse o the nsk Dunng the year there were some exceptional factors dnven by regulatory changes made by
different regulators or by different actions by the government of the countnies where the Group operates that have generated significant
Iiquidity problems in the group Of these factors, we would highlight the closure of eight arcades in Mexico In 2013, of which seven are
still closed in 2014 and the company's decision to terminate the process Corte del Conhi by paying a percentage of the sanction imposed
at first instance

How the control systems functioned As soon as these threats are identified and the nsks are dentified, we apply suitable rmitgation plans
through both the Group's Interest in the relevant industry associations, and through the activity of mstitutional relationshup and by
establishing process optimization plans and improving the efficiency of operations sufficient to recover the levels of margins intially
planned

Fiscal Risks

Circumstances giving nise to the nsk Codere Mexico and its subsidianes are currently in process of tax mspection for the years 2008
and 2009 by the Mexican Tax Administration Service that we believe will end n the year 2015 Additionally, in December 2014 we were
notified of the negative decision of the Appeal of Revocation presented by Codere Mexico in relation to the Inspection Report 1ssued in
2012 resulting in the demal of the deduction In 2008 of certain amounts of foreign exchange losses The filing of a Judgment of Nullity of
the emitted Act require the need to ensure the amount denved from the Act to the Mexican Tax Admimistration Service

How the control systems functioned Established control mechanisms had identified potential nsks and contingencies, allowing the
correction mechamsms in the extent to which they were provided
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Indebtedness Risk

Circumstances giving rise o the nsk Due to hquidity problems suffered by the Group during the year, and motivated by different factors, the
Group has been in a deficit cash situation and could not meet the payment of coupons on bends issued by the company nor the matunty of
the senior SFA credit

T

How the control systems functioned On 23 September 2014, Codere, S A, Codere Luxembourg Finance, S A and certatn companies of

Codere Group signed a Lock-up agreement with the holders of approximately 80 2% of the Bonds in Euros and 88 9% of the Bonds in B
dollars The implementation of the terms and conditions of the Lock-up guarantee the long-term wviability of our business -
Moreover, the senior credit agreement is under a standstill agreement knked to the Lock-up Agreement Country nsk _
Circumstances giving nse to the nsk Sociopolitical instability in Argentina has resulted in difficulties and restnchions in repatnating funds to —
Spain as well as the impact of the devaluation of the Argentine currency against the euro .
How the control systems functioned Once the restnctions were identified, the nsk was managed through the tnstitutional relation and the B ———
seeking of alternative financing sources —e———
R
——mlih
E 6 Explain the response plans and supervision for all major risks of the company —
b
gl
Specific control of Regulatory, Operational and Reputational Risks under the Code of Ethics and Conduct JE—
el
The General Risks Map of the Codere Group highlights the potental impact of specific nsks emanating from Regulatory Frameworks T—
affecting the gaming sector in all gecgraphic areas, especially on the Prevention of Money Laundening and proper compliance with the S
many regulations affecting the opening and operation of the gaming halls of vanous types and the game elements and systems included JU———
In parallel, the protection from Reputational and Operational Risks that may affect the Codere Group 1s appreached from different Tr—
perspectives designed to ensure the adequacy of third parties, customers, suppliers and our own staff so that the standards of Ethical _--u-l
Conduct and prior knowledge of possible causes of appropnateness, are achieved by vanous processes ensuring adequate Due e
Diigence and compliance with KYC rules At the same time, the above 1s enhanced with a tool for effective channeling of complatnt i
through a Whistieblower Channel, confidentially, for employees, third parties and customers in all matters affecting the protection of ——
therr professional and personal interests derived from their work as well as the economic interests of the Codere Group in any "-'II
geographic area in which it operates ety
B
All this 1s included in the Comphance Policy adopted by the CODERE Group as part of its ongoing efforts to maximize compliance efforts r——
with the vanous regulations and improve scund business practices And to that end, CODERE, S A has established its General "'_:'
Compliance Plan approved by the Board of Directors on September 22, 2005 -
To effeclively address thus Compltance Plan, Article 15 of the Rule of Procadure of the Board of Directors of CODERE, S A established —
the creation of the Comphance Committee, which, among other related tasks, performs the ongoing momtonng of compliance and —""'.
control systems by the Company and the Group of the rules on the prevention of money laundenng and the proposed implemeantation ——
and improvement as it deems necessary or desirable The Comphance Committee also monitors implementation throughout the Codere ——
Group of the Code of Ethics and Conduct approved by the Board of Directors on January 27, 2011 and the various Complaints channels e
in all geographic areas to allow employeeas, customers, suppliers, and other third parties with whom the company has contractual —
relationships, to confidentially and, If necessary, anonymously, communicate any irregulanties of potential importance, especially N
financial and accounting wrreguianties within the company e

|

For the actual efficiency of the Committee's work, CODERE SA created the Corporata Compliance Department, which directs and
coordinates comphance officers expressly instituted in all geographic areas in which the Company operates, with the exctusive and
permanent mission to accomplish, mternally and externally, in all business units of any geographic area, full comphance with the letier
and spint of the law and the use of best practices and codes of conduct

For details of the activittes undertaken dunng 2014, see section H

INTERNAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL SYSTEMS REGARDING THE FINANCIAL
REPORTING PROCESS (FRICS)

Describe the mechanisms that compnse the nsk management and control systems in relation to the
financial reporting process (FRICS) in your company

i

I

.

Company control environment

Report, noting the main features, on at least
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F 11 What organs and/or functions are responstble for {1} the existence and mamntenance of an —
adequate and effective Financial Reporting Internal Control System (FRICS), (1} its N

introduction, and () its supervision? ]

——————

rre——————

(1} The Board of Directors 1s responsible for approving the Risk Control and Management Pclicy, as well as the R

penodical monitonng of the internal information and control system, as stated in article 7 of the Rules of Procedure of —

the Board of Directors S———

 ——]

(1) The implementation and maintenance of the Finanaial Reporting Internal Control System is the responsibility of the A

Economic Financial Corporate Department, as well as of the Econormic Financial Corporate Managements of the vanous -

Business Units Likewise, the vanous General Managements are responsible for effective introduction in their area of actmvity o

{m) The Audit Committee 1s responsible for supervising the Internal Control System Among its functions, as Delegated S——

Committee of the Board of Directors, are the following R

e

a Supervise the process of drafting the Company and if applicable, Group, financial reperting and the complstenass —

thereof reviewing comphance with the regulatory requirements, proper delimitation of the consolidation penmeter and the ':'

correct application of accounting cntena +memmtitel

b Penodically revise the internal control and risk management systems, in order that the principle nsks may be e—

adequately identified, managed and disclosed, ——

E—

¢ Report, at least once a year, to the Board of Directors in regard to matters of nisk control and any malfunctions detected, E—

if applicable, in the internal audit reports or in the exercise of the above listed functions ity

]

--—-—-l

F 1 2 Indicate whether the following exist, especially in regard to financial reporting B

- Departments andfor mechanisms in charge of (1) the design and review of organizational structure, (i) clearly N

defining hnes of responsibility and authonty, with an adequate distnbution of tasks and functions, and (i) seeing R —

to it that sufficient procedures exist for their proper dissemination in the company —

B |

B — |

The Company has an crgamnizational structure that has developed the major ines of respansibility and authonty in the —

vanous processes, for each business unit and for each significant geographical area of the Group The Human Resource I

Departments and Operational departments participate in its design and revision e

These lines of responsibility and authonty are communicated at the required levels by means of different levels of -

formalzation Likewise, the Company has a clear and up-to-date policy of powers resulting In the maxtmum exponent of lines i

of authonity RSO

e

The Board of Directors, at the proposal of the Company President, reserves for itself the power to appoint and eventually ———

dismiss Senior Management, whereas the Corporate Governance Commitiee sets the guidelines and supervises actions ———

related to the appointment, selection, career development, prometion and dismissal of managers, in order for the company to E—

have the highly qualfied personnel its requires for its management [

———

o e————

+ Code of Conduct, organ of approval, degree of dissemination, principles and values included (Indicating whether =~ ——=estta

specific mention 1s made of the recording of transactions and financial reporting) organ in charge of analyzing """.

breaches and proposing corrective action and sanctions JE—

e

e

i

The Company has ~———

e

- A Code of Ethics and Business Conduct which contains the pnnciples of business ethics and transparency n all "
areas of action (approved by the Board of Directors of Codere, S A at its meeting held on 27 January 2011} -

- Internal Rules of Conduct in the secunties market which determines the behawvior criterta to be followed In secunties T

market transactions, in order to contribute to their transparency and to the protection of investors {approved by the Board

of Directors of Codere, S A at its meeting held on 25 February 2010) U

ik

The Board of Directors s the organ in charge of approving and disseminating the Code of Ethics and the Securty and T——

Compliance Corporate Depariment 1s the area in charge of overseetng its compliance and of propesing corrective action ——"

and sanchions I

The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct has been disseminated and commumicated throughout the Group
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Among the values contaned tn the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct can be found, among the values related to the
Codere Group Environment (Section V of "The Codere Group Environment®), article 5 2 "Truthful, adequate and useful
infarmation”, which describes how the Codere Group 1s to report on its policies and actions 1n a truthful, adequate, useful
and congruent manner Specifically, in relation to economic-financial information, said information, especially the Annual
Accaounts 1s to faithfully reflect the reality of the economic and financtal situation as well as the net worth of the company in
accordance with generally accepted accounting pninciples and the applicable international financial reporting standards In
this regard, no professional shall conceal or distort the information of the Codere Group accounting records and reports

A lack of honesty in financial reporting 1s in viclation of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, also considering the
dehvery of incorrect information, the incorrect erganization of infarmation or the intent to mislead those receving t to be a
lack of honesty

» Whistleblower Channel, making it possible to communicate to the Audit Committee any financial and accounting

irregulanties, in addition to eventual breaches of the code of conduct and irregular activihies in the organization,
and informing whether said information 1s confidential

Article 15 2 d} of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors attnbutes junsdiction to the Compliance Committee for
estabhghing and supervising a mechamsm which allows employees, customers, suppliers and other third parties with which
contractual relations exst, to communicate confidentially and if it deems i1t appropnate, anonymously, any potentially
significant rregularities, especially financial and accounting Iregulanties, which they may note within the company

in application of the foregoing, the Company has a confidential whistleblower channel through an emall address, ordinary
mail and a toll-free telephone number Said Whistieblower Channel has been disseminated to employees together with the
Group Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

The Whistleblower Channels were introduced in all of Codere's geographical areas under the common name of "Ethics
Channels" using the same standards and manner of operaton as that employed in the global corporate whistleblower
channel Said Channels which are open to and confidential for Group own personnel as well as customers and suppliers
or other third parties with which a commercial or business relation s maintained, are operated exclusively by local
Compliance officials, permanently supervised by Carporate Comphance General Department

The organ in charge of its management 1s the Security and Compliance Corporate Department, the Department in charge of
analyzing confidentially all reports received, proposing corrective action and, if apphicable, the pertinent sanctions and at all
times informing the Compliance Committee for the performance of its oversight functions

* Programs for penodical traning and updating of personnel involved In preparng and revising financial

information, and in the FRICS evaluation, which are to cover at least accounting standards, auditing, internal
control and nsk management

Personnel involved in the preparation and review of financial information, as well as in the evaluation of ICFR, recewve,
according to ther different responsibilities, regular traning on accounting standards, auditing, and internal control

According to the organizational structure of the Group, the departments directly related {o these functions are Internal
Audit and Finance

L

!

F 2 Risk Assessment of the financial information

Report, at least

F 21 What are the prnncipal characteristics of the nisk identification process, including those related
to error or fraud, in regard to the following

« whether the process exists and 1s documented

bill

The Codere Group has an identification process for the principal nisks that may affect the Group, including among all the
identified typologies, specific financial reporting nsks The result of this process 1s a Risks Map containing the restdual nsks
hawving the greatest impact and the greatest probability In the Codere Group This map 1s updated annually, reviewed by the
Audit Commuittes, and on proposal of the said Committee, approved by the Board of Directors

For cntical processes and significant companies, considenng in addition that the processes in the different units or locations
should be evaluated individually, there are nsk and control matnxes where the cntical processes are documented, with
identification being made of the principal nsks affecting said processes, as well as the key contrals existing in order to
mitigate the matenal nsks having an impact on financtal reporting
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+ if the process covers all of the financial reporting objectives, {existence and occurrence, completeness, valuation, s
presentation, disclosure and comparabllity, and rights and obligations}), if it 1s updated, and how often -
—— il

reengiibi

In the Financial Reporting Risk identification process, with an aim to guarantee the rebability and accuracy of the financial N
information, evaluation 1s made of the possible impact in the following categories .
R

- Existence and occurrence Transactions, facts and all other events exist and have been recorded at the proper —
time P
- Integnty The repcrting reflects all transachions, facts and all other events wath respect 1o which the company i1s an s
affected party E——
R —— i

e 4

- Valuation Recording and valuation are made of ail transactions, facts and other events in accordance with the ——

applicable regulations e

iy

- Transaction Cut-of Transactions are recorded in the proper penod on an accrual basis ____.""

e

- Presentation, disclosure and comparabilty The transactions, facts and all other events are classified, presented and e
disclosed in the financial reporting n accordance with the applicable regulations —

- Rights and obligations The financial reporting reflects the nghts and obligations at the corresponding date in ._:4

accordance with the applicable regulations D ——

i

The objective 1s to determine the possibility that a given nsk will occur and in such a case, its iImpact on the financal -

statements, 1n order that it will be possible to pnontize this and draw up a mitigation plan e

— i

This is a process that makes 1t possible to improve the design and efficacy of the controls and to minimize the nsks related ————

to financial reporting The process of identifying financial reporting nisks is a process of penodic review and updating —

* The existence of a process for identifying the consclidation penmeter, taking into account, among other aspects, i

the possible existence of complex corporate structures, instrumental or special-purpose entities

]

=l

el

The Company consolidation perimeter Is clearly identified and 1s updated monthly, making it pessible to know of all Codere —

Group subsidianies, the effective ownership percentage, and the degree of Influence in said subsidianes —

———

Any changes in the Group structure are communicated monthly 1o all those taking part in the financial reporting process and J———

who need to know of such changes e

R —— 1]

r——

]

- 4) If the process takes Iinto account the effects of other nsk typologies (operational, technological, financial, legal, ==

reputational, environmental, etc ) insofar as they affect the financial statements e

e

B

R

The Codere Group Risk Contrel and Management General Policy mcludes the identification and definifion of all of the e
types of nsk faced by the Group and which have been deemed as impartant, compnsed as follows -
- Corporate Govemance Risks —

- Operaticnal and Loss of Income Risks R,

- Regulatory and Institutional Relation Risks —re——

- Fiscal Risks m—

- Indebtedness Risk e

- Country Risk e

- Fechnological Risk —_

e ]

e

|

« What governance organ of the company supervises the process?

—

H

In the final instance, the Board of Directors, through the Audit Commuttee, in accordance with article 14 of the Rules of
Procedure of the Board, I1s in charge of "Penodically revising the intemal control and nsk management systems, in order for
the principal nsks to be adequately identfied, rmanaged and disclosed
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The Audit Committee 1s in charge of managing the Control and Risk Management Policy in which at least the following will
be identified the various types of nsks, measures foreseen to mitigate the impact of the identified nsks, should they
matertalize, and the reporting and internal control systems which will be used to control and manage the foregoing,
including contingent habilies and off-balance sheet nsks

F 3 Control Activities

Report, noting the main features, If your company at least has

F 3 1 Procedures for the review and authorization of financial reporting, and the description of the

FRICS, to be published n the secunities markets, indicating those in charge, as well as
documentation describing cash flows from activiftes and controls (including these related to
fraud nisk) for the different types of transactions which may materially affect the financial
statements, including the year-end closing procedure and the specific review of relevant
opintons, estimations, valuations and projections

The Company has procedures for the review and authornization of financial reporting to be published in the secunties markets
Said procedures are in regard to

- Procedures for review and authonzation of the indmdual financial statements for each subsidiary of the Group
- Procedures for review and authonzation of the consoldated financial statements
- Procedures for review and authornzation of the informaticn sent to the securties markets

- For each significant process, there 1s descnptive documentation regarding the cash flows from actwvities carried cut
by the Economic Financial Department as well as by the rest of the areas participating in the financial reporting

Said procedures for financial reporting review and authonzation contain procedures regarding reviews of relevant opinions
estimations, valuations and projections forming part of the monthly closing procedure applied by the Codere Group

F 3 2 Financial reporting internal control pelicies and procedures {among these, access security,

control of changes, operation of changes, operational continuity, and segregation of functions)
undergone by relevant processes of the entity in relation to the drafting and publication of the
financial reporting

The Company has guidelines and rules of action far managing information secunty Said guidelines apply to the systems taking
part in the generation of the financial reporting, and are in regard to the use of computer resources, access to user systems and
management the protection of networks, systems, databases and applications and the management of backup copies

The Information Systems Department 1s in charge of defining and propasing security policies, except for the physical
safety of the Data Processing Center that i1s the responsibility of the Secunty and Compliance Department

F 33 Financial reporting internal control pohcies and procedures amed at supervising the

management of activites sub-contracted to third parties, as well as those aspects of
evaluation, calculation or valuation entrusted to independent experts, which may matenally
affect the financial statements

There are no relevant areas of activity subcontracted to third parties, which may affect the financial reparting, consequently, it
has not been deemed necessary to draft a procedure for the selection of the activities carned out by them

Nevertheless, in the case of outsourcing of some services related to financial reporting, the contract with the suppher
establishes the levels of service supervised by the Information Systemns Department

F 4 Information and Communication

Report, noting the matn features, If your company at least has
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F41 A specfic function for defining and keeping accounting policies (area or department of
accounting policies) up to date, and resolving any doubts or conflicts resuliing from the
interpretation thereof, maintaining fluent communication with those i charge of the
transactions n the organization, as well as an accounting policy manual updated and
communicated to the units through which the entity operates

Within the Economic Financial Department there 1s a specific function responsible for resolving any doubts in regard to the
interpretations of the regulation There is an Accounting Policy Manual at the Group level apphcable to all of the Business
Urits This manual s penodically reviewed and updated

F 4 2 Mechanisms for gatherning and preparing the financial information using homogenous formats
applied and used by all units of the entity or of the group, which form the basis for the principal
financial statements and the notes, as well as the information detailed in regard to the FRICS

The Company has homogeneous financial reperting mformatien for all of the Group units that allows the Company to make
complete monthly closings Said reporting contains all the information required for drafing the principal financial statements
and therr corresponding notes In addition, it should be pointed out that a large percentage of the financial information of the
Group 1s integrated in the Corporate Information Systems

F 5 Supervision of system operation

Report, noting the main features, on at least

F 51 ICFR monitoning activites conducted by the audit committee and whether the entity has an
internal audit function whose competencies support the committee 1n its oversight of the
internal control system, including ICFR Also, report the scope of the assessment of ICFR In
the year and the process by which the party responsible for implementing the evaluation
reports its results, whether the entity has an action plan detaiing any corrective measures,
and whether 1t has considered its impact on financial reporting

As provided tn article 14 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee has among its functions
the following

- Supervise the internal audit services and monitor the independence and efficacy of the intemal audit function, propose the
selection, appointment, re-election and dismussal of the head of the internal audit service, propose the budget for said service,
receive perodical information regarding its activities, and venfy that senior management takes into account the conglusions and
recommendations of its reports

- Penodically revise the intemal control and nsk management systems, in order that the principle nsks may be adequately
identified, managed and disclosed,

- Supervise the process for the drafting, presentaticn and completeness of the financial reporting related to the Company and,
applicable, to the group, reviewing compliance with the regulatory requirements, the proper delimitation of the consolidation
pernmeter and the correct apphcation of the accounbng cntena

- Report, at least once a year, to the Board of Directors in regard to matters of nsk control and any malfunctions detected, if
applicable, in the internal audit reports or In the exercise of the above listed functions

- Once a year draft an annual report containing the actvities carned out by the Committee
A Internal Audit Function

The Codere Group has an Internal Audit Departmant that is directly under the Board of Directors through the Audit Committee,
which supervises the intemal audit services
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Among the Internal Audit Department functions 1s that of supervising the compliance, efficacy, and efficiency of the internal
control systems, as well as the reliability and quality of the financial and aperational information

This Department 1s corporate and is present in all countrnies where the Group has a significant presence Its entire personnel
devote full ime to this function, and do not engage in any functions other than those related to internal auditing

The Audit Committee annually approves the audit plans presented by the Audit Department and, at least once a year, 15
informed of the result of the work camed out In the exercise of its functions, the Audit Committee 1s perniodically nformed of
the internal audit activities and venfies that Senior Management take into account the recommendations and conclusions of its
reports

B Scope of evaluation of the Internal Contrel System with regard to Financeal Reporting

The Internal Audit Department, in executing its Annual Plan approved by the Audit Commitiee, carries out continual
supervision of the internal control system of the Codere Group, i order to ensure the control of the reliability of the financial
reporting and the operational procedures

The Audit Department has a plun-annual supervision plan approved by the Audit Committee This Plan calls for the review of
all criical business processes in all of the Group compamies and gecgraphical locations (including information systems) over a
three-year penod, with the exception of specific areas and processes, which, given therr special relevance, are reviewed
annually

Likewise, a work plan has been designed to evaluate the operation and efficacy of the identified controls, which will allow it to
serve as supervision of the entire Financial Reporting Internal Contral System

C Communication of results and corrective measure action plans
The Audit Committee is informed quarterly of the principal conclusions and recommendations manifested by the

Internal Audit Committee In Its reports, as well as of the action plans taken on with regard to corrective measures 1t
1s lkewise informed of compliance with these action plans

F 52 If the entity has a procedure for discussion by means of which the auditor (in conformity with
that established in the NTA), the internal audit function and other experis are able to
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communicate to senior management and to the Audit Committee or entity directors the
significant weaknesses of the internal control system identfied during the annual account
review processes or any other review processes entrusted to them Likewise the entity will

report whether it has an action plan which seeks to correct or mitigate the weaknesses noted

The Audit Committee meets at least once every three months (pnor to the publication of regulated information) in order to
obtain and analyze the information necessary to discharge the duties entrusted to it At said meetings the Group Annual
and Half-yearly Accounts and the intermediate quarterly declarations are reviewed, as (5 all other information disclosed to
the market

These meetings are also attended by the Economic Financial Department (in charge of prepanng the financial reporting) and
the Internal Audit Department (with the pericdical infformation on activities), as well as by the external auditor when said
auditor 1s called upon to communicate the results of its work, in an aim to monitor the correct application of the accounting
regulations in effect and the reliability of the financial reporting

In any event, and at all tmes prior to year-end, the external auditor has a meeting with the Audit Commitiee at which the
principal identified matters of interest and the aspects detected by the auditor at year-end are deliberated on

On s part, the Group auditor has direct access to Group Senior Management, holding penodical meetings in order to
obtain the information required to carry out its work as well as to communicate any control weaknesses detectec during the
course of s work With respect to this latter aspect, on an annual basis the external auditor presents a report to the Audit
Commuttee, which details the internal control weaknesses detected 1n its work This report incorporates the comments of
the Group Management and, If applicable, any action plans which have been put into practice in order to remedy the
corresponding internal control weaknesses

F 6 Other relevant information

The relevant information was provided in the preceding paragraphs

F 7 Auditor's report
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F 7 1 If the FRICS sent to the markets has been subject to review by the external auditor, in which
case the entity should include the corresponding report as an Annex Otherwise, you should
explain the reasons for this

The Codere Group has not requested a specific report from extemal auditors on ICFR information sent to markets, in
consideration of the fact that said auditors have already conducted a review of intemal control, developed according to the
technical audiing standards in the audit review process

@ DEGREE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS

Indicate the degree of compliance by the company of the Recommendations of the Unified Code of
Good Governance

In the event that any recommendation 1s not followed or partially followed, you should include a
detalled explanation of the reasons so that shareholders, investors and the market in general, have
sufficient information to evaluate the performance of the company General explanatons are not
acceptable

1 That the Bylaws of the listed companies not imit the maximum number of votes which the same
shareholder can cast, and not contain any other restnictions that would hunder taking control of the
company through the acquisiion of its shares on the market

See sub-paragraphs A10,B1,B82,C123andC 124

i I

Complies [Y| Explain r' E—

2 That when both the parent company and a subsidiary are listed on the Stock Exchange, both publicly
define with accuracy the following i,
E ——]

B —— ]

a) The respective areas of activity and eventual business relations between the two, as well as those .
of the listed subsidiary with the other companies in the group, e
e o

—sememili

e .

b) The mechanisms established to resolve any eventual conflict of interest that may anse E——
e —

See sub-paragraphs D4andD 7 i

Lo

Gomphes[ | Complies partialty i1 Explan  [7] Not applicable [X]

3 That although this 15 not expressly required by commeraial legislation, any transactions entaling a
structural change in the company be put to the General Shareholders’ Meeting for approval,
particularly any of the following transactions

a) The transformation of listed companies into holdings, through a process of creation of
subsidiaries or incorporation into the subsidiaries of activities essentially carried out up
until then by the company itself, even though the company maintains full control over the
subsidiaries;

b) The acquisition or disposal of essential operating assets, when this entails an amendment
of the corporate object,
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c) Transactions the effect of which 1s equivalent to winding up the company,

See sub-paragraph B 6
Complies [ | Complies partially X] Explan  [7]

At its meeting on 18 December 2014 the Board approved the establishment of a wholly-owned company by transfeming assets of the
Company The above operation is carned out in accordance with the provisions of Article 72 of Law 3/2009 of Apni 3, on structural
modifications of commercial companies and 15 scheduled for subrmission to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval

4 That the detaled proposals of the resolutions to be adopted at the General Meeting, ncluding the
information which recommendation 27 refers to, be made public at the time of publication of the notice
of the General Meeting

Complies [X] Explan [ ]

5 That at the General Meeting a separate vote be taken on those matters which are substantially
independent, so that shareholders may exercise theirr voting preferences separately And that said
regulation be applied in particular

a) To the appointment or ratification of directors, which are to be voted on individually,

b) In the case of amendment of Bylaws, to each article or group of articles which are
substantially independent.

Complies  [X] Complies partially M Explan [

6 That the companies allow votes to be spht in order that financial intermediaries who are legitimated as
shareholders, but who act on behalf of different clents, can cast their votes in accordance with the
instructions of said clents

Comples  [X] Explam [ ]

7 That the Board carry out its functions with a sole purpose and independence of cntena, treat all
shareholders alike, and be guided by company interest, understood as maximizing the economic value
of the company in a sustained manner

And that it Ikewise oversee that the company in its relations with the stakeholders respect the laws
and regulations, comply In good faith with its obligations and contracts, respect the usage and good
practices of the sectors and terrtones where it exercises its activity, and observe those additional
prninciples of any social responsibility which it has voluntanly accepted

Complies  [X] Complies partially [ Explan [7]

8 That the Board take on, as the core of its objective, the approval of the corporate strategy and the
organization requred for its implementation, and Ikewise supervise and ensure that Management
comply with the objectives set out and respect the corporate object and interest of the company And
for said purpose, that the Board reserve for itself the power to approve
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a) The general policies and strategies of the company, particularly the following:
1) The strategic plan or business plan, as well as the management objectives and annual budgets,
1) The investment and financing policy,
1) The definition of the structure of the group of companies,
) The corporate governance policy,
v) The corporate social responsibility policy,
vi} The compensation policy and evaluation of senior management performance,

vil) The nsk control and management policy, as well as the periodical monitoring of the internal
infermation and control systems

viny Dividend Policy, as well as Treasury Stock Policy, especially the imits thereof

See sub-paragraphs C114,C116,andE 2

b) The following decisions

1) At the proposal of the company CEO, the appointment and eventual dismissal of senior management, as
well as their iIndemnity clauses

) Compensation of directors, and, in the case of executive directors, additional compensation for their
executive duties and all other conditions which their contracts are required to respect

) The financial information which, given that it 1s a listed company, the company i1s required to make
public periodically

v} All types of investments or transactions that, in view of the elevated amount or special characteristics
thereof, are strategic, unless they are required to be approved by the General Meeting

v)The creatton or acquisition of shareholdings In special-purpose companies or those domiciled n
countries or ternitories considered to be tax havens, as well as any other similar transactions or
operations which, given thetr complexity, may dimimish the transparency of the group,

c) Transactions which the company carries out with directors, significant shareholders or
shareholders represented on the Board, or with related persons ("related party
transactions”)

The authonzation of the Board shall not, however, be required for related party transactions that
simultaneously meet the following three conditions

1 They are conducted under contracts whose terms are standardized and apply en masse to many
customers,

2 That they be carried out at prices or rates generally established by the supplier of the good or
service In question,
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3 The amount does not exceed 1% of the annual revenue of the Company

It 1s recommended that the board approve related party transactions upon receipt of a favourable
report from the audit committee or, where applicable, any other that may be assigned this duty, and
that the directors involved should neither exercise nor delegate therr votes, and should withdraw
from the meeting room while the Board deliberates and votes

It 1s recommended that the functions attributed herein to the Board not be subject to delegation, except
those mentioned in letters b) and ¢), which, for urgent reasons, may be taken on by the Delegated
committee, to be subsequently ratified by the plenum of the Board

See sub-paragraphs D1and D6

Complies  [X] Comples partially M Explan 7]

9 That the size of the Board be large enough to be able to function effectively and in a participative

manner, which makes it advisable that it have no fewer than five nor more than fifteen members

See sub-paragraph C12

Comples  [X] Explain [ |

10 That the external nominee and independent directors make up an ample majority of the Board and that

1

the number of executive directors be mited to the munimum required, taking into account the
complexity of the corporate group and the percentage of share capital held by the executive directors

See sub-paragraphs A3andC13
Complies || Comphes parhially ES Explan [ ]

During almost the entire year 2014 the company has complied with the recommendation With the entry into force of Law 31/2014,
two independent directors lost their status Consequently at year-end, nominee and independent directors represent exactly haff
of the Board

That with respect to the external directors, the ratio of the number of nominee directors to the number
of independent directors be the same as the ratio of the corporate capital represented by the nominee
directors 1o the rest of the capital

This criterion of strict proportionality may be modified so that the nominee directors have
greater weight than that which would correspond to the total percentage of capital which they
represent

1 In highly capitalized companies in which there are few or no shareholdings which are legally
considered as significant, but where there are shareholders with share packages having a
high absolute value.

2 When companies have a plurality of shareholders represented on the Board, and said
shareholders have no ties among themselves.

See sub-paragraphs A2, A3andC 13

Comples  [X] Explan [ |
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12 That the number of iIndependent directors represents at least oneOthird of the total number of
directors

See sub-paragraph C 13
Comphes [ ] Explan  [X]

During almost all the year 2,014 the number of Independent directors on the Board represented a higher percentags of recommended third

Nevertheless, the entry into force of Law 31/2014, the directors Juan José Zornoza Perez and Eugenio Vela Sastre, carrying more than
twelve consecutive years in office as independent directors, lost that status Consequently, the percentage of independent directors on
the Board of Directors went from 40% to 20% below the recommended third

13 That the type of directorship be explained by the Board to the General Meeting of Shareholders which
Is to make or ratify the appointment, and that this be confirmed or, where appropriate, revised,
annually in the Corporate Governance Report, after verification by the Appointments Committee And
that said report ikewise give the reasons for the appointment of nominee directors at the petition of
shareholders holding less than 5% of the captal, and that the reasons be given for not having honared
formal petitions for appointments to the Board from shareholders helding the same or greater
percentage of shares in companson to the percentage held by others at whose petition nominee
directors were appointed

I i

See sub-paragraphs C13andC 18

|

Complies  [X] Complies partially 1 Explain  []

|

!

14 When there are few or no female directors, the nominating committee should ensure that when new
vacancles

W

|

a) There be no implicit bias in the selection processes so as to hinder the selection of female
directors;

|

b) b) The company deliberately seek out and include among the potential candidates women
having the professional profile sought.

i

See sub-paragraphs C12,C14,C15,C16,C22andC24
Complies  [X] Complies partially ] Explan [ ] Not applicable [}

15 That the Chairman, as the person in charge of seeing to it that the Board 1s run effectively, makes sure
that the directors receive sufficient information in advance, encourages debate and the active
participation of the directors durning Board meetings, safeguarding therr freedom to take theirr own
stand and express their own opinion, and organizes and coordinates together with the chairs of the
pertinent Committees the periodical evaluation of the Board and of the Managing Director or CEO

See sub-paragraphs C119and C 141

Complies [ | Complies partally X Explan [ ]

i

Sometimes, and caused by the large number of meetings held dunng 2014, the information was not sent to the directors in good time

i

I

45

TR




16 That, when the Charrman of the Board 15 also the company CEQ, one of the independent directors be

authonized to do as follows request that a meeting be called or that new items be included on the
agenda, coordinate and reflect the concerns of the external directors, and conduct the evaluation by
the Board of its Chairman

See sub-paragraph C 122

Comphes  [X] Complies partally M Explan [ | Not applicable [

17 That the Secretary of the Board take special care in seeing to it that the actions of the Board

18

a) Conform to the letter and the spint of the Law and its requlations, including those approved
by regulatory agencies,

b) Conform to the Corporate Bylaws and the Rules of Procedure of the General Shareholders’
Meeting, the Board of Directors and any other Rules of the company,

c) Keep in mind the recommendations on good governance contained in the Unified Code
accepted by the company

Furthermore, in order to safeguard the independence, impartiality and professionalism of the
Secretary, that his or her appamntment and resignation or dismissal be reported by the Appointments
Commuittee and approved by the plenum of the Board, and that said procedure for appointment,
resignation or dismissal be included in the Rules of Procedure of the Board

See sub-paragraph C 1 34
Complies  [X] Complies partially [ Explain  [7]

That the board meet as often as necessary to perform its duties, following the schedule of dates and
agendas set at the beginning of the year and each director to propose items on the agenda not inhally
planned

See sub-paragraph C 129
Complies [ Complies partially fX] Explan [ ]

Given the difficult financial situation that the company went through during 2014, the Board decided not to establish a calendar of meetings
and meet whenever circumstances so require

Lastly, dunng the year 2014, 23 meetings of the Board were held, additionally resolutions were adopted in wrniting without a meeting

19 See sub-paragraphs B 128,and B 1 30

See sub-paragraphs € 128,C129and C 130

Complies [ | Complies partialty [X] Explan [ ]

Non-attendance of directors at Board meetings in 2014 declined durning those unavoidable cases and are duly quantfied in this report
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However the only occasions on which to the absence of a director has been granted a proxy, it has been done without imparting
instructions

20 That when the directors or the Secretary express theirr concern over a given propasal or, in the case of

the directors, over the running of the company, and these concerns are not resolved at the Board
meeting, said circumstance be reflected in the minutes at the request of the person voicing such
cancerns

Complies |7<'| Comphes partizlly [ Explan  [7] Not applicable [ ]

21 That the plenum of the Board evaluate the following once a year

22

23

24

25

a) The quality and efficiency of the manner in which the Board i1s run,

b) On the basis of the report submitted to it by the Appointments Committee, the Chair’s
performance of his or her functions, as well as the CEQ’s performance of his or her
functions;

c) How well its Commissions are run, on the basis of the report submitted to it by said
Commissions

See sub-paragraphs C119and C 120
Comphes  [X] Complies partially M Explan [ ]

That all directors are able to exercise the night to request any additional information they require on
matters within the competence of the board And, unless the bylaws or board regulations indicate
otherwise, such requests are addressed to the chairperson or secretary of the board

See sub-paragraph C 1 41
Comphes  [X] Explan [ ]

That all directors be entitled to obtain from the company the consultancy they require in order to
comply with their funchions Moreover, that the company find the adequate channels for the exercise of
this right, which under special circumstances may include external consultancy at company expense

See sub-paragraph C 140
Complies  [X] Explan 7]

That companies establish an onentation program that provides new directors with rapid and sufficient
knowledge of the company and its corporate governance rules Moreover, that the companies offer
therr directors programs for updating therr knowledge when this 1s deemed advisable by the
circumstances

Complies  [X] Complies parttally M Explan ||
That companies require that their directors devote sufficient time and energy to their function in order

to perform their duties efficiently, consequently
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a) That directors inform the Appointments Committee of their other professional obligations, in
case these should interfere with the dedication required;

b) That companies establish rules on the number of boards on which their directors may sit.

See sub-paragraphs C112,C113and C 117

Complies |7| Comphes partially |_] Explain |_|

26 That the proposal for the appointment or renewal of directors submitted by the Board to the general

27

28

meeting of shareholders, as well as provisional appointments by co-option, are approved by the
Board

a) At the proposal of the Appointments Committee, in the case of independent directors;

b) After a report by the Appointments Committee, in the case of the other directors.

See sub-paragraph C 13
Comples [X] Comples partially M Explain  [7]

That companies publicize and keep up to date through their Web page the following information on
their directors

a) Professional and biographical profile;

b) Other Boards of Directors on which they sit, regardless of whether or not these are listed
companies,

c) Indication of the type of directorship they hold, indicating in the case of nominee directors,
the shareholder which they represent or with which they have ties

d) Date of their initial appointment as company director, and dates of subsequent
appointments; and,

e) Any company shares and stock options that they hold

Comples [X] Complies partially [ Explan [

That nominee directors tender therr resignation when the shareholder which they represent sells his or

her entire shareholding And that they likewise do so, in the corresponding proportion, when said
shareholder reduces his or her shareholding down to a level which requires the reduction of the
number of the shareholder's nominee directors

See sub-paragraphs A2, A3andC12
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Complies [X] Complies partially i Explan | |

29 That the Board of Directors refrain from proposing the dismissal of any independent director before
sald director finishes his or her term of appointment as stipulated in the Bylaws, unless there 1s good
cause to do so, as determined by the Board on the basis of a report by the Appointments Committee
In particular, good cause shall be understood to exist when the director has failed to comply with the
duties inherent to his or her position or 1s affected by any of the circumstances which prevent him from
being classified as independent pursuant to Ministenal Order ECC/461/2013

The dismissal of independent directors may also be proposed as a result of Takeover Bids,
mergers or other similar corporate operations entailing a change in the corporate capital
structure when said changes in the structure of the Board are made owing to the crniterion of
proportionality indicated in Recommendation 11

See sub-paragraphs C12,C19,C119and C1 27

Complies [X] Explan [

30 That the companies set up rules requiring directors to report and, where appropriate, resign in those
cases which may harm the credit and reputation of the company, and in particular, require them to
report to the Board any cniminal matter of which they stand accused, as well as the subsequent
procedural outcome

That, in the event that a director should be charged with or ordered to stand trial for any of the
crimes indicated in article 213 of the Companies Act, the Board is to examine the case as soon
as possible and, in view of the specific circumstances, decide on whether or not the director
should remain in his or her position. Moreover, the Board 15 to render account thereof, In a
reasoned manner, in the Corporate Governance Annual Report.

See sub-paragraphs C142,C 143

Comptes [X] Complies partially [ Explan ||

31 That all directors clearly express their opposition when they consider that a given draft decision put to
the Board may be contrary to the corporate interest And that they lkewise do so, especally the
independent and other directors who are not affected by the potential conflict of interest, when
decisions are involved which may harm the shareholders not represented on the Board

Moreover, when the Board adopts significant or reiterated decisions in regard to which the
director had made senious reservations, that the latter draw the pertinent conclusions, and, If
said director chooses to resign, that he or she explain the reasons In a letter as referred to In
the following recommendation.

M

|

|||

This recommendation 15 likewise made in regard to the Secretary of the Board, even If said
Secretary 1s not a director.

H

i ]

Complies [X] Complies partially M Explain [ ] Not applicable ||
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32 That when, whether as a result of resignation or for any other reason, a director leaves his or her
position before the term thereof finalizes, said director explain the reasons in a letter to be sent to all of
the members of the Board And, notwithstanding said resignation or dismissal, If this 1s reported as a
relevant fact, that the reason for the resignation or dismissal be stated in the Corporate Governance
Annual Report

See sub-paragraph C19

Comples[ | Comphes partially M Explan [ ] Not applicable [X)
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33 That only executive directors be ehgible for compensation in the form of company or group-company

34

shares, stock options or market-indexed instruments, vanable compensation linked to company
performance or social welfare systems

This recommendation will not apply to the granting of shares, when this 1s done under the
condition that directors keep said shares until they resign from their directorship.

Comples| | Complies partially M Explan [ ] Not applicable [X]

That compensation paid to external directors be sufficient so as to compensate their dedication,
qualificatieon and responsibility required by the position, but not so high as to compromise ther
independence

Comples [X] Explan [ Naot applicable ||

35 That the compensation related to the company results take into account any eventual qualfied

opinions stated in the external auditor's report and diminish said results

Comples [~ ] Exptan  [] Not applicable [X]

36 That in cases of vanable compensation, compensation policies incorporate limits and technical

37

38

39

precautions required so as to ensure that said compensation 1s in line with the professional
performance of its beneficiaries and does not merely result frem general market performance or from
corporate sector activity performance or other similar circumstances

Complies [ ] Explan [ ] Nat applicable [X]

That when a delegated or executive committee (hereinafter, “Delegated Committee”) exists, the
participation structure of the various categores of directors be similar to that of the Board itself and
that its Secretary be the same as the Secretary of the Board

See sub-paragraphs C21andC 26
Complies[ | Comples partially M Explan  [] Not applicable [X]

That the Board at all times be informed of the matters dealt with and the decisions adopted by the
Delegated Committee, and that all members of the Board receive a copy of the minutes of the
Delegated Commuittee meetings

Comples [ | Explam [ | Not applicable [X]

That the board of directors set up from among 1ts members, in addition to the Audit Committee
required by the Spanish Securties Market Act, a single Appointments and Compensation Committee,
or two separate such Committees

That the rules for the composition and running of the audit committee and the appointments
and compensation committee or committees be stated in the Rules of Procedure of the Board,
and that they include the following:

a) That the board appoints the members of these committees, based on the knowledge, skills
and experience of the Directors and the responsibilities of each committee,
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40

41

42

43

dehberates on their proposals and reports, and Committees must give account to the Board, in
the first plenary session following their meetings, on their activities and the work performed;

b) That said Committees be made up exclusively of a minimum of three external directors
This, notwithstanding the attendance of executive directors or senior management, when
the Committee members so expressly agree,

c) That the Chairs thereof be independent directors;

d) That these Committees may obtain external consultancy, when they consider this advisable
for the performance of their functions,

e) That minutes be taken of these Committee meetings, with a copy being sent to all members
of the Board.

See sub-paragraphs C21andC24
Complies rX_| Comphlies partially |_| Explain [_|

That the supervision of compliance with the internal codes of conduct and the rules of good corporate
governance correspond to the Audit Committee, to the Appointments Committee or, If there are two
separate Committees, to those of Compliance or Corporate Governance

See sub-paragraphs C23andC24
Comples | Explan  [X]

Among the functions of the Corporate Governance Committee 15 that of supervising and examining compliance with the tnternal Rules of
Conduct with respect to the Secunttes Markets, as well as to supervise compliance with the corporate governance rules applicable in said
regard

In relation to the Codere Group Code of Ethics and Business Conduct approved by the Board of Directors on 27 January 2011, evaluation
of the degree of compliance therewith corresponds to the Safety and Complance Corporate Department which will issue an annual report
on the matter Said report will be commumicated to the Compliance Committee, and also to the President-CEO of Codere S A Any

revision or updating which entails amendment of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct will require approval by the Board of Directors
of Codere S A after a report by the Compliance Committee

That the members of the Audit Committee, especially the Chairman thereof, be appointed taking into
account their knowledge and expenence in matters of accounting, auditing or nsk management

Complies  [X)] Explan  [7]

That listed companies have an internal audit function which, under the supervision of the Audit
Committee, oversees the proper running of the information and internal control system

See sub-paragraph C23
Complies  [X] Explan [ |

That the person in charge of the internal audit function present to the Audit Committee the annual work
plan, directly inform the Committee of any incidents which may anse in carrying out said plan, and
submit to the Committee a report on its activities at the end of each year
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Complies  [X] Complies partiatly [l Explain |—|

44 That the nsk control and management policy identify at least the following

a) The various types of nisk (operational, technological, financial, legal, reputation, etc.) faced
by the company, including among the financial or economic nsks contingent Liabilities and
other off-balance-sheet risks.

b) The establishment of the risk level which the company considers acceptable;
c) The measures planned to mitigate the impact of identified risks, should they matenalize;

d) The information and internal control systems which will be used to control and manage the
aforesaid risks, including contingent liabilities or offDbalance-sheet risks.

See sub-paragraph E
Complies [} Complies partially X Exptan ]

The Risk Control and Management Policy of Codera, S A identifies the points contained in paragraphs a) and b}, leaving it up to the
Business Units in charge to establish the measures required to mitigate the impact of nsk matenahzation, as well as to establish the
interna! control and information systems which allow for the evaluation and penodical communication, at least annually, of the results
of the nsk control and management monitonng process Moreover, the Group has established additional monthly information and
reporting systems making it possible to learn of, evatuate and reach conclusions regarding contingent habilities and nisks both on and
off balance sheet

45 That the audit committee be entrusted to do the following

1 In relation to the information and internal control systems

a) That the main nisks identified as a result of monitoring the effectiveness of internal control of the
company and the internal audit function, if any, are managed and properly disclosed

b)See to it that the internal audit function 1s run independently and efficiently, propose the selection,
appointment, re-election and dismissal of the person in charge of the internal audit system, propose the
budget for this service, receive penodical information on its activities, and venfy that semor
management take into account the conclusions and recommendations contained in its reports,

c) Set up and supervise a mechanism allowing employees to report confidentially, and where appropriate,
anonymously, any irregulanities which they observe in the company and which may have repercussions,
especially in regard to financial and accounting matters

2 In relation to the external auditor:

a) Receive on a regular basis from the external auditor information regarding the audit plan and the results
of its implementation, and venfy that senior management take into consideration the recommendations
thereof

b) Ensure the independence of the external auditor and, in this regard
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1) That the company communicate the change in auditor as a relevant fact to the Spanish Secunties and
Market Commission {CNMV), together with a statement on the eventual existence of disagreements
with the outgoing auditor and, if such disagreements had existed, what they consisted of,

i) That in the event that the auditor should choose to resign, the Committee examine the reasons why

See sub-paragraphs C136,C23,C24andE2

Complies |_] Complies partially |7| Explain |_]

With respect to sub-paragraph 1 ¢, the function of establishing and supervising a mecharism to allow employees to communicate
confidentially, and if deemed approprate, anonymously, any potentially sigruficant iregulanties, especially those of a financial or accounting
nature, detected within the Company, in Codere $ A corresponds to the Compliance Committee, 1n accordance with article 15 of the Rules
of Procedure of the Board of Directors

46 That the Audit Committee may request the presence of any company employee or manager, and even
order that they appear without the presence of any other manager

Complies [X] Explan [ |

47 That the Audit Committee inform the Board, prior to the Board’s adopting the corresponding decisions,
about the following matters indicated in Recommendation 8

a) The financial information which, given that it 1s a listed company, the company I1s required to
make public periodically. The Committee should ensure that the Intermediate accounts are
drafted using the same accounting criteria as the annual accounts and, for this purpose,
consider the suitability of a hmited revision by the external auditor;

b) The creation or acquisition of shareholdings in special-purpose companies or those
domiciled in countries or territories considered to be tax havens, as well as any other
similar transactions or operations which, given their complexity, may diminish the
transparency of the group;

c¢) Related party transactions, except where their scrutiny has been entrusted to another
committee of the supervisory and control operations.

See sub-paragraphs C23andC 24

Complies |Y| Complies partially [_] Explan |_]

48 That the Board of Directors endeavour to present the annual accounts to the General Meeting without
reservations or qualified opinions, and, in the exceptional case that there should be a reservation or
gualified opimon, both the Chair of the Audit Committee as well as the auditors clearly explain to the
shareholders the content and scope of said reservations or qualified opinions

See sub-paragraph C 138

Complies |_)'('] Comphes partially [—| Explain [_l

49 That the majonty of members of the Appointments Committee —or Appointments and Compensation
Commuttee, if there 1s only one Committeel] be independent directors

See sub-paragraph C 21
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50 That the Appointments Committee, In addition to the functions indicated in the preceding

51

52

|

i_l

Comples [ | Explan  [X] Not applicable

il

Dunng almost alt the year 2014 the independent directors represented a majonty on the Corporate Governance COmmittee

Nevertheless, the entry into force of Law 31/2014, the directors Juan José Zornoza Perez and Eugenio Vela Sastre, carrying more than
twelve consecutive years in office as independent directors, lost that status Consequently, at year end there was no majonty of
ndependent directors in the composition of the Corporate Governance Committee

Recommendations, be entrusted with the following functions

a) Evaluate the competence, knowledge and experience required on the Board; consequently
define the functions and apttudes required of the candidates who are to cover each
vacancy, and evaluate the time and dedication required in order for them to carry out their
functions adequately,

Wi

b) Examine or organize, iIn a manner understood to be adequate, the succession of the
chairman and the CEO and, if applicable, make proposals to the Board, in order that said
succession may be carried out 1n an orderly and well-planned manner,

c) Report on the appointments and dismissals of senior management proposed by the chief I
executive to the Board. S

d) Inform the Board of the diverse matters indicated in Recommendation 14 of this Code. ]
See sub-paragraph C 24 o
Complies [ | Complies partially [X] Explan || Not apphcable |'—| ——

The function estabiished under paragraph b} of this recommendation 1s not expressly attnbuted to the Corporate Governance Committee in
the internal regulations of the Company, however, in recent years this Committee has taken on this function and has worked on it

£

That the Appointments Commifttee consult with the company President and CEO, especially in regard
to matters pertaining to executive directors

Furthermore, that any director be able to request that the Appointments Committee take into
consideration potential candidates to cover director vacancies, If it considers such candidates

suitable.
Complies rx‘[ Comples partially |_| Explan I—I Notappllcableﬂ

That the Compensation Committee, in addition to the functions indicated in the preceding
Recommendations, be entrusted to do the following

a) Propose to the Board of Directors

1) The compensation policy for directors and senior management,

T
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1) Compensation and other contract conditions for executive directors,

m) Basic contract conditions for senior management,

Hm

—

b} See to 1t that the compensation policy established by the company is observed.

!

See sub-paragraphs C 24

Complies  [X] Complies partally M Explan 7] Not applicable [ |

m

53 That the Compensation Committee consult with the company chairperson and CEQ, especially in
regard to matters concerning executive directors and senior management

Lol

Complies  [X] Explain || Not applicable [

[_E] OTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST

1 If you consider that there 1s any principle or relevant aspect regarding the corporate governance
practices applied by your company which has not been dealt with In the present Report, but that
more complete and reasoned information 1s necessary regarding the structure and governance
practices of your company and/or group, mention this below and bnefly explain what it consists of

mm

2 Any information, clanfication or nuance related to the preceding sections of this report may also be
included In this section

b

Specificaily, indicate whether or not the company 1s subject to any legistation other than Spanish
legislation 1n matters of corporate governance and, if applicable, include any information which it i1s
required to provide which differs from the information called for in this report

g

3 The company may also indicate whether voluntarnly acceded to other ethical principles or codes of
good practice, international, sectoral or other authonties In such a case, the code \n question and
the date of application should be identified

Regarding sub-paragraph A 3 , it should be noted that in the context of a reorganization of family wealth, on 22 December 2014 Ms
Encarnacién Maritnez Sampedro acquired shares in Mabloem Ontwikkeling BY (sole shareholder of Masampe Holding BV) thereby
holding 55% of the share capital, with the remaining 45% owned by Mr José Antoruo Martinez Sampedre On the same date Ms
Encarnacién Mariinez and Jose Antonio Martinez signed an Irrevocable power of attorney (in that the equity interest of Ms
Encarnacién Martinez equalled more than 50% of the share capital of Mabloem Cntwikkeling BV) pursuant to which Mr José
Antoruo Martinez Sampedro would be able to freeely and permenantly, and in the absence of specific instructions, exercise the
voting nghts held by Ms Encarnacion Martinez in Mabloam Ontwikkeling BV

Regarding sub-paragraph A 10 it should be noted that dunng the Lock up pened we have i1ssued the significant events statement
numbers 211 103 and 211 1186, informing that certain shareholders have promised and agreed with the representatives of the
bondholders not to sell the shares held thereby to third parties dunng the term of the said lock up agreement

T

I

Regarding sub-paragraph C 1 2 please note that the date of first appointment of Mr Joseph Zappala reported on 20/11/2002,
corresponds to the first occasion he was appointed Director of Codere S A However, on 31 August 2004 Mr Zappala resigned from
his position as Director, and was not re-appointed Director until 21 June 2005 Since then he has been a Director of Codere SA
continuously

Regarding sub-paragraph € 1 15 note that the amount referred includes the remuneration received by the Directors José Antonto
Martinez Ms Encarnactdn Martinez and Jawvier Martinez, for the performance of therr duties

e

Regarding sub-paragraph C 1 18 note that the Board of Directors, agreed to amend Rules of Procedure of the Board of Direclors to
adapt them to Law 31/2014 This effort concluded in 2014

i
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Regarding sub-paragraph C 1 22 it should be noted that the Board of Directors, completed in 2014, agreed that the Independent
Director Mr Juan Junguera Temprano would act as the coordmating officer, authonzed to call meetings of the Beard and the inclusion
of new items on the agenda, tnter alia

In relation to sub-paragraph C 1 27, it should be pointed out that article 3 2 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board establishes that it
shall be endeavored that Independent Directors not remarn as such for a period beyond 12 years, and that in the case whereby i 1s
resolved to renew them In their post beyond said time period, the specific reasons for this must be explained in the Corporate
Govemnance Annual Report The Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors was modified on 22 January 2015 in order to adapt to
Law 31/2014, and among cther things include the impossibility of any director that has been in office for 12 consecutive years being
considered an independent director

Regarding sub-paragraph C 1 29, indicate that on an additional eccasion (13 October 2014) to the 23 meetings, the Board adopted
resolutions in writing without a meeting

Regarding sub-paragraph C 1 45, it should be noted that the value of the compensation of the four contracts listed in the answer
to this question, If applicable, at 31 December 2014 totals 1 08 million euros It should also be pointed out that although the
Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors reserves for the plenum of the Board the power to resolve in regard to Senior
Management mdemnity clauses and the contract terms of Executive Directors, of the four beneficianes of guarantee or golden
parachute clauses indicated in the reply to this question, three were not authorized by the Board of Directors, given that their
contracts were entered Into prior to the date on which the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors came into effect,
whereas the fourth was duly authonzed during the year 2011

In relation to sub-paragraph C 2 1, note that in order to comply with the legally enforceable composition of the Audit Commutiee in
accordance with Law 31/2014, at the meeting of the Board held on 22 January 2015, 15 was agreed to appont the independent
director Mr Juan Junquera Temprano as a member of the Audit Committee to meet a minimum of two independent directors that must
exist In this committee Nevertheless, until 24 December 2014 the composition of the Audit Committee has complied with that legally
estabhshed

Additionally, in relation to sub-paragraph C 2 1, article 15 of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of Codere S A
establishes that when the Chairman of the Compliance Coemmittee ts not an Independent Director the reasons for said circumstance
must be indicated in the Corporate Governance Annual Report In this respect, the Chaiman of the Compliance Committee, Mr
José Ignacio Cases Méndez 1s a Nominee Diractor, with his appointment as Chairman of said Committee owing to his expenence
and knowledge gathered when he was Secretary Generai of the Gaming Commission of the Spanish Mimstry of the Interor, and as
Full Professor of Political Science at the Carlos Il University in Madnd, consequently making him one of the most highly informed
persens In the matter

With respect to sub-paragraph C 2 3, the function of establishing and supervising a mechanism to allow employees to communicate
confidentially, and If deemed appropnate, anonymously, any potentially significant irregulanities, especially those of a financial or
accounting nature, detected within the Company, corresponds to the Compliance Committee, in accordance with article 15 of the
Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors

Regarding sub-paragraph D 2, please note that as the markets were duly informed con 23 September 2014 that the company
Codere S A had signed a Lock-up Agreement, in order to restruclure the capital and debt of the Codere Group with different
entities and individuals, including Jose Antonio Martinez Sampedro For more detalled (nformation on the content of this
agreemont, please consult the significant event sent to the CNMV on the same date as well as the annual report of the company

In sub-paragraph D 3 regarding the detall of the relevant transactions between the company or companies of its group and directors or
senior managers of the company, we point out with reference to the Director Mr José Ramén Romero Rodnguez, a contractual
relation of service provision 1n the amount menticned, although the service 1s provided by the law firm Despacho Loyra SCP
Abogados, of which said Director 1s Managing Partner

Regarding sub-paragraph the D 5, note that the reported balance of transactions with other related parties, includes a
recevable form the company Promobowling S A |, that, given the situation of bankruptcy the debtor, has been duly provisioned

In relation to sub-paragraph D 6, please nota that :n the Board meeting of 23 September 2014 the Directors Mr Jose Antonio
Martinez Sampedro, Ms Encamacidn Martinez Sampedro and Mr Luis Javier Martinez Sampedro reported feeling a conflict of
interest with the Company n relation to the second item on the agenda of the session on the signing of an Lock-Up agreement, so
they abstained from participating in the deliberations and voting on the dacision on the operation regarding the restructuring and
signing of the Lock-Up Agreement

Lastly, in relation to the section E 6 , we fell it 1s necessary to report the following points
The CODERE Compliance Policy Implementation processes and summary of relevant activities
The CODERE Comphance Policy

Codere has taken as a standard of comphance the framework established by the Basel Committee in 2004 and the FATF
Recommendations of February 2012 (Intemationa! Standards on Combating Money Laundenng and the Financing of Terronsm &
Proliferation}, as well as European Commission Directive 2005/60/EC and regulations in development thereof Similarly, given that the
Parent company of the Codere Group 15 domiciled in Spain and operates subsidianes i all geographic areas by applying the Spanish
legislation on the matter, as amended and updated recently with the enactment of Royal Decree 304/2014, of 5 May, the Regulation
implementing Law 10/2010 of 28 Apnl, on Prevention of Money Laundenng and TF, as a minimum standard to be respected and
included in the Global Compliance Plan that guarantees its operation
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Consequently, Codere has integrally taken on the latest and most ample version of the Compliance Function as an Independent
Function which identifies, provides consultancy, alerts, momiters and reports the compliance nsks in organizations, that is, the
nisk of receving sanctions for legal or regulatory breaches, sufferning financial loss or loss of reputation as the result of failure to
comply with applicable laws, regulations, codes of conduct and good practice standards (together, ‘laws, regulations and
standards'}

Codere, therefore, with a nsk-onented focus to increase the effectiveness of the measures applied, requires of itself and also of
its associates, supplers and customers, the strictest conformity fo gaming sector regulations in every country in which it
operates, as well as scnupulous respect for all financial, fiscal and labour norms wherever It carres out its actvity

In order to guarantee the proper functioning and operation of the Compliance Department, both its corporate duties and the Local
Compltance Officers are audited annually by both the intemal Audit Department and by the corresponding External Audit
Additionally, all tasks involving the prevention of money laundening and terronst financing must annually pass an Extenal Expert
Review imposed by Spanish legisiation

Accordingly, the Compliance Policy evidences the special commitment of Codere to the laws against fraud and money laundenng,
as well as to the values of honesty and integnty in corporate business practices and compliance with the intemal code of conduct all
of which takes shape in the following strategic objectives

- Establish the activities and mechanisms needed to implement a conscious Cuiture of Compliance throughout the Company as
an indispensable tool to help reach and maintatn the level of excelience that CODERE aspires to

- Cooperata in identifying and establishing the strictest standards of ethical conduct and apphicable law in the carrying out of Codere
business activities

- Achigve the proactive participation of all executives and employees in Codere's Comphance policies in the vanous activities and
geographical areas in which the company operates, seting minmum coordination mechanisms and requirements among the
vanous agemnts

- ldentify, evaluate and control the main Comphiance nsks, defined as those which can result in legal sanctions, matenal financial
loss or loss of reputation as a result of possible violations of the laws, regulations and self-regulatory standards of the company or of
the codes of conduct applicable to Codere's business activdies

CODERE Compliance Policy execution processes

Dunng 2,014 we continued to develop and/or improve the following processes and actions by Local and Corporate Compliance

- Standardization of the International and National Policy on Prevention of Money Laundenng in Codere SA, especially the National,
where new requirements are demanded in the recent Regulation on Prevention of Money Laundering and Terronst Financing,
approved by Royal Decree 304/2014, of 5 May, implementing Law 10/2010 of 28 Apnl

- Updating of the manuat on the Prevention of Money Laundenng and Terronst Financing, both Corporative as well as the various
Business Units to adapt to the latest national and local legislation

- Dissemination and personal acceptance by employees of the Code of Ethics and Conduct of the CODERE Group n all geographic
areas in which 1t operates, as evidence of the use of best business practices and Corporate Social Respensibility in Codere, S A

- Finalize the implementation of the Whistleblower Channel/Ethics Channels in all of the Business Umts having direct Local
Compliance and global management of Corporate Compliance and the Complhance Committee

- Widespread training actions in the Prevention of Money Laundenng and Terronst Financing for key corporate and Business
Unit Directars, Managers and employees

- Identification of customers it accordance with express local legislation, as well as systematic or suspicious transactions that
may occur at the corresponding FIU / SEPBLAC reports

- Classification and/or special examination of certain transactions on Risk, which vary depending on the type of business/activity,
preducts and customers

- Conservation of documents with the guarantees and legal deadlines for each area

- Collaboration with the Executive Service of the Commission for the Prevention of Money Laundenng and Terronsm Financing or
Local FIU uruts

- Abstention in the execution of irregular operations or malpractice, forming part of the Compliance function for all contracting
processes of the business units

- Duty to ensure confidentrally of all commurications on Third Parties and Customers

- Requirement of Due Diligence and internal control measures of permanent evaluation of Thurd Party Risks and Chents, as well as
of Directors and Employees

- Specialized local comphance bodies (minimum Certified ACAMS U S ), due to the internal control, communication to Authonties
and exceplional ability for appropniate traiming of employees in AMLU/TF
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- With regard to branches and subsidianes abroad, Codere with its Spanish headquarters, adopts policies to prevent money laundering
and terronst financing applicable to the whole group, aimed at fulfiling the provisions of Royal Decree 304/2014, of 5 May which
approved the regulations implementing Law 10/2010 of 28 Agpnl, on the 1on of money laundenng and terronst financing The
procedures are set at group level to apply to all branches, subsidianes and/or affiliates, who also in cases where more demanding local
regulations, policies and procedures that those pf the Group exist, are adapted to the requirements in the specific country

Summary of relevant Comphance Activities in the CODERE Group in 2014

Below we have included a summary of the activities of the Prevention of Monay Laundernng (AML) and Know Your Customer
(KYC) and AML training of employees and executives and contro! of customers and suspicious transactions and impulse-contro!
on the Code of Ethics and Conduct carned outin 2,014

- There were 4,618 cases of vanous types of Due Diligence conducted between the Corporate Division and the Business Units of
the different countnes with which the Company operates, with respect to third parties, both natural and legal persons, with which
business or contractual relations take place

- 630 Internal Control Due Diligence were conducted with CODERE's own personnet

- 3,466 employees were given Mandatery Training intemnally by the Comphance Departments of Spam, Argenting, Italy Panama,
Colombia, Uruguay and Mexico and by the online training in Argentina, Mexico and Colombia

- 41,511 Pnzes and Transactions were controlled and reported to the competent Authonties, using the wentification and register
required in each case

- 302 suspicious transaction have been reported to the vanous local FIU {(SEPBLAC in Spain) This process has been carned outin
full in all business units

- 63 cases were reported/communicated to the Whustleblower Channel! /Internal Investigation

This Annual Corporate Governance Report was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company,
at its meeting held on 26/02/2015

Indicate whether any Directors have voted against or have abstained from the approval of the present
report

Yes [ ] No [X]
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